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ສະພາບທ່ົວໄປ ຂອງທະນາຄານ ມາຣູຮານ ເຈແປນລາວ
ເສັ້ນທາງສູ່ຄວາມຍືນຍົງ

ທະນາຄານ ມາຣູຮານ ເຈແປນ ລາວ ແມ�ນທະນາຄານການຄ້າສ�ນຊາດຍ�ປຸ�ນ ແຫ�ງທຳອິດ ແລະ ແຫ�ງດຽວເທ�ານ�ນ ໃນ ສປປ ລາວ. 
ຍ້ອນວ�າມ�ນຢູ�ໃນມູນເຊ�ອຂອງພວກເຮົາ, ພວກເຮົາຈ�ງພຽບພ້ອມໄປດ້ວຍຄຸນນະພາບ, ການບໍລິການ, ນະວ�ດຕະກ�າ, ແລະ ຄວາມ
ໄວ້ວາງໃຈ. ກຸ�ມທຸລະກິດຂອງພວກເຮົາມີທະນາຄານຢູ�ໃນລາວ, ກ�າປູເຈຍ, ແລະ ມຽນມາ. ເຊ�ງສະຫນອງປະສ�ບການການທະນາຄານ
ໃນພາກພ�ນທ�ບ�ມີໃຜທຽບເທ�າ. ພວກເຮົາ MJBL ມຸ�ງໝ�ນທ�ຈະເປັນ Glo-cal, ຊ�ງເປັນຄ�າທ�ປະສ�ມປະສານ ລະຫວ�າງ ຄວາມອາດ
ສາມາດ-ຄວາມຊ�ານິຊຳນານລະດ�ບສາກ�ນ ແລະ ລະດ�ບທ້ອງຖ�ນ ເຂ�າດ້ວຍກ�ນດ້ວຍຄວາມເຂ�າໃຈໃນສະພາບທ້ອງຖ�ນທ�ເລິກເຊ�ງ, ຈຸດ
ສຸມທາງທຸລະກິດ ແລະ ວິໄສທ�ດໄລຍະຍາວທ�ຈະດຳເນີນທຸລະກິດໃນລາວ ເພ�ອຮ�ບມອບການບໍລິການທ�ດີສູ�ສ�ງຄ�ມ, ທຸລະກິດ ແລະ
ບ�ນດາລູກຄ້າຂອງພວກເຮົາ. ທີມງານ MJBL ມີປະສ�ບການດ້ານການທະນາຄານການຄ້າ ແລະ ເທັກໂນໂລຍີດີຈີຕອລ ເຊ�ງປະກອບ
ດ້ວຍຜູ້ຊ�ຽວຊານລະດ�ບສາກ�ນຈາກປະເທດລາວ, ມາເລເຊຍ, ຍ�ປຸ�ນ, ອິນເດຍ, ໄທ ແລະ ຝຣ�ງ ເປັນຕ�ນ.

ເວ�າເຖງິການປະຕິຮູບ, MJBL ໄດ້ເລ�ມດ�າເນນີໃນປ ີ2020 ໃນການຫ�ນປ�ຽນຍຸດທະສາດໃນທ�ວທະນາຄານເພ�ອສ້າງທະນາຄານໃຫ້ເຂ�ມ
ແຂງ ໂດຍອີງໃສ� 3 ເສົາຫຼ�ກ – (1) ຄວາມໄວວ້າງໃຈ (2) ປະສ�ບການຂອງລູກຄ້າ (3) ດິຈຕິອລ. ໂຄງການ 3 ປ ີMJ22 ຂອງພວກເຮາົ, 
ຄາດໝາຍໃຫ້ MJBL ເປນັທະນາຄານທ�ໜ້າເຊ�ອຖທື�ສຸດໃນ ສປປ ລາວ, ໂດຍການມອບປະສ�ບການທ�ດີທ�ສຸດໃຫ້ແກ�ລູກຄ້າ ດ້ວຍການ
ເຂ�າເຖງິ ແລະ ຕອບສະໜອງຄວາມຕ້ອງການທ�ແທ້ຈິງຂອງລູກຄ້າ ໂດຍຜ�ານລະບ�ບທະນາຄານດິຈິຕອລທ�ເນ�ນໃສ�ລູກຄ້າເປນັຫລ�ກ 
ແລະ ສ້າງຂ�ນຕາມວ�ດຖຸປະສ�ງຢ�າງແທ້ຈິງ. ໃນປທີີ 2 ຂອງ MJ22, ປ ີ2021 ພວກເຮາົໄດ້ປະເຊນີກ�ບຄວາມທ້າທາຍຈາກພະຍາດ
ໂຄວິດ-19 ແລະ ມີການປ� ຽນແປງຢ�າງຫລາກຫລາຍຢູ� ໃນປະເທດລາວ ແລະ ທ�ວໂລກ. ເຖິງວ�າຈະມີສະຖານະການດ�ງກ�າວ, 
MJBL ຍ�ງໄດ້ເນ�ນຫນ�ກເຖງິການເສີມສ້າງພ�ນຖານຂອງທະນາຄານ ແລະ ການລ�ງທຶນສ�າລ�ບອະນາຄ�ດ, ເພ�ອການເຕີບໂຕຢ�າງຍືນ
ຍ�ງ ແລະ ມີຄວາມຮ�ບຜິດຊອບ.

ພວກເຮາົຍ�ງມຸ�ງຫມ�ນໃນການສະຫນ�ບສະຫນຸນຂະແຫນງການທຸລະກດິ  MSME ໃນໄລຍະເວລາທ�ທ້າທາຍຂອງໂລກລະບາດຂອງ
ໂລກ. ຄວາມຈິງແລ້ວ, MJBL ໄດ້ຖກືຄ�ດເລືອກໂດຍກະຊວງອຸດສາຫະກ�າ-ການຄ້າ ແລະ ທະນາຄານໂລກ ໃຫ້ເປນັ 1 ໃນ 5 ທະນາ 
ຄານ ໃນ ສປປ ລາວ ໃນການຊ�ວຍສະໜອງການເຂ�າເຖິງແຫລ�ງທຶນ ໃຫ້ແກ�ວິສາຫະກິດເພ�ອຜ�ານຜ�າຜ�ນກະທ�ບຈາກໂຄວິດ-19. 
ການເຂ�າເຖງິແຫລ�ງທຶນກາຍເປນັເລ�ອງທ�ງ�າຍຂ�ນສ�າລ�ບທຸລະກດິຂະໜາດນອ້ຍ ໃນຂະນະທ�ພວກເຮາົສາມາດໃຫ້ຄ�າປກຶສາ ແລະ ການ
ຝຶກອ�ບຮ�ມໃຫ້ແກ�ເຈ�າຂອງທຸລະກດິຂະໜາດນອ້ຍ, ສ້າງຄວາມອາດສາມາດໃນການຊ�າລະ ແລະ ສ້າງຄວາມເຂ�ມແຂງໃຫ້ແກ�ລະບ�ບນ ິ
ເວດ ຂອງ SME ແບບດີຈຕິອລຂອງພວກເຮາົ.

ຄຽງຄູ�ກ�ບຄວາມຍືນຍ�ງດ້ານການເງນິແລ້ວ, ວາລະຂອງການພ�ດທະນາຄວາມຍືນຍ�ງຂອງ MJBL ແມ�ນລວມໄປເຖງິ ສ�ງແວດລ້ອມ 
ແລະ ຄ�ນ. ຫລ�ງຈາກເປີດໜ�ວຍບໍລິການດິຈິຕອລເຕັມຮູບແບບແຫ�ງທ�າອິດໃນລາວ ທ�ສູນການຄ້າ World Trade Center ໃນປ ີ
2020, ປະຈຸບ�ນພວກເຮາົໄດ້ສະໜອງການສິນເຊ�ອເພ�ອລ�ດໄຟຟ້າ (EV) ເຊ�ງເປນັຫ�ວຂ�ທ�ສ�າຄ�ນໃນສະພາບເສດຖະກດິໃນປະຈຸບ�ນນ�.

ການເຂ�າເຖງິແຫລ�ງທຶນໄດ້ງ�າຍເປນັຫຼ�ກການທ�ສ�າຄ�ນຂອງ MJBL ສ�າລ�ບບຸກຄ�ນ ແລະ ຫ�ວໜ�ວຍທຸລະກດິທ�ມີຂ�ກ�ານ�ດດ້ານຖານະ
ການເງນິພ້ອມທ�ງຂະໜາດຂອງທຸລະກິດທ�ສ�ມເຫດສ�ມຜ�ນ. “ທະນາຄານເພ�ອທຸກຄ�ນ” ສະແດງໃຫ້ເຫັນຢ�າງຊ�ດເຈນການຕ�ດຮອນ 
ແລະ ຫ�ດຜ�ອນສ�ງກີດຂວາງຕ�າງໆໃຫ້ແກ�ລູກຄ້າໃນການມີສ�ວນຮ�ວມທາງດ້ານການບໍລິການ, ດ້ານການເງນິ ແລະ ການທະນາ 
ຄານ ເພ�ອຊວິີດການເປນັຢູ� ແລະ ທຸລະກດິທ�ດີກວ�າ. 

ພວກເຮົາຊ�ວຍຜູ້ຄ�ນໃຫ້ສາມາດເປັນເຈ�າຂອງລ�ດ ແລະ ເຮືອນໃນຝ�ນໄດ້ຍ�ກລະດ�ບຊີວິດການເປັນຢູ�ຂອງພວກເຂົາ ແລະ ປ�ບປຸງ
ຄຸນນະພາບຊີວິດການເປນັຢູ� ດ້ວຍການໃຫ້ຄ�າປຶກສາທ�ເໝາະສ�ມ ແລະ ສ�ມເຫດສ�ມຜ�ນ. ພວກເຮົາຍ�ງຍ�ກສູງຕ�ຜູ້ສ�ງເສີມເສດຖະ 
ກິດຂ�ນພ�ນຖານແຫ�ງຊາດ - SMEs, ດ້ວຍໂຄງການກູ້ຢືມທ�ທ�ນສະໄໝໂດຍການໃຫ້ສິນເຊ�ອຊ�ມໃຊ້ສ�ວນບຸກຄ�ນ ແລະ ສິນເຊ�ອ
ເພ�ອ SME. 

ການເດີນທາງເພ�ອປະຕິຮູບຂອງພວກເຮາົຍ�ງຄ�ງກາ້ວຕ�ໄປ…
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ທ�ານ ດຣ. ຮານ ຈາງ ວູ, ແມ�ນເປັນຜູ້ກ�ຕ�ງ, ເປັນປະທານ  ທ�ງເປັນຜູ້ບໍລິຫານໃຫຍ� ຂອງ ກຸ�ມບໍລິສ�ດມາຣູຮານ ຂອງປະເທດຍ�ປຸ�ນ. 

ເຊ�ງດຳເນີນທຸລະກິດ ແລະ ບໍລິຫານ ຫລາກຫລາຍທຸລະກິດການບ�ນເທີງ ເຊ�ນ: ສະໜາມກ໊ອຟ, ສະໜາມຂ�ບລ�ດ, ສູນໂບລ�ງ, 

ສູນຫລ�ນເກມ, ຮ້ານອາຫານ ແລະ ຮ້ານປາຈ�ງໂກະ pachinko (ພິນບານຍ�ປຸ�ນ). ທ�ານໄດ້ສ້າງຕ�ງກຸ�ມບໍລິສ�ດ ມາຣູຮານ ໃນປີ 

1957 ແລະ ເຫັນວ�າທຸລະກິດຂະຫຍາຍຕ�ວຢ�າງວ�ອງໄວ ຊ�ງມີລາຍຮ�ບໃນການຂາຍປະຈ�າປີ ຫຼາຍກວ�າ 25 ຕ�ໂດລາສະຫະລ�ດ. 

ກຸ�ມບໍລິສ�ດ ມາຣູຮານ ແມ�ນເປັນທ�ຮູ້ຈ�ກໃນຖານະເປັນບໍລິສ�ດຊ�ນນ�າຂອງອຸດສາຫະກ�າໃນປະເທດຍ�ປຸ�ນ. ຄວາມສ�າເລັດໃນການ

ເຕີບໃຫຍ�ຂອງທຸລະກິດ ແມ�ນມາຈາກຄວາມມຸ້ງໝ�ນເອົາຊະນະຕ�ຄວາມທ້າທາຍຂອງທ�ານປະທານ ຮານ ແລະ ຄວາມເຊ�ອ 

ໝ�ນອ�ນແຮງກ້າໃນການສ້າງຄວາມພຶງພໍໃຈໃຫ້ແກ�ລູກຄ້າ.

ທ�ານ ຮານ ເຄນ ໄດ້ເຂ�າຮ�ວມ ກຸ�ມບໍລິສ�ດມາຣູຮານ ໃນປີ 2000, ຫຼ�ງຈາກເຮັດວຽກໃຫ້ບໍລິສ�ດຫຼ�ກຊ�ບ Nomura ຕ�ງແຕ�ປີ 

1998.  ໃນປີ 2007, ທ�ານໄດ້ຮ�ບແຕ�ງຕ�ງເປັນຜູ້ອ�ານວຍການ ກຸ�ມບໍລິສ�ດ ມາຣູຮານ ແລະ ໄດ້ເລ�ອນຕ�າແໜ�ງເປັນຜູ້ບໍລິຫານ

ໃຫຍ� ໃນປີ 2014. ໃນປີ 2020 ທ�ານໄດ້ຖືກແຕ�ງຕ�ງເປັນຜູ້ຕາງໜ້າອ�ານວຍການ ແລະ ໃນປີ 2021 ທ�ານໄດ້ຮ�ບການແຕ�ງຕ�ງ

ເປັນປະທານຂອງກຸ�ມບໍລິສ�ດການເງິນ. ທ�ານຍ�ງເປັນຜູ້ອຳນວຍການໃຫຍ� ແລະ ທ�ງເປັນ ຜູ້ບໍລິຫານ/ປະທານ ຂອງບໍລິສ�ດ 

MARUHAN Investment Asia Pte. Ltd., ຊ�ງເປັນສ�ານ�ກງານການເງິນທ�ສິງກະໂປ. ທ�ານເຮັດໜ້າທ�ຄຸ້ມຄອງບ�ນດາ

ບໍລິສ�ດຍ�ອຍໃນກຸ�ມເຊ�ນ: ທະນາຄານສະຖາປະນາ ຈຳກ�ດ, ບໍລິສ�ດ ສະຖາປະນາ ຈຳກ�ດ ທ� ພະມ້າ, ແລະ ທະນາຄານ ມາ

ຣູຮານ ເຈແປນ ລາວ. ທ�ານໄດ້ຮ�ບປະລິນຍາຕີທາງດ້ານກ�ດຫມາຍ ຈາກມະຫາວິທະຍາໄລ DOSHISHA ໃນປີ 1997.

ທ�ານ ຄິມ ວາດາ, ມີປະສ�ບການໃນການເຮັດວຽກຫລາຍກວ�າ 37 ປີ ທ�ທະນາຄານແຫ�ງຊາດ ກ�າປູເຈຍ (NBC). ໃນຫວ�າງທ�ທ�ານ

ເຮັດວຽກທ�ທະນາຄານກາງ, ທ�ານໄດ້ຮ�ບຕຳແໜ�ງອາວຸໂສຫລາຍຕຳແໜ�ງພ້ອມກ�ບປະສ�ບການທ�ຫລາກຫລາຍດ້ານການທະນາຄານ 

ລວມມີ ການບໍລິຫານຄວາມສ�ຽງ (ການຕະຫລາດ, ສິນເຊ�ອ, ສະພາບຄ�ອງທາງການເງິນ, ຄວາມສ�ຽງດ້ານການດຳເນີນງານ ແລະ 

ອ�ນໆ), ການຄຸ້ມຄອງອ�ງກອນ ແລະ ຍຸດທະສາດທຸລະກິດ. ທ�ານໄດ້ມີບ�ດບາດສຳຄ�ນ ໃນການປ�ບໂຄງສ້າງລະບ�ບທະນາຄານຢ�າງ

ປະສ�ບຜ�ນສຳເລັດໃນປະເທດກຳປູເຈຍ ໃນຊຸມປີ 2000. ພ�ດທະນາລະບ�ບທະນາຄານໃຫ້ມີການແຂ�ງຂ�ນສູງ ປອດໄພ ແລະ ມີ

ຄຸນນະພາບ ຊ�ງໄດ້ຮ�ບການຄຸ້ມຄອງ ແລະ ເບ�ງແຍງຢ�າງດີ. ພ້ອມກ�ນນ�ນ ທ�ານຍ�ງໄດ້ລະດ�ມເງິນຝາກທ�ໄດ້ຮ�ບປະສິດຕິພາບ ເພ�ອ

ຊຸກຍູ້ການຈະເລີນເຕີບໂຕຂອງເສດຖະກິດຂອງປະເທດກຳປູເຈຍ. ໃນລະດ�ບສາກ�ນ, ທ�ານໄດ້ຮ�ບຕຳແໜ�ງປະທານຂອງສະມາ

ຄ�ມ ສິນເຊ�ອເພ�ອການກະເສດ ແລະ ຊ�ນນະບ�ດ ແຫ�ງ ເອເຊຍ ປາຊິຟິກ(APRACA).

ທ�ານ ໂທໂມຢູກິ ອິວາສະ ມີປະສ�ບການໃນທຸລະກິດການທະນາຄານ ຫຼາຍກວ�າ 30 ປີ ນ�ບຕ�ງແຕ�ທ�ານໄດ້ເລ�ມຕ�ນເຮັດວຽກໃນປີ 

1989 ທ�ທະນາຄານ Mizuho Ltd ທ�ປະເທດຍ�ປຸ�ນ. ທ�ານມີປະສ�ບການໃນຫຼາຍຕ�າແໜ�ງໃນຂ�ງເຂດທະນາຄານ ຊ�ງລວມທ�ງການ

ສ�ງເສີມທຸລະກິດ, ການວາງແຜນ ແລະ ສິນເຊ�ອ ຊ�ງລວມທ�ງທຸລະກິດທ�ຢູ�ພາຍໃນ ແລະ ຕ�າງປະເທດ. ທ�ານໄດ້ເຂ�າຮ�ວມເຮັດວຽກກ�ບ

ກຸ�ມບໍລິສ�ດ ມາຣູຮານ ໃນເດືອນສິງຫາ ປີ 2019 ແລະ ປະຈຸບ�ນທ�ານຮ�ບໜ້າທ� ເປັນບໍລິຫານອ�ງກອນ ແລະ ຜູ້ຈ�ດການທ�ວໄປໃນ 

ພະແນກທຸລະກິດການທະນາຄານຂອງບໍລິສ�ດການເງິນ.

ທ�ານ ຊຶໂຢຊິ ຄິໂນຊິຕະ ໄດ້ເລ�ມເຮັດວຽກ ທ�ບໍລິສ�ດ NTT DATA Corporation  ໃນປະເທດຍ�ປຸ�ນ. ທ�ານໄດ້ມີສ�ວນຮ�ວມໃນການ ສ�ງເສີມ

ທຸລະກິດຕ�າງປະເທດ ແລະ ການເປີດສາຂາໃຫມ�ໃນປະເທດມາເລເຊຍ. ຫຼ�ງຈາກນ�ນ, ທ�ານໄດ້ເຂ�າຮ�ວມເຮັດວຽກກ�ບ ບໍລິສ�ດ 

Korn Ferry Hay Group Co., Ltd ແລະໄ ດ້ຮ�ບມອບຫມາຍໃຫ້ເປີດໂຕ Japan Desk ໃນປະເທດຈີນ. ທ�ານມີປະສ�ບການ ແລະ 

ປະສ�ບຜ�ນສ�າເລັດຫຼາຍຢ�າງ ບ�ວ�າການເປັນທ�ປຶກສາດ້ານບຸກຄະລາກອນ ແລະ ຕ�າແຫນ�ງໃນຄະນະຜູ້ບໍລິຫານ, ລວມທ�ງປະ

ສ�ບການການເຮັດວຽກທ� AON Hewitt China, ICMG, ແລະ PERSOLKELLY Consulting (APAC). ທ�ານໄດ້ເຂ�າ

ເຮັດວຽກນຳກຸ�ມບໍລິສ�ດ MARUHAN ໃນປີ 2021 ແລະ ປະຈຸບ�ນແມ�ນ ໄດ້ຮ�ບໜ້າທ�ເປັນຜູ້ຈ�ດການທ�ວໄປຝ�າຍ Strategic HR 

ຂອງບໍລິສ�ດການເງິນເຮົາ.

ສະມາຊິກສະພາຜູ້ບລິໍຫານ
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ຕົວແທນທາງການເງິນ
ຂອງທະນາຄານ 
MJ Sabai

ກັບເຄືອຂ່າຍທ່ີກຳລັງເຕີບໃຫຍ່
ຂະຫຍາຍຕົວທ່ົວປະເທດລາວ

ເອັມເຈສະດວກ
ຍອດຜູ້ໃຊ້ເພີ່ມຂ້ຶນ 75%, 
ເຊ່ິງເລ່ີມຈາກຜູ້ໃຊ້ 7,467 ຄົນຫາ 13,109 ຄົນ

ຖານລູກຄ້າ
ເພີ່ມຂ້ຶນ 42% ຫາ 26,000

ລາງວັນໃນປີ 2021

. ລາງວັນແຫ່ງທຸລະກິດອາຊຽນດີເດັ່ນແຫ່ງ ສປປ ລາວ: ເພື່ອນມິດ ສປປ ລາວ,

  ເພື່ອປະກອບສ່ວນເຂົ້າໃນ ເສດຖະກິດ ສປປ ລາວ
. ໄດ້ຮັບລາງວັນໃນຖານະຜູ້ນຳທຸລະກິດລະດັບສູງໃນການແກ້ໄຂບັນຫາ COVID-19 
ມອບໂດຍ LNCCI 
ໄດ້ຮັບລາງວັນ ບັດສະເໝືອນຈິງ ເດບິດ ມາດເຕີກາດ ຂອງທະນາຄານ ມາຣູຮານ
ເຈແປນລາວ ຂອງພວກເຮົາ ໃນຖານະ ເປັນບັດສະເໝອືນຈິງ ເດບິດ ມາດເຕີກາດ
ທ່ີດີທ່ີສຸດ ມອບໂດຍ Global Economics, ປະເທດອັງກິດ

. 

. ໄດ້ຮັບລາງວັນ ເປັນທະນາຄານການຄ້າທ່ີເຕີບໂຕໄວທ່ີສຸດ ມອບໂດຍ Global-

Economics, ປະເທດອັງກິດ

ຮ້ານຄ້າທ່ີເປີດນຳໃຊ້ຄິວອາ
3,224 ຮ້ານຄ້າ
ເພີ່ມຂ້ຶນ 86.6% ເມ່ືອທຽບໃສ່ປີ 2020

ຕົວແທນທາງການເງິນຂອງທະນາຄານ
MARUHAN Japan Bank Lao

Banking Agent

2021 ຈຸດເດັ່ນຂອງພວກເຮົາ
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ນະວັດຕະກຳໃໝ ່ທະນາຄານ ທ່ີດີທ່ີສຸດ
ທະນາຄານ ມາຣູຮານ ເຈແປນລາວ
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ສະມາຊິກຄະນະອຳນວຍການ

ທ່ານ ນາງ ສຸມາລີ ສີວຽງໄຊ
ຜູ້ຈັດການ

ຝາ່ຍກວດສອບພາຍໃນ

ທ່ານ ນາງ ໝອນຄຳ ໄຊບຸນເຮືອງ
ຫົວໜ້າຝາ່ຍ ບລິໍຫານຄວາມສ່ຽງ

ທ່ານ ນາງ ວິໄລວັນ ຫຼວງມູນນິນທອນ
ຜູ້ຈັດການຝາ່ຍລະບຽບການ

ຄະນະອຳນວຍການ

ກວດສອບພາຍໃນ

ທ່ານ Horace Arputhaselan
ຜູ້ຈັດການຝາ່ຍບລິໍຫານ

ຄຸນຄ່າທາງທຸລະກິດ

ທ່ານ Vijayakumar Subramaniam

ຜູ້ຈັດການຝາ່ຍບລິໍຫານ
ຂະບວນການທຸລະກິດດິຈິຕໍ

ທ່ານ Jacob John
ຜູ້ຈັດການ

ຝາ່ຍຂ�ມູນຂ່າວສານ

ທ່ານ ບຸນ ໄຊຍະລາດ
ຜູ້ຈັດການ

ຝາ່ຍຈັດຈຳໜ່າຍ

ພະແນກ ຝ່າຍບໍລິຫານ
ຄຸນຄ່າທາງທຸລະກິດ

ພະແນກ ບໍລິຫານ
ຂະບວນການ
ທຸລະກິດດິຈິຕໍ

ພະແນກ
ຂໍ້ມູນຂ່າວສານ

ພະແນກ
ຝ່າຍຈັດຈຳໜ່າຍ

ທ່ານ ສົມບັດ ດວງສົດສີ
ຜູ້ຈັດການຝາ່ຍສິນເຊ່ືອ

ແລະ ເກັບກູ້ໜີ້ສິນ

ທ່ານ ວລໍະສິດ ແສງກຸນ
ຜູ້ຈັດການຝາ່ຍບລິໍຫານ
ຊັບພະຍາກອນມະນຸດ

ທ່ານ ຟູຢີ້ ໂຄດປັນຍາ
ຜູ້ຈັດການຝາ່ຍກົດໝາຍ

ທ່ານ ສອນອຸໄທ ສຸຂະລິວົງ
ຜູ້ຈັດການຝາ່ຍການເງິນ

ພະແນກ ສິນເຊື່ອ
ແລະ ເກັບກູ້ໜີ້ສິນ

ພະແນກ ບໍລິຫານ
ຊັບພະຍາກອນມະນຸດ ພະແນກ ກົດໝາຍ ພະແນກ ການເງິນ

ພະແນກ ລະບຽບການ

---------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------- ----------------------------------------------
--

--
--

--
--

-

--------------------------------------------

--------------------------------

ຄະນະກຳມະການ
ບໍລິຫານ ຄວາມສ່ຽງ

ຄະນະກຳມະການ
ກວດສອບ

ຄະນະກຳມະການ
ບໍລິຫານ

ທ່ານ Anthony Chin
ຜູ້ອຳນວຍການໃຫຍ່

ທ່ານ Hayato Yoshitoshi
ຮອງຜູ້ອຳນວຍການໃຫຍ່

ພະແນກ
ບໍລິຫານ ຄວາມສ່ຽງ
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“Walking today amidst Tokyo’s bustling streets and skyscrapers. It is hard to believe that only 150 years ago it 
was little more than a provincial town. Even harder to think that in 1923 it was devastated by one of the century’s 
worst earthquake or that the city would soon afterwards feel the e ects of a disastrous war MARUHAN Japan 
Bank Lao has been one of the many Japanese success stories written during the period of reconstruction that 
followed horrors”.

Finally, as we review the seventh year of operation 
for MARUHAN Japan Bank Lao it seems like a good 
time to express my appreciation for all the support 
we’ve received during our seventh year of operation. 
My thanks go to the management and  of 
MARUHAN Japan Bank Lao for their commitment, 
dedication, and perseverance. 

I would also like to express, on behalf of MARUHAN 
Japan Bank Lao, our sincere gratitude to our 
customers for their invaluable patronage and to the 
Central Bank of Lao PDR and the Government of 
the Lao People’s Democratic Republic for their 
advice, guidance, and support. 

Dr.HAN,Chang-Woo
韓昌祐
Chairman
MARUHAN Group

I also remember my old days. My family was a 
farmer, and we were so poor that we could hardly 
live even one-day long. 60 years ago, I started a 
small business in the north countryside of Kyoto 
Prefecture in Japan. While the  capital was 
small, my business grew up, and now we became 
the comprehensive entertainment corporation, 
which has over 300 branches and 17 honorable golf 
courses and about 15,000 sta . As I have watched 
such MARUHAN’s interest grow and diversify, I have 
observed that every one of our successes can be 
attributed to Hungry Spirit and Challenging Spirit 
and ingrained commitment to excellence and I am 
proud to say that MARUHAN Japan Bank Lao’s 
commitment and performance of past seven years 
are continuing this trend.

Whether it is through our commitment to excellence, 
capacity building and the raising of standards, the 
expertise and resources we are delivering to 
Laotian people and people doing business in Lao 
PDR, or the work being done under our role-model 
CSR programs, I hope, and I am  that 
MARUHAN Japan Bank Lao will contribute to the 
growth of both Lao PDR and the ASEAN Region. 

Message from the Chairman

Dr. HAN, Chang-Woo
Chairman

MARUHAN Group

83

ຄຳເຫັນປະທານສະພາຜູ້ບໍລິຫານ

ທ່ານ ດຣ. ຮານ ຈາງ-ວູ
ປະທານກຸ່ມບໍລິສັດ ມາຣູຮານ

ຍ�າງເລາະລຽບຕາມຖະໜ�ນຫ�ນທາງທ�ຄຶກຄ�ກ ແລະ ຕຶກສູງສະຫງ�າງາມຂອງໂຕກຽວໃນປະຈຸບ�ນ. ບ�ໜ້າເຊ�ອເລີຍວ�າ 150 ປີທ�ຜ�ານມາ 
ມ�ນເປັນພຽງເມືອງນ້ອຍໆຂອງແຂວງເທ�ານ�ນ. ທ�ບ�ໜ້າເຊ�ອໄປກວ�ານ�ນ ແມ�ນໃນປີ 1923 ມ�ນໄດ້ຖືກທ�າລາຍໂດຍເຫດການແຜ�ນດິນໄຫວ 
ທ�ຮ້າຍແຮງທ�ສຸດໃນຮອບສະຕະວ�ດ ຫລື ເວ�າໄດ້ວ�າເມືອງນ�ປຽບດ�ງຖືກທຳລາຍລ້າງຈາກສ�ງຄາມອ�ນໂຫດຮ້າຍ. ທະນາຄານ 
ມາຣູຮານເຈແປນ ລາວ ກ�ແມ�ນຫນ�ງໃນຫຼາຍໆເລ�ອງເລ�າຂອງຄວາມສ�າເລັດທ�ຖືກຂຽນຂ�ນໃນລະຫວ�າງຂອງການຟ�ນຟູຈາກຫາຍຍະ 
ນະອ�ນໂຫດຮ້າຍເຫລ�ານ�ນ.

ຂ້າພະເຈ�າຍ�ງຈ�ດຈຳຄວາມຫລ�ງໄດ້ດີ. ຄອບຄ�ວຂອງຂ້າພະເຈ�າ
ແມ�ນເປັນຊາວກະສິກອນ ແລະ ພວກເຮົາມີຖານະທຸກຍາກ
ຫຼາຍຈ�ນເກືອບຈະຢູ�ບ�ໄດ້ຮອດມື�. 60 ປີກ�ອນ, ຂ້າພະເຈ�າໄດ້
ເລ�ມຕ�ນເຮັດທຸລະກິດຂະຫນາດນ້ອຍໃນເຂດຊ�ນນະບ�ດທາງ
ເຫນືອຂອງແຂວງກຽວໂຕໃນຍ�ປຸ�ນ. ໃນເມ�ອເງິນທຶນກ້ອນທຳອິດ 
ແມ�ນມີຈຳນວນໜ້ອຍແຕ�ທຸລະກິດຂອງຂ້າພະເຈ�າກ�ໄດ້ຂະ 
ຫຍາຍໂຕຂ�ນ ແລະ ຕອນນ�ພວກເຮົາກາຍເປັນກຸ�ມບໍລິສ�ດການ
ບ�ນເທີງທ�ສ�ມບູນແບບ ເຊ�ງມີຫຼາຍກວ�າ 314 ສາຂາ ແລະ ມີສະ
ໜາມກ໊ອຟ 18 ແຫ�ງ ຊ�ງມີພະນ�ກງານທ�ງໝ�ດປະມານ 
21,000ຄ�ນ. ດ�ງທ�ຂ້າພະເຈ�າໄດ້ເຫັນການເຕີບໃຫຍ�ຂະຫຍາຍ
ໂຕ ຂອງກຸ�ມບໍລິສ�ດມາຣູຮານ ຂ້າພະເຈ�າ ສ�ງເກດເຫັນວ�າທຸກໆ
 ຄວາມສາໍເລັດຂອງພວກເຮົາສາມາດເປັນໄປໄດ້ດ້ວຍຈິດວິນ 
ຍານທ�ຫິວໂຫຍ ຈິດໃຈທ�ທ້າທາຍ ແລະ ຄວາມມຸ້ງໝ�ນອ�ນແຮງ
ກ້າທ�ຈະນຳພາໄປສູ�ຄວາມເປັນເລີດ ຂ້າພະເຈ�າພາກພູມໃຈທ�
ຈະເວ�າວ�າໄດ້ວ�າຄວາມມຸ�ງໜ�ນ ແລະ ຜ�ນການດຳເນີນງານ
ຂອງ ທະນາຄານ ມາຣູຮານ ເຈແປນ ລາວ ຕະຫລອດ 9 ປີທ�
ຜ�ານມາແມ�ນກຳລ�ງກ້າວໄປໃນທິດທາງທ�ດີນ�.

ສຸດທ້າຍນ�, ເມ�ອພວກເຮົາເບ�ງຄືນ ປີທີ 9 ຂອງການດ�າເນີນງານ
ຂອງ ທະນາຄານ ມາຣູຮານ ເຈແປນ ລາວ, ມ�ນອາດຈະເປັນ
ເວລາທ�ດີ ທ�ຂ້າພະເຈ�າຈະສະແດງຄວາມຮູ້ບຸນຄຸນສ�າລ�ບທຸກໆ
 ການສະຫນ�ບສະຫນູນ ທ�ພວກເຮົາໄດ້ຮ�ບຕະຫຼອດໄລຍະ
ເວລາ 9 ປີທ�ຜ�ານມາ. ຂໍຂອບໃຈ ມາຍ�ງຄະນະຜູ້ບໍລິຫານ ແລະ
ພະນ�ກງານຂອງ ຂອງ ທະນາຄານ ມາຣູຮານ ເຈແປນ ລາວສຳ 
ລ�ບຄວາມມຸ�ງໝ�ນ, ຄວາມທຸ�ມເທ ແລະ ຄວາມມານະພະຍາ 
ຍາມ ຂອງພວກເຂົາ.

ຂ້າພະເຈ�າຕາງໜ້າໃຫ້ ທະນາຄານ ມາຣູຮານ ເຈແປນ ລາວ ຂໍ
ສະແດງຄວາມຮູ້ບຸນຄຸນຢ�າງສູງມາຍ�ງບ�ນດາລູກຄ້າຂອງພວກ
ເຮົາທ�ໃຫ້ການສະໜ�ບສະໜຸນສະເໝີມາ, ຂໍສະແດງຄວາມ
ຂອບໃຈຢ�າງສຸດຊ�ງມາຍ�ງທະນາຄານແຫ�ງຊາດລາວ ແລະ 
ລ�ດຖະບານ ແຫ�ງ ສປປ ລາວ ສຳລ�ບ ຄຳແນະນຳ, ຊ�ນຳ ແລະ
ການສະໜ�ບສະໜຸນຈາກພວກເພ�ນ.

ທ�ານ. ດຣ. ຮານ ຈາງ-ວູ
ຜູ້ກ�ຕ�ງ ແລະ ປະທານສະພາຜູ້ບໍລິຫານ ກຸ�ມບໍລິສ�ດ ມາຣູຮານ

ບ�ວ�າຈະເປັນຄວາມມຸ�ງໝ�ນສູ�ຄວາມເປັນເລີດ, ການສ້າງຄວາມ
ສາມາດ ແລະ ການຍ�ກລະດ�ບມາດຕະຖານ, ຄວາມຊຳນິຊຳ 
ນານ ແລະ ລາຍຮ�ບ ທ�ພວກເຮົາກ�າລ�ງສ�ງຕ�ໃຫ້ຄ�ນລາວ ແລະ 
ຜູ້ທ�ດຳເນີນທຸລະກິດ ໃນ ສປປ ລາວ ຫືຼ ວຽກງານທ�ກຳລ�ງດຳເນີນ
ໄປພາຍໃຕ້ ໂຄງການແບບຢ�າງ CSR. ຂ້າພະເຈ�າຫວ�ງຢ�າງຍ�ງ
ວ�າ ທະນາຄານ ມາຣູຮານ ເຈແປນ ລາວ ຈະໄດ້ປະກອບສ�ວນ
ຊຸກຍູ້ ໃນການເຕີບໃຫຍ�ຂະຫຍາຍໂຕ ທ�ງພາຍໃນ ສປປ ລາວ 
ແລະ ພາກພ�ນອາຊຽນ.
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Sabaidee Thouk Khon!

year (FY) 2020 to 2022. I would like to continue with an update of our second-year transformation, 
FY2021. FY2021 had been a very challenging year with the severe global impact of CoVID-19 in its 

Laos has not been spared. 

Given this situation, what do we do? 

We focused on strengthening our foundation and investing for the future, to grow responsibly and 
sustainable, summed up by three key pillars:  

1. Systems. On the technology front, we strengthened our internal capabilities by embarking on our 
core banking system upgrade, a major project across the bank. We also developed numerous innova
tive solutions. These enhances our products, services, and speed to market.  

2. Process. We continue to focus strongly on customers, by automating processes and streamlining 
operations. We have taken direct feedback from consumers, businesses and partners. In collaboration 
with our partners, we developed capabilities to provide better services and embed ourselves into the 
lifestyle of our customers and community. Under the auspices of BOL, we have innovated a new 
channel and service called MJ Sabai (Agency Banking). This combines our innovative digital capabili

banking services to the unbanked and underbanked segment. We continue to innovate on our prod
ucts and services by enabling more services online. Customers can also apply online or access to 
online banking for SME and corporate.

3. People. Our greatest asset. We are pleased to focus on substantially investing and grooming inter
nal talents for their career development. Over the last one year, we have promoted many local 
employees into senior leadership roles, including CFO & CRO. The bank has invested substantial 
resources into grooming our next generation leaders. This augurs well for our sustainability agenda 
of MJBL. 

MARUHAN Japan Bank Lao

ສະບາຍດີ ທຸກຄ�ນ!

ປີທ�ຜ�ານມາ, ຂ້າພະເຈ�າໄດ້ມີໂອກາດ ອະທິບາຍແຜນການຫ�ນປ�ຽນຍຸດທະສາດ 3 ປີ ຂອງພວກເຮົາ ຈາກສ�ກປີ 2020 ຫາ 2022. ຂ້າພະເຈ�າຂໍສືບ
ຕ�ລາຍງານແຜນການຫ�ນປ�ຽນຍຸດທະສາດ ປີທີ 2 (ສ�ກປີ 2021)ຂອງພວກເຮົາຕ�ມ. ສ�ກປີ 2021 ເປັນປີທ�ທ້າທາຍຫຼາຍ ຍ້ອນຜ�ນກະທ�ບຂອງໂລກ
ລະບາດໂຄວິດ-19 ທ�ມາເປັນຮອບທີ 2 ແລະ ທ ີ3 ລວມທ�ງການແປປວນໃໝ�ຫຼາຍຢ�າງເກີດຂ�ນ ເຊ�ງໄດ້ສ�ງຜ�ນກະທ�ບໄປທ�ວໂລກ. ສ�ງດ�ງກ�າວໄດ້
ສ�ງຜ�ນກະທ�ບຕ�ຊີວິດການເປັນຢູ�ຂອງທຸກຄ�ນ, ຕ�ເສດຖະກິດ, ສ�ງຄ�ມ ແລະ ສຸຂະພາບ ຊ�ງປະເທດລາວແມ�ນລວມຢູ�ໃນນ�ນເຊ�ນກ�ນ.

ຕ�ກ�ບສະຖານະການເຫລ�ານ�, ຕ້ອງເຮັດແນວໃດ?

ພວກເຮົາໄດ້ສຸມໃສ�ສ້າງຄວາມເຂ�ມແຂງໃຫ້ແກ�ພ�ນຖານໂຄງລ�າງ ແລະ ການລ�ງທຶນເພ�ອອະນາຄ�ດ ເພ�ອການເຕີບໃຫຍ�ຢ�າງຍືນຍ�ງ ແລະ ມີຄວາມ
ຮ�ບຜິດຊອບ ໂດຍລວມເປັນ 3 ຫ�ວຂ�ຫລ�ກທ�ສຳຄ�ນ ດ�ງນ�:

1. ລະບ�ບຕ�າງໆ, ໃນດ້ານເຕັກໂນໂລຢີ, ພວກເຮົາໄດ້ປ�ບປຸງຄວາມອາດສາມາດພາຍໃນຂອງພວກເຮົາໂດຍເລ�ມຈາກການຍ�ກລະດ�ບລະບ�ບທະ 
ນາຄານທ�ເຮົາໃຊ້ຢູ� ຊ�ງມ�ນເປັນໂຄງການຫລ�ກພາຍໃນທ�ວທະນາຄານເຮົາ. ພວກເຮົາຍ�ງໄດ້ພ�ດທະນາທາງອອກທ�ເປັນນະວ�ດຕະກ�າຈ�ານວນ
ຫລາຍ. ສ�ງເຫຼ�ານ�ແມ�ນໄດ້ສ�ງເສີມໃຫ້ຜະລິດຕະພ�ນ, ການບໍລິການ ແລະ ຄວາມວ�ອງໄວ ຂອງພວກເຮົາອອກສູ�ຕະຫຼາດຢ�າງມີຄຸນນະພາບ.

2. ຂ�ນຕອນທຸລະກຳຕ�າງໆ, ພວກເຮົາໃຫ້ຄວາມສຳຄ�ນຕ�ລູກຄ້າສະເໝີມາ, ໂດຍການຕ�ດຂ�ນຕອນໃຫ້ເປັນແບບອ�ດຕະໂນມ�ດ ແລະ ເພ�ມປະສິດ 
ທິພາບຂອງການດ�າເນີນການໃຫ້ງ�າຍຂ�ນ. ພວກເຮົາໄດ້ເອົາຄ�າຕິຊ�ມໂດຍກ�ງຈາກລູກຄ້າ, ຫ�ວໜ�ວຍທຸລະກິດ ແລະ ຄູ�ຮ�ວມທຸລະກິດເຮົາເອງ. ໃນ
ການຮ�ວມມືກ�ບຄູ�ຮ�ວມທຸລະກິດ, ພວກເຮົາໄດ້ເພ�ມຂີດຄວາມສາມາດໃນການສະຫນອງການບໍລິການທ�ດີກວ�າ ແລະ ເອົາໂຕເຮົາເຂ�າໄປຢູ�ໃນວິຖີຊີ 
ວິດຂອງລູກຄ້າ ແລະ ສ�ງຄ�ມ. ດ້ວຍການຊ�ວຍເຫລືອ ຂອງ ທະນາຄານແຫ�ງຊາດລາວ, ພວກເຮົາໄດ້ຄິດຄ�ນຊ�ອງທາງ ແລະ ການບໍລິການໃໝ�ອອກ
ມາ ຊ�ງເອ�ນວ�າ MJ Sabai (Agency Banking). ຊ�ງສ�ງນ�ແມ�ນໄດ້ລວມເອົາຄວາມເປັນດິຈິຕອລ ຊ�ງເປັນນະວ�ດຕະກຳຂອງພວກເຮົາບວກກ�ບ 
ຄວາມມຸ້ງຫວ�ງຂອງພວກເຮົາທ�ຈະຮ�ວມມືໃນການສ�ງເສີມທຸລະກິດ MSME ເຂ�າດ້ວຍກ�ນ. ຍ�ງໄປກວ�ານ�ນ, ກ�ເພ�ອຊຸກຍູ້ສ�ງເສີມຜູ້ປະກອບການ
ດ້ານການເງິນ ແລະ ຂະຫຍາຍການບໍລິການໄປຍ�ງບ�ນດາແຂວງຕ�າງໆ. ຮ້ານຄ້າຕ�າງໆເຮັດໃຫ້ພວກເຮົາສາມາດໃຫ້ບໍລິການທາງດ້ານການເງິນ 
ແລະ ການທະນາຄານໃຫ້ກ�ບຜູ້ທ�ບ�ໄດ້ໃຊ້ທະນາຄານ ແລະ ຜູ້ທ�ກຳລ�ງຄິດຈະໃຊ້ທະນາຄານ. ພວກເຮົາໄດ້ສ້າງສ�ນສ�ງໃໝ�ກ�ຽວກ�ບຜະລິດຕະພ�ນ 
ແລະ ການບໍລິການຂອງສະເໝີມາໂດຍການເປີດການນຳໃຊ້ບໍລິການອອນໄລນ໌ໃຫ້ຫຼາຍຂ�ນ. ລູກຄ້າຍ�ງສາມາດສະຫມ�ກສິນເຊ�ອ SME ແບບ
ອອນໄລນ໌ ຫຼື ລູກຄ້າບໍລິສ�ດກ�ສາມາດນ�າໃຊ້ທະນາຄານແບບອອນໄລນ໌ ໄດ້ເຊ�ນກ�ນ.

3. ພະນ�ກງານ, ກ�ຄືຊ�ບສ�ມບ�ດທ�ສຳຄ�ນທ�ສຸດຂອງພວກເຮົາ. ພວກເຮົາມີຄວາມຍິນດີທ�ຈະໃຫ້ຄວາມສຳຄ�ນໃນການລ�ງທຶນ ແລະ ຝຶກອ�ບຮ�ມໃຫ້
ແກ�ຜູ້ທ�ມີສາມາດໂດດເດ�ນພາຍໃນອ�ງກອນເພ�ອເປັນການພ�ດທະນາອາຊີບຂອງເຂົາເຈ�າ. ໃນໄລຍະຫນ�ງປີທ�ຜ�ານມາ, ພວກເຮົາໄດ້ຊຸກຍູ້ໃຫ້
ພະນ�ກງານພາຍໃນຈ�ານວນຫຼາຍໃຫ້ໄດ້ຮ�ບພາລະບ�ດບາດໃນລະດ�ບຫ�ວໜ້າ ລວມທ�ງຫ�ວໜ້າຝ�າຍການເງິນ ແລະ ຫ�ວໜ້າຝ�າຍບໍລິຫານຄວາມ
ສ�ຽງ. ທະນາຄານໄດ້ໃຊ້ຊ�ບພະຍາກອນຈຳນວນຫລາຍເຂ�າໃນການຝຶກອ�ບຮ�ມຜູ້ນ�າຮຸ�ນຕ�ໄປຂອງພວກເຮົາ. ສ�ງນ�ເປັນຜ�ນດີຕ�ໂຄງການຄວາມຍືນ
ຍ�ງຂອງ MJBL.

ຜູ້ອຳນວຍການໃຫຍ່
ທ່ານ ແອນໂທນີ ຊິນ

Sabaidee Thouk Khon!

year (FY) 2020 to 2022. I would like to continue with an update of our second-year transformation, 
FY2021. FY2021 had been a very challenging year with the severe global impact of CoVID-19 in its 

Laos has not been spared. 

Given this situation, what do we do? 

We focused on strengthening our foundation and investing for the future, to grow responsibly and 
sustainable, summed up by three key pillars:  

1. Systems. On the technology front, we strengthened our internal capabilities by embarking on our 
core banking system upgrade, a major project across the bank. We also developed numerous innova
tive solutions. These enhances our products, services, and speed to market.  

2. Process. We continue to focus strongly on customers, by automating processes and streamlining 
operations. We have taken direct feedback from consumers, businesses and partners. In collaboration 
with our partners, we developed capabilities to provide better services and embed ourselves into the 
lifestyle of our customers and community. Under the auspices of BOL, we have innovated a new 
channel and service called MJ Sabai (Agency Banking). This combines our innovative digital capabili

banking services to the unbanked and underbanked segment. We continue to innovate on our prod
ucts and services by enabling more services online. Customers can also apply online or access to 
online banking for SME and corporate.

3. People. Our greatest asset. We are pleased to focus on substantially investing and grooming inter
nal talents for their career development. Over the last one year, we have promoted many local 
employees into senior leadership roles, including CFO & CRO. The bank has invested substantial 
resources into grooming our next generation leaders. This augurs well for our sustainability agenda 
of MJBL. 

ຄຳເຫັນຂອງຜູ້ບລິໍຫານຂ້ັນສູງ
9
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MARUHAN Japan Bank Lao

ພວກເຮົາໄດ້ໃຫ້ການສ�ງເສີມຂະແຫນງການ MSME ໃນຊ�ວງເວລາທ�ຫຍຸ້ງຍາກຈາກການແຜ�ລະບາດໃຫຍ�ຂອງໂລກ. MJBL ໄດ້ເຂ�າຮ�ວມໂຄງ
ການສະໜອງທຶນໃຫ້ແກ� SME ເຊ�ນ: ໂຄງການສະໜອງທຶນໃຫ້ແກ�ຫ�ວໜ�ວຍທຸລະກິດຂະໜາດນ້ອຍ ແລະ ກາງ ໂດຍຜ�ານກ�ມສ�ງເສີມທຸລະກິດ
ຂະໜາດນ້ອຍ ແລະ ກາງ (DOSMEP). ທະນາຄານໄດ້ຮ�ບເງິນກູ້ຈຳນວນ 51 ຕ�ກີບຈາກໂຄງການເພ�ອສະໜອງເງິນກູ້ໃຫ້ແກ�ລູກຄ້າໃນເຂດບຸລິ
ມະສິດຂອງລ�ດຖະບານໃນອ�ດຕາດອກເບ້ຍ 3% ຕ�ປີ. ນອກຈາກນ�ນ, ທະນາຄານຂອງພວກເຮົາຍ�ງເຂ�າຮ�ວມໂຄງການຊ�ວຍເຫຼືອຂອງລ�ດຖະບານ
ເພ�ອແກ້ໄຂບ�ນດາຫ�ວໜ�ວຍທຸລະກິດທ�ໄດ້ຮ�ບຜ�ນກະທ�ບຈາກການລະບາດຂອງພະຍາດໂຄວິດ-19 ແລະ ກູ້ຢືມເງິນຈາກສາທາລະນະລ�ດປະຊາ
ຊ�ນຈີນ (CDB) ທ�ສະໜອງເງິນກູ້ໃຫ້ແກ�ຫ�ວໜ�ວຍທຸລະກິດຕາມບູລິມະສິດຂອງລ�ດຖະບານ. ພວກເຮົາຂໍຂອບໃຈກະຊວງອຸດສາຫະກຳ ແລະ ການ
ຄ້າ ແລະ ທະນາຄານໂລກ ທ�ໄດ້ຄ�ດເລືອກເອົາ MJBL ເປັນ 1ໃນ 5 ໃນກຸ�ມທະນາຄານ ໃນ ສປປ ລາວ ເພ�ອຊ�ວຍສະໜອງທຶນຮອນໃຫ້ແກ�ຫ�ວໜ�ວຍ
ທຸລະກິດໃຫ້ກ້າວຜ�ານຜ�ນກະທ�ບຂອງການລະບາດໂຄວິດ-19. ຊ�ງສ�ງນ�ແມ�ນໄດ້ຊ�ວຍໃຫ້ຫ�ວໜ�ວຍທຸລະກິດຂະຫນາດນ້ອຍໄດ້ມີໂອກາດເຂ�າເຖິງ
ການເງິນ, ການໃຫ້ຄ�າປຶກສາ ແລະ ການຝຶກອ�ບຮ�ມ ເຮັດໃຫ້ເຈ�າຂອງທຸລະກິດຂະຫນາດນ້ອຍມີຄວາມສາມາດໃນການຊ�າລະ ແລະ ການເສີມສ້າງ
ລະບ�ບນິເວດດິຈິຕອນ SME (SME digital ecosystem) ຂອງພວກເຮົາໃຫ້ເຂ�ມແຂງ.

ນອກຈາກຄວາມຍືນຍ�ງດ້ານການເງິນສຳລ�ບສ�ງຄ�ມເຮົາແລ້ວ, ວາລະຄວາມຍືນຍ�ງຂອງພວກເຮົາຍ�ງຂະຫຍາຍໄປສູ�ຂ�ງເຂດທ�ກວ້າງກວ�າ ຊ�ງລວມ
ໄປເຖິງສະພາບແວດລ້ອມ ແລະ ຄ�ນ. ນອກຈາກນ�ນ, ພວກເຮົາຍ�ງໄດ້ປ�ອຍສິນເຊ�ອລ�ດໄຟຟ້າໃຫ້ແກ�ລູກຄ້ານຳ ເຊ�ງພວກເຮົາສາມາດເຫັນໄດ້ວ�າ 
ເປັນເລ�ອງຂ້ອນຂ້າງສຳຄ�ນແລ້ວໃນສະພາບເສດຖະກິດປະຈຸບ�ນ. ພາຍໃນອ�ງກອນຂອງເຮົາແມ�ນພວກເຮົາໄດ້ຫ�ດຜ�ອນການປ�ອຍອາຍກາກໂບນິກ
ໃນຫ້ອງການໂດຍການຫ�ດຜ�ອນການພິມເຈ້ຍໃຊ້ເຈ້ຍໃຫ້ໜ້ອຍລ�ງ ແລະ ຫ�ນໄປສູ�ດິຈິຕອລ. ພວກເຮົາຍ�ງຄ�ງສືບຕ�ເສີມຂະຫຍາຍວາລະທ�ສຳຄ�ນນ�
ໃນປີ 2022 ແລະ ປີຕ�ໆໄປ.

ໃນດ້ານຜ�ນປະກອບການ, ທະນາຄານແມ�ນຍ�ງສືບຕ�ສຸມໃສ�ການຂະຫຍາຍສິນເຊ�ອ ຊ�ງບ�ນລຸໄດ້ 99,4% ແລະ ຍອດເງິນຝາກບ�ນລຸໄດ້ 102,5% 
ຂອງແຜນການ. ເພ�ອເປັນການສ�ງເສີມບຸກຄ�ນ ແລະ MSME ໃຫ້ຟ�ນຕ�ວຈາກຜ�ນກະທ�ບຂອງໂລກລະບາດ, MJBL ໄດ້ສະໜອງໂຄງການບ�ນເທົາ
ທຸກດ້ານການເງິນໃຫ້ແກ�ລູກຄ້າທ�ໄດ້ຮ�ບຜ�ນກະທ�ບຈາກການລະບາດຂອງພະຍາດໂຄວິດ-19, ໂດຍມີລູກຄ້າທ�ໄດ້ຮ�ບສິດທ�ງໝ�ດ 404 ຄ�ນ. ດ�ງ 
ທ�ໄດ້ລາຍງານໃນປີກາຍນ�, ພວກເຮົາຢູ�ໃນໂຄງການຫ�ນປ�ຽນຍຸດທະສາດ 3 ປີ ແລະ ພວກເຮົາຍ�ງຄ�ງສືບຕ� ລ�ງທຶນໃນເຕັກໂນໂລຢີ, ຜະລິດຕະ
ພ�ນ ແລະ ສ�ງອຳນວຍຄວາມສະດວກຕ�າງໆ. ອີງຕາມແຜນການງ�ບປະມານ ພວກເຮົາໄດ້ຂາດທຶນອີກປີໜ�ງ. ເຖິງຢ�າງໃດກ�ຕາມ, ຕອນນ�ແຜນ 
ການ 3 ປີ ໄດ້ຮ�ກສາໝາກຜ�ນໄວ້ເກີນຄາດ, ພວກເຮົາໄດ້ສ້າງຜ�ນກ�າໄລທ�າອິດໃຫ້ແກ�ອ�ງກອນໃນເດືອນມ�ງກອນ 2022 ນ�.

ເຖິງວ�າຈະມີສ�ງທ້າທາຍໃນຫລາຍດ້ານແຕ�ໃນນ�ນກ�ຍ�ງມີສ�ງດີໆຢູ�, ຂ້າພະເຈ�າຍິນດີທ�ຈະແບ�ງປ�ນຈຸດເດ�ນຂອງຜ�ນສ�າເລັດຂອງພວກເຮົາໃນສ�ກປີ 
2021 ໃຫ້ທຸກທ�ານຟ�ງ. ບາງຈຸດເດ�ນທ�ສຳຄ�ນໃນແຜນຍຸດທະສາດຂອງພວກເຮົາກ�ຽວກ�ບ ຄວາມນ�າເຊ�ອຖື, ການຖືລູກຄ້າເປັນສູນກາງ & ດິຈິ 
ຕອລ ແລະ ການເປີດໂຕທ�ປະສ�ບຜ�ນສ�າເລັດ (ລວມທ�ງຫຼາຍໆສ�ງທ�ເປັນຄ�ງທ�າອິດໃນ ສປປ ລາວ):

   • ຖານລູກຄ້າຂອງພວກເຮົາໄດ້ເພ�ມຂ�ນເຖິງ 42% ເປັນໂຕເລກ 26,000.
   • ໄດ້ຊະນະລາງວ�ນ ແອັບມືຖືດີເດ�ນ, ເອັມເຈ ສະດວກ ມີຍອດຜູ້ໃຊ້ ເພ�ມຂ�ນເຖິງ 75%.
   • ຍອດຮ້ານຄ້າ QR ຂອງພວກເຮົາເພ�ມຂ�ນເຖິງ 87%.
   • ພາຍໃຕ້ການສະໜ�ບສະໜຸນຂອງກະຊວງສາທາລະນະສຸກ, ພວກເຮົາໄດ້ເປີດໂຕກອງທຶນ ວິຣະບູລຸດ (Vira-Bu-Loud) ເພ�ອໃຫ້ທຸກຄ�ນສາ 
   ມາດບໍລິຈາກ ເພ�ອສະໜ�ບສະໜຸນພະນ�ກງານແຖວໜ້າ ແລະ ອາສາສະໝ�ກ ໃນໄລຍະການລະບາດຂອງພະຍາດ COVID-19.

   ພວກເຮົາຂໍສະແດງຄວາມຂອບໃຈສຳລ�ບໃບຍ້ອງຍໍດ�ງລຸ�ມນ�:
   • ລາງວ�ນຈາກ ASEAN Business Awards: ລາງວ�ນພິເສດ - ເພ�ອມິດຂອງປະເທດລາວ, ຈາກການປະກອບສ�ວນຕ�າງໆຂອງພວກເຮົາ
   ໃຫ້ປະເທດລາວ.
   • ລາງວ�ນ ຈາກສະພາການຄ້າ ແລະ ອຸດສະຫະກຳແຫ�ງຊາດລາວ ສຳລ�ບ ການເປັນຜູ້ນຳຫ�ວໜ�ວຍທຸລະກິດທ�ໃຫ້ການຕອບສະຫນອງ 
   ຕ� COVID-19 ໄດ້ດີ.
   • ລາງວ�ນ ບ�ດເດບິດສະເໝືອນຈິງດີເດ�ນ (MJBL Virtual Debit MasterCard) ຈາກ Global Economics, UK.
   • ລາງວ�ນ ທະນາຄານທຸກລະກິດທ�ຂະຫຍາຍໂຕໄວທ�ສຸດ ຈາກ Global Economics, UK. 

We are committed to support MSME sector beyond the challenging time from the global pandemic. 

and medium-sized business units through the Department of Small and Medium Business Promotion 
(DOSMEP). The bank received a total of 51 billion kip from the project to provide loans to customers in 
the priority areas of the government at an interest rate of 3% per annum. In addition, our bank partici-

to borrow money from the People's Republic of China (CDB) which provides loans to business entities 
in accordance with government priorities. We are grateful to the Ministry of Industry and Commerce & 

and strengthening our SME digital ecosystem. 

larger scope including environment and people. Moreover, we have also embarked on Electric Vehicles 

-

99.4% and deposits achieved 102.5% of the plan. To support individuals and MSME to recover from the 

CoVID19 outbreak, with a total of 404 eligible customers. As reported last year, we are on a three-year 
turnaround program, and we continued to invest in technology, platform, and capabilities. Per plan, we 
recorded another year of losses. However, we have now turned the corner ahead of our three-year plan, 

On a positive note, notwithstanding the challenges, I am pleased to share highlights of our achieve-
ments in FY2021. Some key highlights on our strategic agenda on Trust, Customer-centricity & Digital 

• Our customer base increased by 42% to 26,000. 
• Our award-winning mobile banking app, MJ Saduak, has grown by 75%.
• Our QR merchant base grew by 87%. 
• Under the auspices of Ministry of Health, launched our Vira-Bu-Loud (Hero) fund where people can 
donate to support frontliners & volunteers during the pandemic of CoVID-19.

We are thankful for a few recognitions:  
• Awarded by the ASEAN Business Awards: Special Award – Friend of Laos, for our contribution to Lao 
PDR.
• Awarded by LNCCI as Top Business Leader in response to CoVID-19.
• Awarded for our MJBL Virtual Debit MasterCard as Best New Virtual Debit Card by Global Economics, 
UK.
• Awarded as Fastest Growing Commercial Bank by Global Economics, UK.

We are committed to support MSME sector beyond the challenging time from the global pandemic. 

and medium-sized business units through the Department of Small and Medium Business Promotion 
(DOSMEP). The bank received a total of 51 billion kip from the project to provide loans to customers in 
the priority areas of the government at an interest rate of 3% per annum. In addition, our bank partici

to borrow money from the People's Republic of China (CDB) which provides loans to business entities 
in accordance with government priorities. We are grateful to the Ministry of Industry and Commerce & 

and strengthening our SME digital ecosystem. 

larger scope including environment and people. Moreover, we have also embarked on Electric Vehicles 

99.4% and deposits achieved 102.5% of the plan. To support individuals and MSME to recover from the 

CoVID19 outbreak, with a total of 404 eligible customers. As reported last year, we are on a three-year 
turnaround program, and we continued to invest in technology, platform, and capabilities. Per plan, we 
recorded another year of losses. However, we have now turned the corner ahead of our three-year plan, 
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ments in FY2021. Some key highlights on our strategic agenda on Trust, Customer-centricity & Digital 

• Our customer base increased by 42% to 26,000. 
• Our award-winning mobile banking app, MJ Saduak, has grown by 75%.
• Our QR merchant base grew by 87%. 
• Under the auspices of Ministry of Health, launched our Vira-Bu-Loud (Hero) fund where people can 
donate to support frontliners & volunteers during the pandemic of CoVID-19.

We are thankful for a few recognitions:  
• Awarded by the ASEAN Business Awards: Special Award – Friend of Laos, for our contribution to Lao 
PDR.
• Awarded by LNCCI as Top Business Leader in response to CoVID-19.
• Awarded for our MJBL Virtual Debit MasterCard as Best New Virtual Debit Card by Global Economics, 
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• Awarded as Fastest Growing Commercial Bank by Global Economics, UK.
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In FY2022, as we gear up for the third year of this strategic transformation, we will streamline the 
organization to be agile. We will continue to engage our team to be able to grow and to deliver 

single-mindedness approach of team spirit & collaboration. We are committed to ensure the 
successful implementation of our transformation program. 

In closing, I thank our shareholders and board of directors for their continued guidance and 
wisdom, regulators for their leadership and support of commercial banks, customers, and business 
partners for their support and trust in giving us an opportunity to serve them. And our prized assets, 

Khopjai lai-lai! 

“What our mind conceives, we can achieve”

Anthony Chin

MARUHAN Japan Bank Lao Co., Ltd
#BankforAll 

Overview of Laos’ Economy in 2021 and forecast for 2022

Overall Financial Stability 2021

continues to depreciate, and the country retains limited foreign exchange reserves. Despite better 
performance in 2021 than the previous year, implementation of revenue collection failed to meet 

non-tax sources. Meanwhile, an experiment to collect revenue from cryptocurrency mining opera
tions and exchanges still faces a number of challenges.

Lao Economic Trends 2022

The economy of Laos is expected to grow by 4.0% in 2022, provided that key economic sectors are 
able to maintain growth close to that of the previous year, while the reopening of the country to 
tourism should help the service sector recover at a faster pace.

Summarize the results of business operations in 2021

By 2021, the Bank continued to focus on credit expansion, which reached 99.4% and deposits 
achieved 102.5% of the plan, although lending and deposit mobilization will go according to plan, 

from April 2021 onwards, the business unit has closed down due to a lockdown. Although the bank 

ers who do not receive this policy. At the end of the year, the NPL rate was 4.4% higher than the stan

the banks’ loss was 36.47 billion kip, of which operating loss covered for 37%, from credit loss 
covered for 28%, and 35% was loss from depreciation of kip (FX loss).

Deposit
account, Savings and Fixed Deposit Accounts. Through many channels, whether it is to open an 
account through the counter and through the bank's application MJ Saduak, open a digital account 
at the World Trade Center without paper, through agency banking (MJ Sabai), By the end of 2021, 
the Bank's deposit balance increased by 213.11 billion Kip (41.42%) from 514.57 billion Kip (2020) to 
727.68 billion Kip, with a total of 22,639 deposit customers, an increase of 12.79% compared to the 
previous year.

Loan
especially vehicle loans, housing loans, business loans, personal loans and other loans. The bank was 
able to increase the total number of 595 loan customers from 3,328 (2020) to 3,923 accounts with a 
total net credit increase of 211.84 billion Kip (40.36%) from 524.95 billion Kip (2020) to 736.73 billion 
Kip.

Borrowing: 
Thailand $20 million, and renewed a loan agreement from First Commercial Bank of Vientiane for 24 
billion kip, while a loan from the Bank of the Lao PDR of 9.3 billion kip in 2020 is a long-term agree
ment unchanged.

Increase of registered capital:

In FY2022, as we gear up for the third year of this strategic transformation, we will streamline the 
organization to be agile. We will continue to engage our team to be able to grow and to deliver 

single-mindedness approach of team spirit & collaboration. We are committed to ensure the 
successful implementation of our transformation program. 

In closing, I thank our shareholders and board of directors for their continued guidance and 
wisdom, regulators for their leadership and support of commercial banks, customers, and business 
partners for their support and trust in giving us an opportunity to serve them. And our prized assets, 

Khopjai lai-lai! 

“What our mind conceives, we can achieve”

Anthony Chin

MARUHAN Japan Bank Lao Co., Ltd
#BankforAll 
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ໃນສ�ກປີ 2022,  ພວກເຮົາແມ�ນກຳລ�ງກຽມພ້ອມເຂ�າສູ� ປີທີ 3 ຂອງການຫ�ນປ�ຽນຍຸດທະສາດ, ພວກເຮົາຈະປ�ບປຸງໂຄງຮ�າງການຈ�ດຕ�ງໃຫ້ມີຄວາມ
ສອດຄ�ອງລ�ງໂຕ. ພວກເຮົາຈະມີສ�ວນຮ�ວມກ�ບທີມງານຂອງພວກເຮົາຕ�ໄປ ເພ�ອໃຫ້ເຂົາເຈ�າພ�ດທະນາ ແລະ ສ້າງຜ�ນການດຳເນີນງານ ແລະ ນຳມາ
ຊ�ງຜ�ນກ�າໄລທ�ຍືນຍ�ງ. ສ�ງເຫຼ�ານ�ແມ�ນສອດຄ�ອງກ�ບແຜນການດຳເນີນງານຂອງພວກເຮົາ ແລະ ເປັນແນວທາງຄວາມຄິດຈິດໃຈດຽວ & ການຮ�ວມ 
ມືກ�ນໃນທີມງານ. ພວກເຮົາມຸ�ງຫມ�ນທ�ສ້າງຄວາມໝ�ນໃຈວ�າການຫ�ນປ�ຽນຍຸດທະສາດຂອງພວກເຮົາຈະປະສ�ບຜ�ນສ�າເລັດ.

ສຸດທ້າຍນ�, ຂ້າພະເຈ�າຂໍຂອບໃຈມາຍ�ງ ຜູ້ຖືຫຸ້ນ ແລະ ຄະນະຜູ້ບໍລິຫານຂອງພວກເຮົາທ�ໄດ້ໃຫ້ການຊ�ນ�າ ແລະ ຄວາມຮູ້ສະເໝີມາ. ຂໍຂອບໃຈ 
ໜ�ວຍງານຄຸ້ມຄອງທະນາຄານທຸລະກິດ ສຳລ�ບການນຳພາ ແລະ ການສະຫນ�ບສະຫນຸນ າກພວກເພ�ນ. ຂໍຂອບໃຈບ�ນດາລູກຄ້າ ແລະ ບ�ນດາຄູ�
ຮ�ວມທຸລະກິດສ�າລ�ບການສະຫນ�ບສະຫນຸນ ແລະ ຄວາມເຊ�ອຫມ�ນໃນການໃຫ້ພວກເຮົາມີໂອກາດທ�ຈະຮ�ບໃຊ້ມອບການບໍລິການ ແລະ ຂໍ
ຂອບໃຈມາຍ�ງຊ�ບສິນທ�ີມີຄ�າຍ�ງກ�ຄື ພະນ�ກງານ MJ AllStars ຂອງພວກເຮົາ.

ຂອບໃຈຫລາຍໆ

ສ�ງໃດທ�ໃຈເຮົາຄິດໄວ້, ເຮົາກ�ຈະບ�ນລຸມ�ນ

            ທ�ານ ແອນໂທນ� ຊິນ
            ຜູ້ບໍລິຫານໃຫຍ�

ທະນາຄານ ມາຣູຮານ ເຈແປນ ລາວ ຈຳກ�ດ
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We are committed to support MSME sector beyond the challenging time from the global pandemic. 

and medium-sized business units through the Department of Small and Medium Business Promotion 
(DOSMEP). The bank received a total of 51 billion kip from the project to provide loans to customers in 
the priority areas of the government at an interest rate of 3% per annum. In addition, our bank partici

to borrow money from the People's Republic of China (CDB) which provides loans to business entities 
in accordance with government priorities. We are grateful to the Ministry of Industry and Commerce & 

and strengthening our SME digital ecosystem. 

larger scope including environment and people. Moreover, we have also embarked on Electric Vehicles 

99.4% and deposits achieved 102.5% of the plan. To support individuals and MSME to recover from the 

CoVID19 outbreak, with a total of 404 eligible customers. As reported last year, we are on a three-year 
turnaround program, and we continued to invest in technology, platform, and capabilities. Per plan, we 
recorded another year of losses. However, we have now turned the corner ahead of our three-year plan, 

On a positive note, notwithstanding the challenges, I am pleased to share highlights of our achieve
ments in FY2021. Some key highlights on our strategic agenda on Trust, Customer-centricity & Digital 

• Our customer base increased by 42% to 26,000. 
• Our award-winning mobile banking app, MJ Saduak, has grown by 75%.
• Our QR merchant base grew by 87%. 
• Under the auspices of Ministry of Health, launched our Vira-Bu-Loud (Hero) fund where people can 
donate to support frontliners & volunteers during the pandemic of CoVID-19.

We are thankful for a few recognitions:  
• Awarded by the ASEAN Business Awards: Special Award – Friend of Laos, for our contribution to Lao 
PDR.
• Awarded by LNCCI as Top Business Leader in response to CoVID-19.
• Awarded for our MJBL Virtual Debit MasterCard as Best New Virtual Debit Card by Global Economics, 
UK.
• Awarded as Fastest Growing Commercial Bank by Global Economics, UK.

Sabaidee Thouk Khon!

year (FY) 2020 to 2022. I would like to continue with an update of our second-year transformation, 
FY2021. FY2021 had been a very challenging year with the severe global impact of CoVID-19 in its 

Laos has not been spared. 

Given this situation, what do we do? 

We focused on strengthening our foundation and investing for the future, to grow responsibly and 
sustainable, summed up by three key pillars:  

1. Systems. On the technology front, we strengthened our internal capabilities by embarking on our 
core banking system upgrade, a major project across the bank. We also developed numerous innova
tive solutions. These enhances our products, services, and speed to market.  

2. Process. We continue to focus strongly on customers, by automating processes and streamlining 
operations. We have taken direct feedback from consumers, businesses and partners. In collaboration 
with our partners, we developed capabilities to provide better services and embed ourselves into the 
lifestyle of our customers and community. Under the auspices of BOL, we have innovated a new 
channel and service called MJ Sabai (Agency Banking). This combines our innovative digital capabili

banking services to the unbanked and underbanked segment. We continue to innovate on our prod
ucts and services by enabling more services online. Customers can also apply online or access to 
online banking for SME and corporate.

3. People. Our greatest asset. We are pleased to focus on substantially investing and grooming inter
nal talents for their career development. Over the last one year, we have promoted many local 
employees into senior leadership roles, including CFO & CRO. The bank has invested substantial 
resources into grooming our next generation leaders. This augurs well for our sustainability agenda 
of MJBL. 

MARUHAN Japan Bank Lao

ສະພາບລວມຂອງເສດຖະກິດລາວໃນປີ 2021 ແລະ ການຄາດຄະເນປີ 2022
ຄວາມສະຖຽນລະພາບທາງດ້ານການເງິນໂດຍລວມ ປີ 2021

ສະພາບໂດຍລວມ ແມ�ນ ຄວາມສະຖຽນລະພາບທາງດ້ານເສດຖະກິດມະຫາພາກຍ�ງບ�ເຂ�ມແຂງ. ຊ�ງອ�ດຕາເງິນເຟ�ຍ�ງຄ�ງເພ�ມຂ�ນໃນຂະນະທ�
ອ�ດຕາແລກປ�ຽນຍ�ງຄ�ງອ�ອນຄ�າລ�ງ  ແລະ ປະເທດລາວຍ�ງຄ�ງມີຄ�ງສ�າຮອງເງິນຕາຕ�າງປະເທດທ�ຈ�າກ�ດ. ເຖິງແມ�ນວ�າໃນປີ 2021 ຈະມີຜ�ນການ
ດຳເນີນງານທ�ດີກ�ວາປີກ�ອນກ�ຕາມ, ແຕ�ການເກັບໜ�ກ�ຍ�ງບ�ບ�ນລຸຕາມຄາດໝາຍ ຊ�ງການເກັບພາສີກ�ຍ�ງຕ�າ ແລະ ລາຍຮ�ບງ�ບປະມານເພ�ມຂ�ນ
ຢ�າງຫຼວງຫຼາຍຈາກລາຍຮ�ບທ�ບ�ມີພາສີ. ໃນຂະນະດຽວກ�ນ, ການທ�ດລອງເກັບລາຍຮ�ບຈາກການຂຸດ ແລະ ການແລກປ�ຽນເງິນຄຣິບໂຕ 
(cryptocurrency) ຍ�ງປະເຊີນກ�ບສ�ງທ້າທາຍຫລາຍຢ�າງຢູ�.

ແນວໂນ້ມເສດຖະກິດລາວ ປີ 2022

ເສດຖະກິດຂອງລາວຄາດວ�າຈະຂະຫຍາຍໂຕເພ�ມຂ�ນ 4.0% ໃນປີ 2022 ໂດຍທ�ພາກສ�ວນເສດຖະກິດທ�ສຳຄ�ນສາມາດຮ�ກສາອ�ດຕາການ
ຂະຫຍາຍໂຕໄວ້ໄດ້ໃກ້ຄຽງກ�ບປີກ�ອນ. ໃນຂະນະທ�ການເປີດປະເທດເພ�ອການທ�ອງທ�ຽວຄືນໃໝ�ອາດຈະຊ�ວຍໃຫ້ຂະແໜງການບໍລິການຟ�ນໂຕ
ໄວຂ�ນ.

ສະຫລຸບຜ�ນປະກອບການ ຂອງປີ 2021

ໃນສ�ກປີ 2021, ທະນາຄານໄດ້ສືບຕ�ສຸມໃສ�ເພ�ອຂະຫຍາຍສິນເຊ�ອບ�ນລຸໄດ້ເຖິງ 99,4% ແລະ ເງິນຝາກບ�ນລຸ 102,5% ຂອງເປ�າໝາຍທ�ຄາດ
ໄວ້. ເຖິງວ�າການປ�ອຍສິນເຊ�ອ ແລະ ການລະດ�ມເງິນຝາກຈະໄປຕາມແຜນການ, ແຕ�ການກູ້ເງິນສິນເຊ�ອຍ�ງມີຄວາມຫຍຸ້ງຍາກຢູ�ເນ�ອງຈາກຜ�ນ
ກະທ�ບຂອງການລະບາດຂອງພະຍາດໂຄວິດ-19 ຮອບທີ 2 ນ�ບແຕ�ເດືອນເມສາ 2021 ເປັນຕ�ນມາ ຫ�ວໜ�ວຍທຸລະກິດຈຳນວນໜ�ງໄດ້ປິດໂຕລ�ງ
ເນ�ອງຈາກ ການລ໋ອກດາວ. ເຖິງແມ�ນວ�າທະນາຄານຈະມີນະໂຍບາຍໃນການຊ�າລະຄືນໃຫ້ແກ�ລູກຄ້າທ�ໄດ້ຮ�ບຜ�ນກະທ�ບ, ແຕ�ຍ�ງມີລູກຄ້າຈ�ານວນ
ຫຼາຍທ�ບ�ໄດ້ຮ�ບນະໂຍບາຍນ�. ຊ�ງໃນທ້າຍປີນ�ອ�ດຕາຂອງໜ�ເສຍ ເພ�ມຂ�ນເຖິງ 4,4% ຊ�ງເກີນມາດຕະຖານທ�ທະນາຄານກາງໄດ້ວາງອອກ
(3%) ແລະ ປີນ�ຖືວ�າເປັນປີທ�ທະນາຄານໄດ້ຮ�ບຜ�ນກະທ�ບຈາກຄວາມແປປວນຂອງອ�ດຕາແລກປ�ຽນເງິນຕາ ຍ້ອນການເສ�ອມມູນຄ�າຢ�າງສະສ�ມ
15 ປີ ຂອງເງິນກີບຕ�ກ�ບເງິນໂດລາ. ດ�ງນ�ນ, ທະນາຄານຈ�ງຂາດທຶນ 36.47 ຕ�ກີບ ໃນນ�ນຂາດທຶນຈາກການດ�າເນີນງານກວມເອົາ 37% ຈາກ
ການຂາດທຶນສິນເຊ�ອ ກວມເອົາ 28%, ແລະ 35% ແມ�ນການສູນເສຍຈາກການເສ�ອມລາຄາຂອງເງິນກີບ (ຂາດທຶນອ�ດຕາແລກປ�ຽນ).

ດ້ານເງິນຝາກ : ທະນາຄານໄດ້ສືບຕ�ອ�ານວຍຄວາມສະດວກໃຫ້ແກ�ລູກຄ້າໃນການເປີດບ�ນຊີກະແສລາຍວ�ນ, ເງິນຝາກປະຢ�ດ ແລະ ບ�ນຊີເງິນ
ຝາກປະຈ�າ ໂດຍຜ�ານຫຼາຍຊ�ອງທາງເຊ�ນ: ຜ�ານທາງເຄົາ້ເຕ�ໜ�ວຍບໍການ, ຜ�ານແອັບມືືຖື "MJ Saduak", ຜ�ານໜ�ວຍບໍລິການ ດິຈິຕອລ ທ�ສູນ
ການຄ້າ World Trade Center ແລະ ຕ�ວແທນທະນາຄານທາງດ້ານການເງິນ " MJ Sabai”. ຮອດທ້າຍປີ 2021, ຍອດເງິນຝາກຂອງທະນາ 
ຄານໄດ້ເພ�ມຂ�ນເຖິງ 213,11 ຕ�ກີບ (41,42%) ຈາກ 514,57 ຕ�ກີບ (2020) ມາເປັນ 727,68 ຕ�ກີບ, ຈຳນວນລູກຄ້າເງິນຝາກທ�ງໝ�ດ 
22,639 ຄ�ນ, ເພ�ມຂ�ນ 12,79% ເມ�ອທຽບໃສ�ປີຜ�ານມາ.

ດ້ານສິນເຊ�ອ : ທະນາຄານໄດ້ສຸມໃສ�ຂະຫຍາຍສິນເຊ�ອປະເພດຕ�າງໆຕາມຄວາມຕ້ອງການຂອງລູກຄ້າ, ໂດຍສະເພາະແມ�ນສິນເຊ�ອເພ�ອລ�ດ, 
ສິນເຊ�ອເພ�ອທ�ຢູ�ອາໄສ, ສິນເຊ�ອທຸລະກິດ, ສິນເຊ�ອສ�ວນບຸກຄ�ນ ແລະ ສິນເຊ�ອອ�ນໆ. ທະນາຄານສາມາດເພ�ມຈ�ານວນລູກຄ້າກູ້ຢືມທ�ງໝ�ດ 595 ຄ�ນ 
ຈາກ 3,328 ບ�ນຊີ (2020) ເປັນ 3,923 ບ�ນຊີ. ຍອດສິນເຊ�ອທ�ງໝ�ດເພ�ມຂ�ນ 211,84 ຕ�ກີບ (40,36%) ຈາກ 524,95 ຕ�ກີບ (ປີ 2020) ເປັນ 
736,73 ຕ�ກີບ.

ດ້ານການກູ້ຢືມ: ທະນາຄານໄດ້ຕ�ສ�ນຍາເງິນກູ້ຢືມຈາກທະນາຄານ Mizuho ສາຂາກຸງເທບ ປະເທດໄທ 20 ລ້ານໂດລາສະຫະລ�ດ ແລະ ໄດ້
ຕ�ສ�ນຍາເງິນກູ້ຢືມຈາກທະນາຄານການ ເຟຣີສ ຄອມເມີໂຊ ແບັງ ຈຳກ�ດ (First Commercial Bank) ຈ�ານວນ 24 ຕ�ກວ�າກີບ. ຊ�ງສ�າລ�ບ ເງິນ
ກູ້ຈາກທະນາຄານແຫ�ງ ສປປ ລາວ ຈ�ານວນ 9,3 ຕ�ກວ�າກີບ ໃນປີ 2020 ແມ�ນເປັນສ�ນຍາໄລຍະຍາວທ�ບ�ມີການປ�ຽນແປງ.

ການເພ�ມທຶນຈ�ດທະບຽນ: ບ�ມີການເພ�ມທຶນຈ�ດທະບຽນໃນປີ 2021

Overview of Laos’ Economy in 2021 and forecast for 2022

Overall Financial Stability 2021

continues to depreciate, and the country retains limited foreign exchange reserves. Despite better 
performance in 2021 than the previous year, implementation of revenue collection failed to meet 

non-tax sources. Meanwhile, an experiment to collect revenue from cryptocurrency mining opera
tions and exchanges still faces a number of challenges.

Lao Economic Trends 2022

The economy of Laos is expected to grow by 4.0% in 2022, provided that key economic sectors are 
able to maintain growth close to that of the previous year, while the reopening of the country to 
tourism should help the service sector recover at a faster pace.

Summarize the results of business operations in 2021

By 2021, the Bank continued to focus on credit expansion, which reached 99.4% and deposits 
achieved 102.5% of the plan, although lending and deposit mobilization will go according to plan, 

from April 2021 onwards, the business unit has closed down due to a lockdown. Although the bank 

ers who do not receive this policy. At the end of the year, the NPL rate was 4.4% higher than the stan

the banks’ loss was 36.47 billion kip, of which operating loss covered for 37%, from credit loss 
covered for 28%, and 35% was loss from depreciation of kip (FX loss).

Deposit : the bank has continued to facilitate customers to open deposit accounts such as Current 
account, Savings and Fixed Deposit Accounts. Through many channels, whether it is to open an 
account through the counter and through the bank's application MJ Saduak, open a digital account 
at the World Trade Center without paper, through agency banking (MJ Sabai), By the end of 2021, 
the Bank's deposit balance increased by 213.11 billion Kip (41.42%) from 514.57 billion Kip (2020) to 
727.68 billion Kip, with a total of 22,639 deposit customers, an increase of 12.79% compared to the 
previous year.

Loan : the bank focused on expanding various types of loans according to the needs of customers, 
especially vehicle loans, housing loans, business loans, personal loans and other loans. The bank was 
able to increase the total number of 595 loan customers from 3,328 (2020) to 3,923 accounts with a 
total net credit increase of 211.84 billion Kip (40.36%) from 524.95 billion Kip (2020) to 736.73 billion 
Kip.

Borrowing: The Bank has renewed the loan agreement from Mizuho Bank Bangkok Branch, 
Thailand $20 million, and renewed a loan agreement from First Commercial Bank of Vientiane for 24 
billion kip, while a loan from the Bank of the Lao PDR of 9.3 billion kip in 2020 is a long-term agree
ment unchanged.

Increase of registered capital: there is no increase in registered capital in 2021
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MARUHAN Japan Bank Lao

We are committed to support MSME sector beyond the challenging time from the global pandemic. 

and medium-sized business units through the Department of Small and Medium Business Promotion 
(DOSMEP). The bank received a total of 51 billion kip from the project to provide loans to customers in 
the priority areas of the government at an interest rate of 3% per annum. In addition, our bank partici-

to borrow money from the People's Republic of China (CDB) which provides loans to business entities 
in accordance with government priorities. We are grateful to the Ministry of Industry and Commerce & 

and strengthening our SME digital ecosystem. 

larger scope including environment and people. Moreover, we have also embarked on Electric Vehicles 

-

99.4% and deposits achieved 102.5% of the plan. To support individuals and MSME to recover from the 

CoVID19 outbreak, with a total of 404 eligible customers. As reported last year, we are on a three-year 
turnaround program, and we continued to invest in technology, platform, and capabilities. Per plan, we 
recorded another year of losses. However, we have now turned the corner ahead of our three-year plan, 

On a positive note, notwithstanding the challenges, I am pleased to share highlights of our achieve-
ments in FY2021. Some key highlights on our strategic agenda on Trust, Customer-centricity & Digital 

• Our customer base increased by 42% to 26,000. 
• Our award-winning mobile banking app, MJ Saduak, has grown by 75%.
• Our QR merchant base grew by 87%. 
• Under the auspices of Ministry of Health, launched our Vira-Bu-Loud (Hero) fund where people can 
donate to support frontliners & volunteers during the pandemic of CoVID-19.

We are thankful for a few recognitions:  
• Awarded by the ASEAN Business Awards: Special Award – Friend of Laos, for our contribution to Lao 
PDR.
• Awarded by LNCCI as Top Business Leader in response to CoVID-19.
• Awarded for our MJBL Virtual Debit MasterCard as Best New Virtual Debit Card by Global Economics, 
UK.
• Awarded as Fastest Growing Commercial Bank by Global Economics, UK.

Sabaidee Thouk Khon!

year (FY) 2020 to 2022. I would like to continue with an update of our second-year transformation, 
FY2021. FY2021 had been a very challenging year with the severe global impact of CoVID-19 in its 

Laos has not been spared. 

Given this situation, what do we do? 

We focused on strengthening our foundation and investing for the future, to grow responsibly and 
sustainable, summed up by three key pillars:  

1. Systems. On the technology front, we strengthened our internal capabilities by embarking on our 
core banking system upgrade, a major project across the bank. We also developed numerous innova
tive solutions. These enhances our products, services, and speed to market.  

2. Process. We continue to focus strongly on customers, by automating processes and streamlining 
operations. We have taken direct feedback from consumers, businesses and partners. In collaboration 
with our partners, we developed capabilities to provide better services and embed ourselves into the 
lifestyle of our customers and community. Under the auspices of BOL, we have innovated a new 
channel and service called MJ Sabai (Agency Banking). This combines our innovative digital capabili

banking services to the unbanked and underbanked segment. We continue to innovate on our prod
ucts and services by enabling more services online. Customers can also apply online or access to 
online banking for SME and corporate.

3. People. Our greatest asset. We are pleased to focus on substantially investing and grooming inter
nal talents for their career development. Over the last one year, we have promoted many local 
employees into senior leadership roles, including CFO & CRO. The bank has invested substantial 
resources into grooming our next generation leaders. This augurs well for our sustainability agenda 
of MJBL. 

IT system development: In addition to the development of mobile business systems,
the bank has also developed the agency banking system (known as MJ Sabai) by opening an 
account through a tablet, and within a year the core banking system was updated from version 11.1 

Risk management and regulatory improvement: The management structure has been 
reviewed in order to ensure adequacy in addressing and mitigating the relevant risks faced by the 
Bank in order to protect the interests of its stakeholders. 

Human resource management:
163 employees, including foreign and local experts and technicians. There are 150 Lao and 10 

Expansion of the network: Launched a variety of services such as cooperation with business 
partners, expand the network of agents through the Representative Bank (MJ Sabai), including 18 
outlets in Vientiane Capital and other provinces (Vientiane and Luang Prabang), with the expansion 
of 2 additional ATMs.

External cooperation:
to provide funding for small and medium-sized business units through the Department of Small and 
Medium Business Promotion (DOSMEP). The bank received a total of 51 billion kip from the project 
to provide loans to customers in the priority areas of the government at an interest rate of 3% per 
annum. The aims are to promote the growth of small and medium enterprises. In addition, our bank 

outbreak, and to borrow money from the People's Republic of China (CDB) which provides loans to 
business entities in accordance with government priorities. We have also expressed our intention to 
participate in the World Bank's Small and Medium-Sized. 

We have strengthened our cooperation with the Chamber of Commerce and other associations such 
as the National Chamber of Commerce and Industry (LNCCI), the Champassak Chamber of Com-
merce and Industry (CCCI), LuangPrabang Chamber of Commerce and Industry (LCCI), Small and 
Medium Business Association (LAOSME), Lao ICT Association (LICA), Lao Handicraft Association 
(LHA), Lao Women's Business Association (LWBA), Lao Young Entrepreneurs Association (YEAL) and 
others.

Our Bank has a strong intention to contribute to the development of small and medium enterprises 
in Lao PDR, such as attending conferences, seminars and trade fairs with the participation of various 
business units such as: ODOP Trade Fair, an exhibition of Lao handicrafts and woodwork, national 
handicrafts, and local trade fairs, including Lao food festivals.

 Within the year, the bad
-

ered in the year 8.7 billion Kip (recovered the total amount is 23.56 billion Kip), uncollected debts are 
58 billion Kip, the ratio of non-performing loans (NPL) is 4.40% increased by 0.45%.

MARUHAN Japan Bank Lao

ການພ�ດທະນາລະບ�ບໄອທີ: ນອກຈາກການພ�ດທະນາລະບ�ບເທິງມືຖືແລ້ວ ທະນາຄານຍ�ງໄດ້ພ�ດທະນາລະບ�ບຂອງ ໂຕແທນທະນາຄານ
ທາງດ້ານການເງິນ (ເອ�ນວ�າ MJ Sabai) ໂດຍການເປີດບ�ນຊີຜ�ານແທັບເລັດ ແລະ ພາຍໃນ 1 ປີ ໄດ້ມີການຍ�ກລະດ�ບລະບ�ບທະນາຄານ(core 
banking) ຈາກເວີຊ�ນ 11.1. ສູ�ເວີຊ�ນ 14.5, ເຊ�ງຈະມີໄດ້ໃຊ້ໃນໄຕມາດທ�າອິດຂອງປີ 2022.

ການຄຸ້ມຄອງຄວາມສ�ຽງ ແລະ ການປ�ບປຸງລະບຽບການ: ໂຄງສ້າງການຄຸ້ມຄອງໄດ້ຖືກທ�ບທວນຄືນເພ�ອຮ�ບປະກ�ນຄວາມພຽງພໍໃນ
ການແກ້ໄຂ ແລະ ຫ�ດຜ�ອນຄວາມສ�ຽງ ທ�ທະນາຄານໄດ້ປະເຊີນເພ�ອປ�ກປ້ອງຜ�ນປະໂຫຍດຂອງບ�ນດາຜູ້ມີຜ�ນປະໂຫຍດນຳທະນາຄານ.

ການຄຸ້ມຄອງບຸກຄະລາກອນ: ໄດ້ມີການຝຶກອ�ບຮ�ມໃຫ້ແກ�ພະນ�ກງານຕາມແຜນການ. ຮອດທ້າຍປີ 2021, ມີພະນ�ກງານທ�ງໝ�ດ 163 
ຄ�ນ ໃນນ�ນລວມມີທ�ງຊ�ຽວຊານ ແລະ ວິຊາການຈາກຕ�າງປະເທດ ແລະ ຈາກທ້ອງຖ�ນ. ມີພະນ�ກງານລາວ 150 ຄ�ນ ແລະ ຕ�າງປະເທດ 10 ຄ�ນ. 
ເພດຍິງກວມເອົາ 39,26% ຂອງພະນ�ກງານທ�ງໝ�ດ.

ຂະຫຍາຍຕາໜ�າງທຸລະກິດ: ໄດ້ເປີດໃຫ້ບໍລິການທ�ຫຼາກຫຼາຍເຊ�ນ: ການຮ�ວມມືກ�ບຄູ�ຮ�ວມທຸລະກິດ, ຂະຫຍາຍເຄືອຂ�າຍ ໂດຍຜ�ານຕ�ວ 
ແທນທະນາຄານທາງການເງິນ (MJ Sabai) ຊ�ງລວມທ�ງໝ�ດ 18 ສາຂາໃນນະຄອນຫຼວງວຽງຈ�ນ ແລະ ແຂວງອ�ນໆ (ວຽງຈ�ນ ແລະ ຫຼວງພະບາງ) 
ໂດຍມີການຂະຫຍາຍໂຕ ຂອງ ຕູ້ ATM ເພ�ມຕ�ມ 2 ຕູ້.

ການຮ�ວມມືກ�ບໜ�ວຍງານພາຍນອກ: ທະນາຄານໄດ້ເຂ�າຮ�ວມໂຄງການສະໜອງທຶນໃຫ້ແກ� SME ເຊ�ນ: ໂຄງການສະໜອງທຶນໃຫ້ແກ�
ຫ�ວໜ�ວຍທຸລະກິດຂະໜາດນ້ອຍ ແລະ ກາງ ໂດຍຜ�ານກ�ມສ�ງເສີມທຸລະກິດຂະໜາດນ້ອຍ ແລະ ກາງ (DSMEP) ຊ�ງທະນາຄານໄດ້ຮ�ບເງິນກູ້
ທ�ງໝ�ດ 51 ຕ�ກວ�າກີບຈາກໂຄງການນ�ເພ�ອສະໜອງເງິນກູ້ໃຫ້ແກ�ລູກຄ້າໃນບຸລິມະສິດຂອງລ�ດຖະບານໃນອ�ດຕາດອກເບ້ຍ 3% ຕ�ປີ. ເພ�ອແນໃສ�
ຊຸກຍູ້ການຈະເລີນເຕີບໂຕຂອງວິສາຫະກິດຂະໜາດນ້ອຍ ແລະ ກາງ. ນອກຈາກນ�ນ, ທະນາຄານຂອງພວກເຮົາຍ�ງເຂ�າຮ�ວມໂຄງການຊ�ວຍເຫຼືອ
ຂອງລ�ດຖະບານເພ�ອແກ້ໄຂບ�ນດາຫ�ວໜ�ວຍທຸລະກິດທ�ໄດ້ຮ�ບຜ�ນກະທ�ບຈາກການລະບາດຂອງພະຍາດໂຄວິດ-19 ແລະ ກູ້ຢືມເງິນຈາກສາທາລະ 
ນະລ�ດປະຊາຊ�ນຈີນ (CDB) ທ�ສະໜອງເງິນກູ້ໃຫ້ແກ�ຫ�ວໜ�ວຍທຸລະກິດຕາມບູລິມະສິດຂອງລ�ດຖະບານ. ພວກເຮົາຍ�ງໄດ້ສະແດງຈິງຈ�ງທ�ຈະ
ເຂ�າຮ�ວມໃນໂຄງການຂອງທະນາຄານໂລກສຳລ�ບທຸລະກິດຂະໜາດນ້ອຍ ແລະ ຂະໜາດກາງ.

ພວກເຮົາໄດ້ເພ�ມທະວີການຮ�ວມມືກ�ບສະພາການຄ້າ ແລະ ສະມາຄ�ມອ�ນໆເຊ�ນ: ສະພາການຄ້າ ແລະ ອຸດສາຫະກຳແຫ�ງຊາດ (LNCCI), 
ສະພາການຄ້າ ແລະ ອຸດສາຫະກຳ ຈຳປາສ�ກ (CCCI), ສະພາການຄ້າ ແລະ ອຸດສາຫະກຳຫຼວງພະບາງ (LCCI), ສະມາຄ�ມນ�ກທຸລະກິດຂະ 
ໜາດນ້ອຍ ແລະ ກາງ (LAOSME), ສະມາຄ�ມ ICT ລາວ (LICA), ສະມາຄ�ມຫ�ດຖະກ�າລາວ (LHA), ສະມາຄ�ມນ�ກທຸລະກິດແມ�ຍິງລາວ 
(LWBA), ສະມາຄ�ມນ�ກທຸລະກິດໜຸ�ມລາວ (YEAL) ແລະ ອ�ນໆ.

ທະນາຄານຂອງພວກເຮົາມີຄວາມຕ�ງໃຈອ�ນໜ�ກແໜ້ນທ�ຈະປະກອບສ�ວນເຂ�າໃນການພ�ດທະນາວິສາຫະກິດຂະໜາດນ້ອຍ ແລະ ກາງໃນ ສປປ 
ລາວ ເຊ�ນ: ການເຂ�າຮ�ວມກອງປະຊຸມ, ສຳມະນາ ແລະ ງານຕະຫຼາດນ�ດການຄ້າ ໂດຍມີການເຂ�າຮ�ວມຂອງບ�ນດາຫ�ວໜ�ວຍທຸລະກິດເຊ�ນ: ງານ
ວາງສະແດງສິນຄ້າ ODOP, ງານວາງສະແດງສິນຄ້າຫ�ດຖະກຳ ແລະ ໄມ້ລາວ. , ເຄ�ອງຫ�ດຖະກ�າແຫ�ງຊາດ ແລະ ງານວາງສະແດງສິນຄ້າທ້ອງ 
ຖ�ນ, ລວມທ�ງງານບຸນອາຫານລາວ.

ການເກັບກູ້ໜ�ເສຍ ແລະ ສິນເຊ�ອທ�ບ�ເກີດດອກອອກຜ�ນ(NPL): ພາຍໃນປີ ໜ�ທ�ບ�ສ້າງລາຍຮ�ບ ຖືກຫ�ກອອກ 7,48 ຕ�ກວ�າກີບ 
(ລວມຍອດສະສ�ມ 81,59 ຕ�ກວ�າກີບ), ສາມາດເກັບຄືນໃນປີ 8,7 ຕ�ກວ�າກີບ (ເກັບກູ້ໄດ້ທ�ງໝ�ດ 23,56 ຕ�ກວ�າກີບ), ໜ�ຄ້າງຊ�າລະ 58 ຕ�ກວ�າ
ກີບ, ອ�ດຕາສິນເຊ�ອທ�ບ�ສ້າງລາຍຮ�ບ (NPL) ແມ�ນ 4,40% ເພ�ມຂ�ນ 0,45%.
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IT system development: In addition to the development of mobile business systems,
the bank has also developed the agency banking system (known as MJ Sabai) by opening an 
account through a tablet, and within a year the core banking system was updated from version 11.1 

Risk management and regulatory improvement: The management structure has been 
reviewed in order to ensure adequacy in addressing and mitigating the relevant risks faced by the 
Bank in order to protect the interests of its stakeholders. 

Human resource management:
163 employees, including foreign and local experts and technicians. There are 150 Lao and 10 

Expansion of the network: Launched a variety of services such as cooperation with business 
partners, expand the network of agents through the Representative Bank (MJ Sabai), including 18 
outlets in Vientiane Capital and other provinces (Vientiane and Luang Prabang), with the expansion 
of 2 additional ATMs.

External cooperation:
to provide funding for small and medium-sized business units through the Department of Small and 
Medium Business Promotion (DOSMEP). The bank received a total of 51 billion kip from the project 
to provide loans to customers in the priority areas of the government at an interest rate of 3% per 
annum. The aims are to promote the growth of small and medium enterprises. In addition, our bank 

outbreak, and to borrow money from the People's Republic of China (CDB) which provides loans to 
business entities in accordance with government priorities. We have also expressed our intention to 
participate in the World Bank's Small and Medium-Sized. 

We have strengthened our cooperation with the Chamber of Commerce and other associations such 
as the National Chamber of Commerce and Industry (LNCCI), the Champassak Chamber of Com-
merce and Industry (CCCI), LuangPrabang Chamber of Commerce and Industry (LCCI), Small and 
Medium Business Association (LAOSME), Lao ICT Association (LICA), Lao Handicraft Association 
(LHA), Lao Women's Business Association (LWBA), Lao Young Entrepreneurs Association (YEAL) and 
others.

Our Bank has a strong intention to contribute to the development of small and medium enterprises 
in Lao PDR, such as attending conferences, seminars and trade fairs with the participation of various 
business units such as: ODOP Trade Fair, an exhibition of Lao handicrafts and woodwork, national 
handicrafts, and local trade fairs, including Lao food festivals.

 Within the year, the bad
-

ered in the year 8.7 billion Kip (recovered the total amount is 23.56 billion Kip), uncollected debts are 
58 billion Kip, the ratio of non-performing loans (NPL) is 4.40% increased by 0.45%.

Overview of Laos’ Economy in 2021 and forecast for 2022

Overall Financial Stability 2021

continues to depreciate, and the country retains limited foreign exchange reserves. Despite better 
performance in 2021 than the previous year, implementation of revenue collection failed to meet 

non-tax sources. Meanwhile, an experiment to collect revenue from cryptocurrency mining opera-
tions and exchanges still faces a number of challenges.

Lao Economic Trends 2022

The economy of Laos is expected to grow by 4.0% in 2022, provided that key economic sectors are 
able to maintain growth close to that of the previous year, while the reopening of the country to 
tourism should help the service sector recover at a faster pace.

Summarize the results of business operations in 2021

By 2021, the Bank continued to focus on credit expansion, which reached 99.4% and deposits 
achieved 102.5% of the plan, although lending and deposit mobilization will go according to plan, 

from April 2021 onwards, the business unit has closed down due to a lockdown. Although the bank 
-

ers who do not receive this policy. At the end of the year, the NPL rate was 4.4% higher than the stan-

the banks’ loss was 36.47 billion kip, of which operating loss covered for 37%, from credit loss 
covered for 28%, and 35% was loss from depreciation of kip (FX loss).

Deposit : the bank has continued to facilitate customers to open deposit accounts such as Current 
account, Savings and Fixed Deposit Accounts. Through many channels, whether it is to open an 
account through the counter and through the bank's application MJ Saduak, open a digital account 
at the World Trade Center without paper, through agency banking (MJ Sabai), By the end of 2021, 
the Bank's deposit balance increased by 213.11 billion Kip (41.42%) from 514.57 billion Kip (2020) to 
727.68 billion Kip, with a total of 22,639 deposit customers, an increase of 12.79% compared to the 
previous year.

Loan : the bank focused on expanding various types of loans according to the needs of customers, 
especially vehicle loans, housing loans, business loans, personal loans and other loans. The bank was 
able to increase the total number of 595 loan customers from 3,328 (2020) to 3,923 accounts with a 
total net credit increase of 211.84 billion Kip (40.36%) from 524.95 billion Kip (2020) to 736.73 billion 
Kip.

Borrowing: The Bank has renewed the loan agreement from Mizuho Bank Bangkok Branch, 
Thailand $20 million, and renewed a loan agreement from First Commercial Bank of Vientiane for 24 
billion kip, while a loan from the Bank of the Lao PDR of 9.3 billion kip in 2020 is a long-term agree-
ment unchanged.

Increase of registered capital: there is no increase in registered capital in 2021

MARUHAN Japan Bank Lao

We are committed to support MSME sector beyond the challenging time from the global pandemic. 

and medium-sized business units through the Department of Small and Medium Business Promotion 
(DOSMEP). The bank received a total of 51 billion kip from the project to provide loans to customers in 
the priority areas of the government at an interest rate of 3% per annum. In addition, our bank partici

to borrow money from the People's Republic of China (CDB) which provides loans to business entities 
in accordance with government priorities. We are grateful to the Ministry of Industry and Commerce & 

and strengthening our SME digital ecosystem. 

larger scope including environment and people. Moreover, we have also embarked on Electric Vehicles 

99.4% and deposits achieved 102.5% of the plan. To support individuals and MSME to recover from the 

CoVID19 outbreak, with a total of 404 eligible customers. As reported last year, we are on a three-year 
turnaround program, and we continued to invest in technology, platform, and capabilities. Per plan, we 
recorded another year of losses. However, we have now turned the corner ahead of our three-year plan, 

On a positive note, notwithstanding the challenges, I am pleased to share highlights of our achieve
ments in FY2021. Some key highlights on our strategic agenda on Trust, Customer-centricity & Digital 

• Our customer base increased by 42% to 26,000. 
• Our award-winning mobile banking app, MJ Saduak, has grown by 75%.
• Our QR merchant base grew by 87%. 
• Under the auspices of Ministry of Health, launched our Vira-Bu-Loud (Hero) fund where people can 
donate to support frontliners & volunteers during the pandemic of CoVID-19.

We are thankful for a few recognitions:  
• Awarded by the ASEAN Business Awards: Special Award – Friend of Laos, for our contribution to Lao 
PDR.
• Awarded by LNCCI as Top Business Leader in response to CoVID-19.
• Awarded for our MJBL Virtual Debit MasterCard as Best New Virtual Debit Card by Global Economics, 
UK.
• Awarded as Fastest Growing Commercial Bank by Global Economics, UK.

Sabaidee Thouk Khon!

year (FY) 2020 to 2022. I would like to continue with an update of our second-year transformation, 
FY2021. FY2021 had been a very challenging year with the severe global impact of CoVID-19 in its 

Laos has not been spared. 

Given this situation, what do we do? 

We focused on strengthening our foundation and investing for the future, to grow responsibly and 
sustainable, summed up by three key pillars:  

1. Systems. On the technology front, we strengthened our internal capabilities by embarking on our 
core banking system upgrade, a major project across the bank. We also developed numerous innova
tive solutions. These enhances our products, services, and speed to market.  

2. Process. We continue to focus strongly on customers, by automating processes and streamlining 
operations. We have taken direct feedback from consumers, businesses and partners. In collaboration 
with our partners, we developed capabilities to provide better services and embed ourselves into the 
lifestyle of our customers and community. Under the auspices of BOL, we have innovated a new 
channel and service called MJ Sabai (Agency Banking). This combines our innovative digital capabili

banking services to the unbanked and underbanked segment. We continue to innovate on our prod
ucts and services by enabling more services online. Customers can also apply online or access to 
online banking for SME and corporate.

3. People. Our greatest asset. We are pleased to focus on substantially investing and grooming inter
nal talents for their career development. Over the last one year, we have promoted many local 
employees into senior leadership roles, including CFO & CRO. The bank has invested substantial 
resources into grooming our next generation leaders. This augurs well for our sustainability agenda 
of MJBL. 

MARUHAN Japan Bank Lao

ຍຸດທະສາດ ແລະ ການຂະຫຍາຍໂຕຂອງທຸລະກິດ
ຍຸດທະສາດ – ປີ 2022

ຍຸດທະສາດການຫ�ນປ�ຽນ 3 ປີ ຂອງທະນາຄານມາຣູຮານ ເຈແປນ ລາວ (2020−2022 ຫຼື MJ22) ໄດ້ລະບຸເຖິງວິໄສທ�ດອ�ນຈະແຈ້ງໃນການທ�ຈະ
ເປັນທະນາຄານທ�ນ�າເຊ�ອຖືທ�ສຸດໃນປະເທດລາວ, ປະສ�ບການທ�ດີທ�ສຸດຂອງລູກຄ້າ, ແລະ ຄວາມສາມາດທາງດ້ານດິຈິຕອນຊ�ນນ�າທ�ດີທ�ສຸດ. ດ້ວຍ
ວິໄສທ�ດນ�, MJBL ແມ�ນກ�າລ�ງສ້າງຖານລູກຄ້າຂອງຕ�ນເຊ�ນດຽວກ�ນກ�ບສາ້ງໃຫ້ທຸລະກິດທ�ມີກ�າໄລ ໂດຍສຸມໃສ�ການຂະຫຍາຍຕ�ວຂອງພາກ 
ສ�ວນ SME ພ້ອມກ�ນກ�ບການຮ�ກສາຫ�ວໜ�ວຍທຸລະກິດລາຍຍ�ອຍຂອງຕ�ນ ແລະ ນ�າໃຊ້ກ�ນລະຍຸດດິຈິຕອນໄປສູ�ການດຳເນີນການຢ�າງເຕັມທ�.

ເປ�າໝາຍຍຸດທະສາດຂອງພວກເຮົາແມ�ນ ເພ�ອສ້າງຜ�ນກ�າໄລໃຫ້ທຸລະກິດແບບຍືນຍ�ງ ເຊ�ງພວກເຮົາຕ້ອງສ້າງຄວາມດຸ�ນດ�ຽງໃຫ້ແກ�ຄວາມສ�ຽງ 
ແລະ ຜ�ນຕອບແທນ. ພວກເຮົາມີຈຸດປະສ�ງທ�ຈະສ້າງຊ�ອງທາງການຂາຍ ແລະ ການບໍລິການ ຫຼາຍຊ�ອງທາງໂດຍການນຳໃຊ້ຄວາມເປັນດິຈິຕອລ
ທ�ເຮົາມີຢູ�ເພ�ອຮ�ບໃຊ້ລູກຄ້າຂອງພວກເຮົາ.

MJBL ຍ�ງຄ�ງສ້າງພ�ນຖານທ�ຢືດຢຸ�ນ ແລະ ຍືນຍ�ງ ເພ�ອສະໜ�ບສະໜຸນແຜນທຸລະກິດຂອງພວກເຮົາ ແລະ ປ�ບບາງພາກສ�ວນສຳຄ�ນຂອງແຜນ 
ການຫ�ນປ�ຽນທຸລະກິດຄືນໃໝ� ເຊ�ງຈະຊ�ວຍໃຫ້ພວກເຮົາສາມາດເອົາໃຈໃສ� ແລະ ເນ�ນຜ�ນຮ�ບໃຫ້ຫຼາຍຂ�ນ. 3 ຫ�ວຂ�ທ�ສ�າຄ�ນຂອງທຸລະກິດຈະໄດ້ຮ�ບ
ການຈ�ດຕ�ງຂ�ນ ແລະ ປະຕິບ�ດໃນ FY22 ດ້ວຍການສ�ງເສີມທ�ດີຈາກຫລາຍພາກສ�ວນທ�ແຕກຕ�າງກ�ນພາຍໃນທະນາຄານ.

1. ທະນາຄານເພ�ອອ�ງກອນ
2. ທະນາຄານເພ�ອທຸລະກິດລາຍຍ�ອຍ ແລະ SME
3. ຕ�ວແທນທະນາຄານທາງດ້ານການເງິນ

ການສະຫນ�ບສະຫນູນ

MJBL ໄດ້ຮ�ບການຍອມຮ�ບຈາກອຳນາດການປ�ກຄອງທ້ອງຖ�ນ ໂດຍສະເພາະແມ�ນທະນາຄານແຫ�ງຊາດລາວ (ທຫລ) ແລະ ກະຊວງອຸດສາຫະ 
ກຳ ແລະ ການຄ້າ (MOIC) ໃນການຮ�ວມມືກ�ນສ້າງຕ�ງໂຄງການສະໜອງທຶນໃຫ້ SME, ຊ�ງທຸລະກິດ SMEແມ�ນໄດ້ກວມເອົາຫຼາຍກວ�າ 90% 
ຂອງເສດຖະກິດລາວ. MJBL ຍ�ງຄ�ງໄດ້ເປັນໜ�ງໃນກຸ�ມທະນາຄານທ�ສະໜອງທຶນຂອງລ�ດຖະບານເພ�ອສະໜ�ບສະໜຸນທຸລະກິດ SMEs ແລະ  
ເງິນທຶນຈາກທະນາຄານໂລກສຳລ�ບເປີດໂຄງການການຊ�ວຍເຫຼືອທາງດ້ານການເງິນ ແລະ ການກູ້ຄືນແບບເລ�ນດ�ວນ (MSME A2F-ESR) ເພ�ອ
ສະໜ�ບສະໜຸນທຸລະກິດ MSME ໃນປະເທດ.

MJBL ເຫັນວ�າ ທຸລະກິດ MSME ເປັນຂະແໜງການໜ�ງທ�ສຳຄ�ນໃນເສດຖະກິດຂອງລາວ ແລະ ຮູ້ດີວ�າມ�ນມີຄວາມຈຳເປັນໃນການຊ�ນຳ ແລະ 
ການໃຫ້ຄຳປຶກສາ ໃຫ້ຫ�ວໜ�ວຍທຸລະກິດຂະໜາດນ້ອຍຈຳນວນໜ�ງ ເພ�ອການຂະຫຍາຍໂຕ ແລະ ການປ�ຽນແປງຢ�າງຕ�ເນ�ອງໂດຍສະເພາະໃນ
ໄລຍະກຳລ�ງປະເຊີນ ແລະ ຫຼ�ງການລະບາດຂອງພະຍາດໂຄວິດ-19. MJBL ຮ�ວມກ�ບ ບໍລິສ�ດ Katalyst Partners ຈະສືບຕ�ໂຄງການໃຫ້ຄ�າ
ປຶກສາທຸລະກິດ (BizGROW) ຊ�ງເປັນສ�ວນຫນ�ງຂອງການປະກອບສ�ວນຂອງພວກເຮົາ ເພ�ອຍ�ກລະດ�ບມາດຕະຖານຂອງທຸລະກິດ MSME 
ໃຫ້ປະສ�ບຜ�ນສ�າເລັດ ແລະ ເອົາຊະນະຄວາມທ້າທາຍທ�ຫຍຸ້ງຍາກໄປໄດ້.

MJBL ມີຄວາມເຊ�ອຢ�າງແຮງກ້າໃນການສ້າງຄູ�ຮ�ວມທຸລະກິດ ຊ�ງເປັນສ�ວນຫນ�ງຂອງລະບ�ບນິເວດການທະນາຄານຈາກພ�ນຖານອຸດສາຫະກ�າ
ທ�ແຕກຕ�າງກ�ນເພ�ອຍ�ກລະດ�ບ ແລະ ເກັບກ�ຽວເອົາສ�ກກະຍະພາບຄວາມອາດສາມາດໃນການຂາຍ. MJBL ຈະສືບຕ�ເຮັດວຽກຮ�ວມມືຢ�າງໃກ້ຊິດ
ກ�ບບ�ນດາກຸ�ມທຸລະກິດ, ສະມາຄ�ມ, ສະພາການຄ້າ ກ�ຄືກ�ມສ�ງເສີມ SME (DSMEP) ໃນການສະໜ�ບສະໜຸນ MSME ໃນລາວ.

ນອກຈາກນ�ນ, ເພ�ອໃຫ້ສອດຄ�ອງກ�ບການຂະຫຍາຍໂຕຂອງ MJ Sabai ຂອງພວກເຮົາ, ທະນາຄານຈະສ້າງຊ�ອງທາງການຂາຍ (Sales Hub) 
ເພ�ອຂະຫຍາຍເຄືອຂ�າຍຂອງພວກເຮົາໄປແຂວງຕ�າງໆໃນທ�ວປະເທດ ເຊ�ງຈະຊ�ວຍໃຫ້ ຫ�ວໜ�ວຍທຸລະກິດ MSMEs ເຂ�າເຖິງການບໍລິການທາງ
ດ້ານການເງິນ ແລະ ການທະນາຄານໄດ້ສະດວກສະບາຍງ�າຍຍ�ງຂ�ນ.
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IT system development: In addition to the development of mobile business systems,
the bank has also developed the agency banking system (known as MJ Sabai) by opening an 
account through a tablet, and within a year the core banking system was updated from version 11.1 

Risk management and regulatory improvement: The management structure has been 
reviewed in order to ensure adequacy in addressing and mitigating the relevant risks faced by the 
Bank in order to protect the interests of its stakeholders. 

Human resource management:
163 employees, including foreign and local experts and technicians. There are 150 Lao and 10 

Expansion of the network: Launched a variety of services such as cooperation with business 
partners, expand the network of agents through the Representative Bank (MJ Sabai), including 18 
outlets in Vientiane Capital and other provinces (Vientiane and Luang Prabang), with the expansion 
of 2 additional ATMs.

External cooperation:
to provide funding for small and medium-sized business units through the Department of Small and 
Medium Business Promotion (DOSMEP). The bank received a total of 51 billion kip from the project 
to provide loans to customers in the priority areas of the government at an interest rate of 3% per 
annum. The aims are to promote the growth of small and medium enterprises. In addition, our bank 

outbreak, and to borrow money from the People's Republic of China (CDB) which provides loans to 
business entities in accordance with government priorities. We have also expressed our intention to 
participate in the World Bank's Small and Medium-Sized. 

We have strengthened our cooperation with the Chamber of Commerce and other associations such 
as the National Chamber of Commerce and Industry (LNCCI), the Champassak Chamber of Com-
merce and Industry (CCCI), LuangPrabang Chamber of Commerce and Industry (LCCI), Small and 
Medium Business Association (LAOSME), Lao ICT Association (LICA), Lao Handicraft Association 
(LHA), Lao Women's Business Association (LWBA), Lao Young Entrepreneurs Association (YEAL) and 
others.

Our Bank has a strong intention to contribute to the development of small and medium enterprises 
in Lao PDR, such as attending conferences, seminars and trade fairs with the participation of various 
business units such as: ODOP Trade Fair, an exhibition of Lao handicrafts and woodwork, national 
handicrafts, and local trade fairs, including Lao food festivals.

 Within the year, the bad
-

ered in the year 8.7 billion Kip (recovered the total amount is 23.56 billion Kip), uncollected debts are 
58 billion Kip, the ratio of non-performing loans (NPL) is 4.40% increased by 0.45%.

Overview of Laos’ Economy in 2021 and forecast for 2022

Overall Financial Stability 2021

continues to depreciate, and the country retains limited foreign exchange reserves. Despite better 
performance in 2021 than the previous year, implementation of revenue collection failed to meet 

non-tax sources. Meanwhile, an experiment to collect revenue from cryptocurrency mining opera-
tions and exchanges still faces a number of challenges.

Lao Economic Trends 2022

The economy of Laos is expected to grow by 4.0% in 2022, provided that key economic sectors are 
able to maintain growth close to that of the previous year, while the reopening of the country to 
tourism should help the service sector recover at a faster pace.

Summarize the results of business operations in 2021

By 2021, the Bank continued to focus on credit expansion, which reached 99.4% and deposits 
achieved 102.5% of the plan, although lending and deposit mobilization will go according to plan, 

from April 2021 onwards, the business unit has closed down due to a lockdown. Although the bank 
-

ers who do not receive this policy. At the end of the year, the NPL rate was 4.4% higher than the stan-

the banks’ loss was 36.47 billion kip, of which operating loss covered for 37%, from credit loss 
covered for 28%, and 35% was loss from depreciation of kip (FX loss).

Deposit : the bank has continued to facilitate customers to open deposit accounts such as Current 
account, Savings and Fixed Deposit Accounts. Through many channels, whether it is to open an 
account through the counter and through the bank's application MJ Saduak, open a digital account 
at the World Trade Center without paper, through agency banking (MJ Sabai), By the end of 2021, 
the Bank's deposit balance increased by 213.11 billion Kip (41.42%) from 514.57 billion Kip (2020) to 
727.68 billion Kip, with a total of 22,639 deposit customers, an increase of 12.79% compared to the 
previous year.

Loan : the bank focused on expanding various types of loans according to the needs of customers, 
especially vehicle loans, housing loans, business loans, personal loans and other loans. The bank was 
able to increase the total number of 595 loan customers from 3,328 (2020) to 3,923 accounts with a 
total net credit increase of 211.84 billion Kip (40.36%) from 524.95 billion Kip (2020) to 736.73 billion 
Kip.

Borrowing: The Bank has renewed the loan agreement from Mizuho Bank Bangkok Branch, 
Thailand $20 million, and renewed a loan agreement from First Commercial Bank of Vientiane for 24 
billion kip, while a loan from the Bank of the Lao PDR of 9.3 billion kip in 2020 is a long-term agree-
ment unchanged.

Increase of registered capital: there is no increase in registered capital in 2021

MARUHAN Japan Bank Lao

We are committed to support MSME sector beyond the challenging time from the global pandemic. 

and medium-sized business units through the Department of Small and Medium Business Promotion 
(DOSMEP). The bank received a total of 51 billion kip from the project to provide loans to customers in 
the priority areas of the government at an interest rate of 3% per annum. In addition, our bank partici

to borrow money from the People's Republic of China (CDB) which provides loans to business entities 
in accordance with government priorities. We are grateful to the Ministry of Industry and Commerce & 

and strengthening our SME digital ecosystem. 

larger scope including environment and people. Moreover, we have also embarked on Electric Vehicles 

99.4% and deposits achieved 102.5% of the plan. To support individuals and MSME to recover from the 

CoVID19 outbreak, with a total of 404 eligible customers. As reported last year, we are on a three-year 
turnaround program, and we continued to invest in technology, platform, and capabilities. Per plan, we 
recorded another year of losses. However, we have now turned the corner ahead of our three-year plan, 

On a positive note, notwithstanding the challenges, I am pleased to share highlights of our achieve
ments in FY2021. Some key highlights on our strategic agenda on Trust, Customer-centricity & Digital 

• Our customer base increased by 42% to 26,000. 
• Our award-winning mobile banking app, MJ Saduak, has grown by 75%.
• Our QR merchant base grew by 87%. 
• Under the auspices of Ministry of Health, launched our Vira-Bu-Loud (Hero) fund where people can 
donate to support frontliners & volunteers during the pandemic of CoVID-19.

We are thankful for a few recognitions:  
• Awarded by the ASEAN Business Awards: Special Award – Friend of Laos, for our contribution to Lao 
PDR.
• Awarded by LNCCI as Top Business Leader in response to CoVID-19.
• Awarded for our MJBL Virtual Debit MasterCard as Best New Virtual Debit Card by Global Economics, 
UK.
• Awarded as Fastest Growing Commercial Bank by Global Economics, UK.

Sabaidee Thouk Khon!

year (FY) 2020 to 2022. I would like to continue with an update of our second-year transformation, 
FY2021. FY2021 had been a very challenging year with the severe global impact of CoVID-19 in its 

Laos has not been spared. 

Given this situation, what do we do? 

We focused on strengthening our foundation and investing for the future, to grow responsibly and 
sustainable, summed up by three key pillars:  

1. Systems. On the technology front, we strengthened our internal capabilities by embarking on our 
core banking system upgrade, a major project across the bank. We also developed numerous innova
tive solutions. These enhances our products, services, and speed to market.  

2. Process. We continue to focus strongly on customers, by automating processes and streamlining 
operations. We have taken direct feedback from consumers, businesses and partners. In collaboration 
with our partners, we developed capabilities to provide better services and embed ourselves into the 
lifestyle of our customers and community. Under the auspices of BOL, we have innovated a new 
channel and service called MJ Sabai (Agency Banking). This combines our innovative digital capabili

banking services to the unbanked and underbanked segment. We continue to innovate on our prod
ucts and services by enabling more services online. Customers can also apply online or access to 
online banking for SME and corporate.

3. People. Our greatest asset. We are pleased to focus on substantially investing and grooming inter
nal talents for their career development. Over the last one year, we have promoted many local 
employees into senior leadership roles, including CFO & CRO. The bank has invested substantial 
resources into grooming our next generation leaders. This augurs well for our sustainability agenda 
of MJBL. 

MARUHAN Japan Bank Lao

ຍຸດທະສາດຂອງດິຈິຕອລ

ເພ�ອສະໜອງປະສ�ບການລູກຄ້າຊ�ນໜ�ງ, MJBL ກ�າລ�ງສຸມໃສ�ການຫ�ນເປັນດິຈິຕອລໃນຂະບວນການຫຼ�ກໆເຊ�ນ: ການເປີດບ�ນຊີ, ການໂອນເງິນ, 
ການອະນຸມ�ດເງິນກູ້ທ�ນທີ ເຊ�ງມ�ນຈະເປັນການວາງແຜນໃນຍຸດທະສາດຂອງພວກເຮົາ ໃນຖານະເປັນສະຖາບ�ນການທະນາຄານທ�ເປັນທ�ມີ
ຄວາມນິຍ�ມທ�ສຸດໃນປະເທດລາວ. ວິໄສທ�ດຂອງພວກເຮົາແມ�ນເພ�ອໃຫ້ບໍລິການຄວາມເປັນດິຈິຕອລ, ເຮັດໃຫ້ການຊ�າລະແບບດິຈິຕອລມີຄວາມງ�າຍ
ສະດວກສະບາຍໂດຍການມີຫລາຍທາງອອກໃນການຊຳລະປະເພດຕ�າງໆເຊ�ນ: ຈ�າຍເງິນຜ�ານ MasterCard, ແອັບພລິເຄຊ�ນມືຖື, 
e-wallet ແລະ ການຊຳລະຜ�ານ QR.

ປະຈຸບ�ນນ�, ທະນາຄານໄດ້ມີຖານຮ້ານຄ້າຂະຫຍາຍເພ�ມຂ�ນຫຼາຍກວ�າ 3,000 ຮ້ານຄ້າໃນປີ 2021 ແລະ ວາງເປ�າໝາຍທ�ຈະບ�ນລຸຢ�າງໜ້ອຍ 
10,000 ຮ້ານຄ້າ ໃນປີ 2022 ຕາມແຜນຍຸດທະສາດທຸລະກິດໂດຍລວມຂອງພວກເຮົາ. ການຮ�ວມມືຢ�າງໃກ້ຊິດກ�ບຄູ�ຮ�ວມທຸລະກິດ ແມ�ນປ�ດໃຈ
ແຫ�ງຄວາມສ�າເລັດທ�ສ�າຄ�ນສ�າລ�ບການເຊ�ອມຕ�ສ�າລ�ບ App ກ�ບ App ແລະການເຊ�ອມໂຍງ QR.

MJBL ຈະຍ�ງຄ�ງຄ�ນຄວ້າເພ�ອຊ�ວຍຫ�ດຜ�ອນຄ�າໃຊ້ຈ�າຍໃຫ້ແກ�ລູກຄ້າໃນການເຮັດທຸລະກ�າໂດຍການນ�າໃຊ້ການບໍລິການແບບດິຈິຕອລເຊ�ນ: ຄ�າ
ຮ້ອງສະຫມ�ກເງິນກູ້ແບບອອນໄລນ໌, ການເປີດບ�ນຊີ ອອນໄລນ໌ (e-CASA & e-TD), ເພ�ອເຮັດໃຫ້ລູກຄ້າສາມາດເຮັດທຸລະກ�າໄດ້ທ�ນທີແບບສະ 
ດວກສະບາຍ, ທຸກທ� ທຸກເວລາ.

ນອກຈາກນ�ນ, ທະນາຄານຈະສືບຕ�ປ�ບປຸງ ແລະ ສ�ງເສີມການນ�າໃຊ້ຄວາມເປັນດິຈິຕອລເຊ�ນ: ການເປີດບ�ນຊີທ�ງຫມ�ດຕ້ອງເຮັດຜ�ານແທັບເລັດ
ໃນທຸກໆຊ�ອງທາງການບໍລິການຂອງ MJBL ບ�ວ�າຈະເປັນ ຜ�ານພະນ�ກງານຂາຍຕ�ງ, ທ�ສຳນ�ກງານໃຫຍ�, ທ�ສາຂາ ແລະ ຕ�ວແທນທະນາຄານ
ທາງດ້ານການເງິນ (MJ Sabai). ຊ�ງຈະເຮັດໃຫ້ພະນ�ກງານຂອງພວກເຮົາມີເວລາເຫລືອເພ�ອໃສ�ໃຈທຸກຈຸດທ�ສຳຄ�ນໃນການບໍລິການຕ�ມ.

ຕ�ວແທນທະນາຄານທາງດ້ານການເງິນ

ທະນາຄານທ�ບ�ແມ�ນສາຂາ ຫຼື ຕ�ວແທນທະນາຄານດ້ານການເງິນ ແມ�ນໜ�ງໃນຍຸດທະສາດຫລ�ກສຳລ�ບສ�ກປີ 2020 ໂດຍມີເປ�າໝາຍສ�ງເສີມ
ໃຫ້ມີທຸລະກຳຜ�ານຊ�ອງທາງນ� 90%. ຕ�ວແທນທະນາຄານທາງດ້ານການເງິນຈະເອົາຊະນະຂ�ຈຳກ�ດຂອງການເຂ�າເຖິງໜ�ວຍບໍລິການ ແລະ 
ການທ�ມີສາຂາຄວບຄຸມພ�ນທ�ໜ້ອຍ. ໂດຍສະເພາະໃນປະເທດລາວບ�ນດາບ້ານ ແລະ ເມືອງຕ�າງໆຈຳເປັນຕ້ອງໄດ້ໃຊ້ແຜນຍຸດທະສາດໃນ
ການກະຈາຍໃຫ້ແທດເໝາະ. ຕ�ວຢ�າງເຊ�ນ:ປະຊາກອນໃນນະຄອນຫຼວງວຽງຈ�ນມີ 760,000 ກວ�າຄ�ນ ຊ�ງກວມເອົາ 40% ຂອງປະຊາກອນທ�ງ 
ໝ�ດໃນປະເທດລາວ. ກ�ງກ�ນຂ້າມ, ໃນທ�ວປະເທດມີໝູ�ບ້ານທ�ຢູ�ໃນໂຕເມືອງ 1.469 ບ້ານ ແລະ ບ້ານທ�ຢູ�ຊ�ນນະບ�ດໃນທ�ວປະເທດມີ 7.038 
ບ້ານ. ໂດຍບ້ານທ�ຢູ�ໃນໂຕເມືອງມີປະຊາກອນອາໄສຢູ� 2.000 ຫາ 10.000 ຄ�ນ, ໃນຂະນະທ� ບ້ານໃນເຂດຊ�ນນະບ�ດແມ�ນມີ 100 ຫາ 2.000 
ຄ�ນ ອາໄສຢູ� ແລະ ຕ�ຈາກນ�ໄປ ຕ�ວແທນທະນາຄານທາງດ້ານການເງິນ (MJ Sabai) ຂອງເຮົາຈະຂະຫຍາຍການບໍລິການຂອງທະນາຄານໃຫ້
ໄປເຖິງ 1,500 ແຫ�ງໃນທ�ວປະເທດລາວ ເພ�ອເຮັດໃຫ້ທະນາຄານສາມາດດຳເນີນທຸລະກິດໂດຍໃຊ້ຕ�ວແທນຂອງພວກເຮົາເປັນຜູ້ໃຫ້ບໍລິການແທນ.

ຄວາມໝາຍຂອງຕ�ວແທນທະນາຄານທາງດ້ານການເງິນຂອງພວກເຮົາ ແມ�ນເພ�ອຂ�ບເຄ�ອນແນວຄວາມ ການທະນາຄານແບບດິຈິຕອລ. ໂດຍການ
ນ�າໃຊ້ຮູບແບບດິຈິຕອລທ�ພວກເຮົາມີຢູ�ແລ້ວໃນການເຊ�ອມລະບ�ບເຊ�ງກ�ໄດ້ຮ�ບການທ�ດລອງຢ�າງເຕັມຮູບແບບ ແລະ ກ�ເປີດໂຕໃຊ້ໄດ້ສຳເລັດແລ້ວໃນບ�
ດ�ນມານ�. ໃນອະນາຄ�ດອ�ນໃກ້ຕ�ວແທນທະນາຄານທາງດ້ານການເງິນຂອງເຮົາອາດຈະເຮັດສາມາດບ�ນຈຸທຸລະກ�າທ�ບ�ໃຊ້ເຈ້ຍໂດຍຜ�ານແທັບເລັດ 
ຫຼື ແລັບທ�ອບ, ເຊ�ງຈະສາມາດຊ�ວຍໃຫ້ທຸລະກິດເຮົາປະຢ�ດໄດ້ຫຼາຍຂ�ນ.

ຈຸດສ�າຄ�ນ 2 ປະການ ສ�າລ�ບການສາ້ງຕ�ວແທນທະນາຄານທາງດ້ານການເງິນຂອງພວກເຮົາແມ�ນເພ�ອຫ�ດຜ�ອນຕ�ນທຶນເມ�ອທຽບກ�ບການເປີດ
ໜ�ວຍບໍລິການທະນາຄານແບບເຕັມຮູບແບບ ແລະ ເພ�ອຂະຫຍາຍການບໍລິການຂອງພວກເຮົາໃຫ້ໄປເຖິງເຂດຫ�າງໄກສອກຫຼີກທ�ລູກຄ້າສ�ວນໃຫຍ�
ອາໄສຢູ�. ໂດຍເພ�ອບ�ນລຸຈຸດປະສ�ງຫລ�ກຂອງພວກເຮົາ ກ�ຄື MJ22 ໃນການເລ�ງຂະຫຍາຍຕ�ວຖານລູກຄ້າຂອງຕ�ວແທນທະນາຄານທາງດ້ານການເງິນ.
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IT system development: In addition to the development of mobile business systems,
the bank has also developed the agency banking system (known as MJ Sabai) by opening an 
account through a tablet, and within a year the core banking system was updated from version 11.1 

Risk management and regulatory improvement: The management structure has been 
reviewed in order to ensure adequacy in addressing and mitigating the relevant risks faced by the 
Bank in order to protect the interests of its stakeholders. 

Human resource management:
163 employees, including foreign and local experts and technicians. There are 150 Lao and 10 

Expansion of the network: Launched a variety of services such as cooperation with business 
partners, expand the network of agents through the Representative Bank (MJ Sabai), including 18 
outlets in Vientiane Capital and other provinces (Vientiane and Luang Prabang), with the expansion 
of 2 additional ATMs.

External cooperation:
to provide funding for small and medium-sized business units through the Department of Small and 
Medium Business Promotion (DOSMEP). The bank received a total of 51 billion kip from the project 
to provide loans to customers in the priority areas of the government at an interest rate of 3% per 
annum. The aims are to promote the growth of small and medium enterprises. In addition, our bank 

outbreak, and to borrow money from the People's Republic of China (CDB) which provides loans to 
business entities in accordance with government priorities. We have also expressed our intention to 
participate in the World Bank's Small and Medium-Sized. 

We have strengthened our cooperation with the Chamber of Commerce and other associations such 
as the National Chamber of Commerce and Industry (LNCCI), the Champassak Chamber of Com-
merce and Industry (CCCI), LuangPrabang Chamber of Commerce and Industry (LCCI), Small and 
Medium Business Association (LAOSME), Lao ICT Association (LICA), Lao Handicraft Association 
(LHA), Lao Women's Business Association (LWBA), Lao Young Entrepreneurs Association (YEAL) and 
others.

Our Bank has a strong intention to contribute to the development of small and medium enterprises 
in Lao PDR, such as attending conferences, seminars and trade fairs with the participation of various 
business units such as: ODOP Trade Fair, an exhibition of Lao handicrafts and woodwork, national 
handicrafts, and local trade fairs, including Lao food festivals.

 Within the year, the bad
-

ered in the year 8.7 billion Kip (recovered the total amount is 23.56 billion Kip), uncollected debts are 
58 billion Kip, the ratio of non-performing loans (NPL) is 4.40% increased by 0.45%.

Overview of Laos’ Economy in 2021 and forecast for 2022

Overall Financial Stability 2021

continues to depreciate, and the country retains limited foreign exchange reserves. Despite better 
performance in 2021 than the previous year, implementation of revenue collection failed to meet 

non-tax sources. Meanwhile, an experiment to collect revenue from cryptocurrency mining opera-
tions and exchanges still faces a number of challenges.

Lao Economic Trends 2022

The economy of Laos is expected to grow by 4.0% in 2022, provided that key economic sectors are 
able to maintain growth close to that of the previous year, while the reopening of the country to 
tourism should help the service sector recover at a faster pace.

Summarize the results of business operations in 2021

By 2021, the Bank continued to focus on credit expansion, which reached 99.4% and deposits 
achieved 102.5% of the plan, although lending and deposit mobilization will go according to plan, 

from April 2021 onwards, the business unit has closed down due to a lockdown. Although the bank 
-

ers who do not receive this policy. At the end of the year, the NPL rate was 4.4% higher than the stan-

the banks’ loss was 36.47 billion kip, of which operating loss covered for 37%, from credit loss 
covered for 28%, and 35% was loss from depreciation of kip (FX loss).

Deposit : the bank has continued to facilitate customers to open deposit accounts such as Current 
account, Savings and Fixed Deposit Accounts. Through many channels, whether it is to open an 
account through the counter and through the bank's application MJ Saduak, open a digital account 
at the World Trade Center without paper, through agency banking (MJ Sabai), By the end of 2021, 
the Bank's deposit balance increased by 213.11 billion Kip (41.42%) from 514.57 billion Kip (2020) to 
727.68 billion Kip, with a total of 22,639 deposit customers, an increase of 12.79% compared to the 
previous year.

Loan : the bank focused on expanding various types of loans according to the needs of customers, 
especially vehicle loans, housing loans, business loans, personal loans and other loans. The bank was 
able to increase the total number of 595 loan customers from 3,328 (2020) to 3,923 accounts with a 
total net credit increase of 211.84 billion Kip (40.36%) from 524.95 billion Kip (2020) to 736.73 billion 
Kip.

Borrowing: The Bank has renewed the loan agreement from Mizuho Bank Bangkok Branch, 
Thailand $20 million, and renewed a loan agreement from First Commercial Bank of Vientiane for 24 
billion kip, while a loan from the Bank of the Lao PDR of 9.3 billion kip in 2020 is a long-term agree-
ment unchanged.

Increase of registered capital: there is no increase in registered capital in 2021

MARUHAN Japan Bank Lao

We are committed to support MSME sector beyond the challenging time from the global pandemic. 

and medium-sized business units through the Department of Small and Medium Business Promotion 
(DOSMEP). The bank received a total of 51 billion kip from the project to provide loans to customers in 
the priority areas of the government at an interest rate of 3% per annum. In addition, our bank partici

to borrow money from the People's Republic of China (CDB) which provides loans to business entities 
in accordance with government priorities. We are grateful to the Ministry of Industry and Commerce & 

and strengthening our SME digital ecosystem. 

larger scope including environment and people. Moreover, we have also embarked on Electric Vehicles 

99.4% and deposits achieved 102.5% of the plan. To support individuals and MSME to recover from the 

CoVID19 outbreak, with a total of 404 eligible customers. As reported last year, we are on a three-year 
turnaround program, and we continued to invest in technology, platform, and capabilities. Per plan, we 
recorded another year of losses. However, we have now turned the corner ahead of our three-year plan, 

On a positive note, notwithstanding the challenges, I am pleased to share highlights of our achieve
ments in FY2021. Some key highlights on our strategic agenda on Trust, Customer-centricity & Digital 

• Our customer base increased by 42% to 26,000. 
• Our award-winning mobile banking app, MJ Saduak, has grown by 75%.
• Our QR merchant base grew by 87%. 
• Under the auspices of Ministry of Health, launched our Vira-Bu-Loud (Hero) fund where people can 
donate to support frontliners & volunteers during the pandemic of CoVID-19.

We are thankful for a few recognitions:  
• Awarded by the ASEAN Business Awards: Special Award – Friend of Laos, for our contribution to Lao 
PDR.
• Awarded by LNCCI as Top Business Leader in response to CoVID-19.
• Awarded for our MJBL Virtual Debit MasterCard as Best New Virtual Debit Card by Global Economics, 
UK.
• Awarded as Fastest Growing Commercial Bank by Global Economics, UK.

Sabaidee Thouk Khon!

year (FY) 2020 to 2022. I would like to continue with an update of our second-year transformation, 
FY2021. FY2021 had been a very challenging year with the severe global impact of CoVID-19 in its 

Laos has not been spared. 

Given this situation, what do we do? 

We focused on strengthening our foundation and investing for the future, to grow responsibly and 
sustainable, summed up by three key pillars:  

1. Systems. On the technology front, we strengthened our internal capabilities by embarking on our 
core banking system upgrade, a major project across the bank. We also developed numerous innova
tive solutions. These enhances our products, services, and speed to market.  

2. Process. We continue to focus strongly on customers, by automating processes and streamlining 
operations. We have taken direct feedback from consumers, businesses and partners. In collaboration 
with our partners, we developed capabilities to provide better services and embed ourselves into the 
lifestyle of our customers and community. Under the auspices of BOL, we have innovated a new 
channel and service called MJ Sabai (Agency Banking). This combines our innovative digital capabili

banking services to the unbanked and underbanked segment. We continue to innovate on our prod
ucts and services by enabling more services online. Customers can also apply online or access to 
online banking for SME and corporate.

3. People. Our greatest asset. We are pleased to focus on substantially investing and grooming inter
nal talents for their career development. Over the last one year, we have promoted many local 
employees into senior leadership roles, including CFO & CRO. The bank has invested substantial 
resources into grooming our next generation leaders. This augurs well for our sustainability agenda 
of MJBL. 

MARUHAN Japan Bank Lao

ສິດ ແລະ ໜ້າ ທ�ຂອງຄະນະ ແລະ ບໍລິຫານບໍລິຫານ

ທຸລະກິດ ແລະ ວຽກງານຂອງທະນາຄານແມ�ນໄດ້ຮ�ບການຄຸ້ມຄອງພາຍໃຕ້ການຊ�ນຳ ແລະ ຕິດຕາມກວດກາຂອງຄະນະກຳມະການບໍລິຫານ
ງານ, ເຊ�ງມີຄວາມຮ�ບຜິດຊອບໃນການລາຍງານ ແລະ ສະໜອງຂ�ມູນກ�ຽວກ�ບການດຳເນີນງານຂອງທະນາຄານໃຫ້ຜູ້ຖືຮຸ້ນ, ມີຄວາມຮ�ບຜິດ 
ຊອບຕ�ຄວາມເສຍຫາຍ/ການກະທຳຜິດທ�ເກີດຂ�ນກ�ບທະນາຄານ. ເພ�ອແນະນຳການແບ�ງກຳໄລເປັນທຶນ ແລະ ຈ�ດສ�ນເງິນປ�ນຜ�ນ, ສະເໜີແຜນ
ທຸລະກິດ ແລະ ແຕ�ງຕ�ງຄະນະກຳມະການປ�ກຄອງ, ຄະນະກຳມະການກວດກາພາຍໃນ ແລະ ຄະນະກຳມະການຄຸ້ມຄອງຄວາມສ�ຽງໃຫ້ແກ�
ຄະນະກຳມະການບໍລິຫານງານ. ໃນບ�ນດາສິດ ແລະ ໜ້າທ�ອ�ນໆ. ຄະນະກຳມະການໂດຍຜ�ານຄະນະກຳມະການບໍລິຫານ, ຄະນະກຳມະການ
ກວດກາພາຍໃນ ແລະ ຄະນະກຳມະການຄຸ້ມຄອງຄວາມສ�ຽງໃຫ້ການກວດກາປະສິດທິພາບຂອງການບໍລິຫານ, ການປະເມີນຄວາມສ�ຽງ ແລະ 
ການຄຸ້ມຄອງການດຳເນີນທຸລະກິດ ແລະ ປະຕິບ�ດຕາມຂ�ກຳນ�ດຂອງລະບຽບການ.

ຜູ້ອຳນວຍການໃຫຍ� ແລະ ຮອງຜູ້ອຳນວຍການໃຫຍ� (ຜູ້ບໍລິຫານງານ) ເປັນຜູ້ຮ�ບຜິດຊອບຕ�ການດຳເນີນງານປະຈຳວ�ນຂອງທະນາຄານການ 
ອີງຕາມສິດ ແລະ ໜ້າທ� ທ�ໄດ້ກຳນ�ດໄວ້ໃນລະບຽບພາຍໃນຂອງທະນາຄານການຄ້າ. ການແຕ�ງຕ�ງ ແລະ ປ�ດຕຳແໜ�ງທ�ງສອງຕຳແໜ�ງ ແມ�ນ
ໂດຍຄະນະກຳມະການປ�ກຄອງຈ�ດໃຫ້ດ�າລ�ງຕ�າແໜ�ງເປັນເວລາ 3 ປີຕິດຕ�ກ�ນ ຫລື ອາດຈະໄດ້ຮ�ບການແຕ�ງຕ�ງຕ�ອີກແຕ�ບ�ໃຫ້ເກີນ 3 ຄ�ງ
ຕິດຕ�ກ�ນ. ຜູ້ອຳນວຍການໃຫຍ� ແລະ ຮອງຜູ້ຮອງ ສາມາດເປັນສະມາຊິກຂອງຄະນະກຳມະການແຕ�ບ�ຄວນເປັນປະທານ ຫລື ຮອງປະທານສະ 
ພາບໍລິຫານ. ການແຕ�ງຕ�ງຜູ້ອຳນວຍການໃຫຍ� ແລະ ຮອງຜູ້ອຳນວຍການໃຫຍ�ຕ້ອງໄດ້ຮ�ບການອະນຸມ�ດກ�ອນຈາກ ທຫລ.

ສິດ ແລະ ໜ້າທ�ຂອງສະພາບໍລິຫານ ແລະ ຜູ້ອ�ານວຍການໃຫຍ�/ຮອງຜູ້ອ�ານວຍການໃຫຍ� ແມ�ນໄດ້ຖືກກຳນ�ດໄວ້ໃນກ�ດລະບຽບຂອງບໍລິສ�ດ 
ຂອງທະນາຄານມາຣູຮານ ເຈແປນ ລາວ ຈຳກ�ດ, ເຊ�ງໄດ້ຖືກກຳນ�ດໄວ້ໃນກ�ດໝາຍວ�າດ້ວຍທະນາຄານທຸລະກິດ (ສະບ�ບປ�ບປຸງ, ເລກທີ 56 / 
ສພຊ, ນະຄອນຫຼວງວຽງຈ�ນ) ລ�ງວ�ນທີ 7 ທ�ນວາ 2018. 

ການບໍລິຫານ ແລະ ຄຸ້ມຄອງຄວາມສ�ຽງ
ການປ�ກຄອງຂອງທະນາຄານ
ໂຄງຮ�າງການຈ�ດຕ�ງຂອງ MJBL

ຄະນະອຳນວຍການ

ຜູ້ອຳນວຍການໃຫຍ�

ຄະນະກຳມະການ
ຄະນະກຳມະການ ຄຸ້ມຄອງ

ຄະນະກຳມະການ ບໍລິຫານຄວາມສ�ຽງ
ກຳມະການຝ�າຍກວດສອບ

ຄວບຄຸມ

ຄະນະກຳມະການສິນເຊ�ອທ້ອງຖ�ນ
(LCC)

ຊ�ບສິນ ແລະ ຄວາມຮ�ບຜິດຊອບ
ຂອງຄະນະບໍລິຫານ

(ALMC)

ໜ້າທ�ຮ�ບຜິດຊອບຂອງຄະນະ
ບໍລິຫານຄວາມສຽ�ງວິສາຫະກິດ ຝ�າຍລະບຽບການ ຝ�າຍກວດສອບພາຍໃນ

ຝ�າຍບໍລິຫານຄວາມສ�ຽງ ຫ�ວໜ້າ ຝ�າຍລະບຽບການ ຫ�ວໜ້າຝ�າຍກວດສອບພາຍໃນ
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IT system development: In addition to the development of mobile business systems,
the bank has also developed the agency banking system (known as MJ Sabai) by opening an 
account through a tablet, and within a year the core banking system was updated from version 11.1 

Risk management and regulatory improvement: The management structure has been 
reviewed in order to ensure adequacy in addressing and mitigating the relevant risks faced by the 
Bank in order to protect the interests of its stakeholders. 

Human resource management:
163 employees, including foreign and local experts and technicians. There are 150 Lao and 10 

Expansion of the network: Launched a variety of services such as cooperation with business 
partners, expand the network of agents through the Representative Bank (MJ Sabai), including 18 
outlets in Vientiane Capital and other provinces (Vientiane and Luang Prabang), with the expansion 
of 2 additional ATMs.

External cooperation:
to provide funding for small and medium-sized business units through the Department of Small and 
Medium Business Promotion (DOSMEP). The bank received a total of 51 billion kip from the project 
to provide loans to customers in the priority areas of the government at an interest rate of 3% per 
annum. The aims are to promote the growth of small and medium enterprises. In addition, our bank 

outbreak, and to borrow money from the People's Republic of China (CDB) which provides loans to 
business entities in accordance with government priorities. We have also expressed our intention to 
participate in the World Bank's Small and Medium-Sized. 

We have strengthened our cooperation with the Chamber of Commerce and other associations such 
as the National Chamber of Commerce and Industry (LNCCI), the Champassak Chamber of Com-
merce and Industry (CCCI), LuangPrabang Chamber of Commerce and Industry (LCCI), Small and 
Medium Business Association (LAOSME), Lao ICT Association (LICA), Lao Handicraft Association 
(LHA), Lao Women's Business Association (LWBA), Lao Young Entrepreneurs Association (YEAL) and 
others.

Our Bank has a strong intention to contribute to the development of small and medium enterprises 
in Lao PDR, such as attending conferences, seminars and trade fairs with the participation of various 
business units such as: ODOP Trade Fair, an exhibition of Lao handicrafts and woodwork, national 
handicrafts, and local trade fairs, including Lao food festivals.

 Within the year, the bad
-

ered in the year 8.7 billion Kip (recovered the total amount is 23.56 billion Kip), uncollected debts are 
58 billion Kip, the ratio of non-performing loans (NPL) is 4.40% increased by 0.45%.

Overview of Laos’ Economy in 2021 and forecast for 2022

Overall Financial Stability 2021

continues to depreciate, and the country retains limited foreign exchange reserves. Despite better 
performance in 2021 than the previous year, implementation of revenue collection failed to meet 

non-tax sources. Meanwhile, an experiment to collect revenue from cryptocurrency mining opera-
tions and exchanges still faces a number of challenges.

Lao Economic Trends 2022

The economy of Laos is expected to grow by 4.0% in 2022, provided that key economic sectors are 
able to maintain growth close to that of the previous year, while the reopening of the country to 
tourism should help the service sector recover at a faster pace.

Summarize the results of business operations in 2021

By 2021, the Bank continued to focus on credit expansion, which reached 99.4% and deposits 
achieved 102.5% of the plan, although lending and deposit mobilization will go according to plan, 

from April 2021 onwards, the business unit has closed down due to a lockdown. Although the bank 
-

ers who do not receive this policy. At the end of the year, the NPL rate was 4.4% higher than the stan-

the banks’ loss was 36.47 billion kip, of which operating loss covered for 37%, from credit loss 
covered for 28%, and 35% was loss from depreciation of kip (FX loss).

Deposit : the bank has continued to facilitate customers to open deposit accounts such as Current 
account, Savings and Fixed Deposit Accounts. Through many channels, whether it is to open an 
account through the counter and through the bank's application MJ Saduak, open a digital account 
at the World Trade Center without paper, through agency banking (MJ Sabai), By the end of 2021, 
the Bank's deposit balance increased by 213.11 billion Kip (41.42%) from 514.57 billion Kip (2020) to 
727.68 billion Kip, with a total of 22,639 deposit customers, an increase of 12.79% compared to the 
previous year.

Loan : the bank focused on expanding various types of loans according to the needs of customers, 
especially vehicle loans, housing loans, business loans, personal loans and other loans. The bank was 
able to increase the total number of 595 loan customers from 3,328 (2020) to 3,923 accounts with a 
total net credit increase of 211.84 billion Kip (40.36%) from 524.95 billion Kip (2020) to 736.73 billion 
Kip.

Borrowing: The Bank has renewed the loan agreement from Mizuho Bank Bangkok Branch, 
Thailand $20 million, and renewed a loan agreement from First Commercial Bank of Vientiane for 24 
billion kip, while a loan from the Bank of the Lao PDR of 9.3 billion kip in 2020 is a long-term agree-
ment unchanged.

Increase of registered capital: there is no increase in registered capital in 2021

MARUHAN Japan Bank Lao

We are committed to support MSME sector beyond the challenging time from the global pandemic. 

and medium-sized business units through the Department of Small and Medium Business Promotion 
(DOSMEP). The bank received a total of 51 billion kip from the project to provide loans to customers in 
the priority areas of the government at an interest rate of 3% per annum. In addition, our bank partici-

to borrow money from the People's Republic of China (CDB) which provides loans to business entities 
in accordance with government priorities. We are grateful to the Ministry of Industry and Commerce & 

and strengthening our SME digital ecosystem. 

larger scope including environment and people. Moreover, we have also embarked on Electric Vehicles 

-

99.4% and deposits achieved 102.5% of the plan. To support individuals and MSME to recover from the 

CoVID19 outbreak, with a total of 404 eligible customers. As reported last year, we are on a three-year 
turnaround program, and we continued to invest in technology, platform, and capabilities. Per plan, we 
recorded another year of losses. However, we have now turned the corner ahead of our three-year plan, 

On a positive note, notwithstanding the challenges, I am pleased to share highlights of our achieve-
ments in FY2021. Some key highlights on our strategic agenda on Trust, Customer-centricity & Digital 

• Our customer base increased by 42% to 26,000. 
• Our award-winning mobile banking app, MJ Saduak, has grown by 75%.
• Our QR merchant base grew by 87%. 
• Under the auspices of Ministry of Health, launched our Vira-Bu-Loud (Hero) fund where people can 
donate to support frontliners & volunteers during the pandemic of CoVID-19.

We are thankful for a few recognitions:  
• Awarded by the ASEAN Business Awards: Special Award – Friend of Laos, for our contribution to Lao 
PDR.
• Awarded by LNCCI as Top Business Leader in response to CoVID-19.
• Awarded for our MJBL Virtual Debit MasterCard as Best New Virtual Debit Card by Global Economics, 
UK.
• Awarded as Fastest Growing Commercial Bank by Global Economics, UK.

Sabaidee Thouk Khon!

year (FY) 2020 to 2022. I would like to continue with an update of our second-year transformation, 
FY2021. FY2021 had been a very challenging year with the severe global impact of CoVID-19 in its 

Laos has not been spared. 

Given this situation, what do we do? 

We focused on strengthening our foundation and investing for the future, to grow responsibly and 
sustainable, summed up by three key pillars:  

1. Systems. On the technology front, we strengthened our internal capabilities by embarking on our 
core banking system upgrade, a major project across the bank. We also developed numerous innova-
tive solutions. These enhances our products, services, and speed to market.  

2. Process. We continue to focus strongly on customers, by automating processes and streamlining 
operations. We have taken direct feedback from consumers, businesses and partners. In collaboration 
with our partners, we developed capabilities to provide better services and embed ourselves into the 
lifestyle of our customers and community. Under the auspices of BOL, we have innovated a new 
channel and service called MJ Sabai (Agency Banking). This combines our innovative digital capabili-

-

banking services to the unbanked and underbanked segment. We continue to innovate on our prod-
ucts and services by enabling more services online. Customers can also apply online or access to 
online banking for SME and corporate.

3. People. Our greatest asset. We are pleased to focus on substantially investing and grooming inter-
nal talents for their career development. Over the last one year, we have promoted many local 
employees into senior leadership roles, including CFO & CRO. The bank has invested substantial 
resources into grooming our next generation leaders. This augurs well for our sustainability agenda 
of MJBL. 
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ຄະນະສະພາບໍລິຫານ

ແມ�ນປະກອບດ້ວຍສະມາຊິກ ຫ້າ (5) ເຖິງເຈັດ (7) ຄື: ປະທານ, ຮອງປະທານ ແລະ ສະມາຊິກໃນຄະນະທ�ຜູ້ຖືຫຸ້ນໄດ້ໃຫ້ການຕ�ກລ�ງເຫັນດີ 
ເປັນຫຼ�ກການໃນກອງປະຊຸມ. ອາຍຸການຂອງຜູ້ອຳນວຍການໃຫຍ�ຈະສ�ນສຸດໃນທຸກໆ 3 ປີຕິດຕ�ກ�ນ ແລະ ມີສິດໄດ້ຮ�ບການເລືອກຕ�ງຄືນໃໝ�
ແຕ�ບ�ໃຫ້ເກີນ 3 ຄ�ງຕິດຕ�ກ�ນ ຫລື ຕາມກ�ດໝາຍ.

ສະມາຊິກຂອງສະພາບໍລິຫານທຸກຄ�ນ ແມ�ນຜູ້ທ�ມີຄວາມຕ�ງໃຈ ແລະ ມີຄວາມເຂ�າໃຈສູງກ�ຽວກ�ບທຸລະກິດການທະນາຄານ. ພວກເຂົາມີທ�ກສະ
, ຄວາມຮູ້, ປະສ�ບການ ແລະ ຄວາມສາມາດເພ�ອແກ້ໄຂຄວາມສ�ຽງ ແລະ ບ�ນຫາໃຫຍ�ທ�ກ�ຽວຂ້ອງກ�ບທຸລະກິດຂອງທະນາຄານ, ນະໂຍບາຍ 
ແລະ ຍຸດທະສາດຂອງທະນາຄານ. ຄະນະກຳມະການບໍລິຫານ ແມ�ນມີຄຸນນະສ�ມບ�ດຄ�ບຖ້ວນພຽງພໍຕາມເງ�ອນໄຂທ�ຕ້ອງການຂອງທະນາຄານ
ແຫ�ງສປປລາວ. ຊີວະປະຫວ�ດຂອງຄະນະກຳມະການບໍລິຫານແມ�ນໄດ້ຕິດຄ�ດມາໜ້າ 3 ຂອງບ�ດລາຍງານປະຈຳປີນ�.

ຄະນະກຳມະການ ຂອງ ສະພາບໍລິຫານ

ຄະນະກຳມະການຂອງຄະນະບໍລິຫານປະກອບມີ: ຄະນະກຳມະການປ�ກຄອງ, ຄະນະກຳມະການກວດກາພາຍໃນ ແລະ ຄະນະກຳມະການ
ຄວບຄຸມຄວາມສ�ຽງ. ຖ້າເຫັນວ�າມີຄວາມຈຳເປັນ, ຄະນະກຳມະການອ�ນໆສາມາດໄດ້ຮ�ບການສ້າງຕ�ງຂ�ນໂດຍການອະນຸມ�ດຈາກຄະນະກຳ 
ມະການບໍລິຫານ.

ຄະນະກຳມະການ ແມ�ນໃຫ້ມີສະມາຊິກຢ�າງໜ້ອຍ 3 ຄ�ນ, ເຊ�ງຄ�ນໜ�ງຮ�ບໜ້າທ�ເປັນປະທານ. ຖ້າມີຄະນະກຳມະການທ�ເປັນເອກະລາດໃນ
ຄະນະກຳມະການດ�ງກ�າວ, ຜູ້ນ�ນຈະຮ�ບໜ້າທ�ເປັນປະທານເອງ. ສະມາຊິກສະພາບໍລິຫານອາດຈະເປັນສະມາຊິກໃນຄະນະກຳມະການໃດ
ໜ�ງ, ແຕ�ຈະສາມາດເປັນປະທານຂອງຄະນະກຳມະການບ�ອນດຽວເທ�ານ�ນ.

ຄະນະກຳມະການຂອງຄະນະບໍລິຫານ ຈະດຳເນີນກອງປະຊຸມຢ�າງໜ້ອຍໜ�ງຄ�ງໃນທຸກໆສອງເດືອນ ຫຼື ຕາມການຮ້ອງຂໍຂອງປະທານ ຫລື 
ຈາກປະທານສະພາຜູ້ບໍລິຫານຖ້າຫາກຈຳເປັນ.

ຄະນະກຳມະການປ�ກຄອງ

ສິດ ແລະ ໜ້າທ�ຂອງຄະນະກຳມະການປ�ກຄອງ ແມ�ນເພ�ອກຳນ�ດ ແລະ ສ້າງນະໂຍບາຍຕ�າງໆໃນການຄຸ້ມຄອງຊ�ບພະຍາກອນມະນຸດພາຍໃນ
ທະນາຄານ ລວມທ�ງການຄ�ດເລືອກ ແລະ ແນະນຳໃຫ້ສະພາບໍລິຫານແຕ�ງຕ�ງຜູ້ບໍລິຫານຂ�ນສູງຕາມມາດຖານ, ຄ�າແຮງງານ ແລະ ຜ�ນປະໂຫຍດ
ທ�ໄດ້ກຳນ�ດໄວ້ ແລະ ຫຼ�ກຈ�ນຍາບ�ນຂອງທະນາຄານ. ຄະນະກຳມະການປ�ກຄອງອາດສະເໜີ ແລະ ແນະນຳການປະຕິບ�ດວິໄນ ແລະ ການປ�ດ
ຕຳແໜ�ງຜູ້ບໍລິຫານຂ�ນສູງ ແລະ ພະນ�ກງານເຂ�າໃນຄະນະກຳມະການ. MJBLຈະໃຊ້ມາດຕະການຕ�ກ�ບ ຜຸ້ບໍລິຫານ ແລະ ພະນ�ກງານ ຜູ້ທ�ສ້າງ
ຄວາມເສຍຫາຍທາງດ້ານ ຊ�ສຽງ ແລະ ການປະຕິບ�ດວຽກງານ ໃຫ້ແກ�ທະນາຄານຕາມກ�ດໝາຍແຮງງານລາວ ແລະ ກ�ດໝາຍທ�ກ�ຽວຂ້ອງຂອງ 
ສປປລາວ.

ຄະນະກຳມະການຄຸ້ມຄອງຄວາມສ�ຽງ

ຄະນະກຳມະການຄຸ້ມຄອງຄວາມສ�ຽງ ປະກອບດ້ວຍກຳມະການຢ�າງໜ້ອຍ 3 ທ�ານ. ທ�ມີໜ້າທ�ສ້າງຕ�ງນະໂຍບາຍ ແລະ ຂ�ນຕອນໃນການ
ຄຸ້ມຄອງຄວາມສ�ຽງ (ການລະບຸບ�ນຫາ, ຕິດຕາມ ແລະ ຄຸ້ມຄອງສິນເຊ�ອ, ຕະຫຼາດ, ປະເທດຊາດ, ການດຳເນີນງານແລະ ຄວາມສ�ຽງອ�ນໆ) 
ແລະ ສະເໜີໃຫ້ສະພາບໍລິຫານ ຮ�ບຮອງ. ຄະນະກຳມະການຄຸ້ມຄອງຄວາມສ�ຽງຕ້ອງກຳນ�ດ ແລະ ຄ�ດເລືອກບຸກຄ�ນໃດໜ�ງ ເພ�ອຮ�ບຜິດຊອບ
ວຽກງານດ້ານຄວາມສ�ຽງ ຂອງທະນາຄານ.ມີໜ້າທ�ອອກຄຳແນະນຳ ແລະ ກວດການະໂຍບາຍ ຫລ�ງຈາກນ�ນຕິດຕາມການຈ�ດຕ�ງປະຕິບ�ດ 
ແລະ ລາຍງານໃຫ້ແກ�ສະພາບໍລິຫານ. ຈະອອກຄວາມຄິດເຫັນກ�ຽວກ�ບບ�ນຫາໃດໜ�ງທ�ສະພາບໍໍລິຫານເປັນຜູ້ສະເໜີ ຫຼື ຕ້ອງການກ�າວເຖິງ. 
ສະຫ�ບ ແລະ ປະເມີນຜ�ນການປະຕິບ�ດງານປະຈຳປີຂອງຕ�ນ, ລາຍງານການຈ�ດຕ�ງປະຕິບ�ດຕ�ຄະນະສະພາບໍລິຫານ. ຄະນະກ�າມະການ
ຄຸ້ມຄອງຄວາມສ�ຽງຍ�ງອາດຈະໃຊ້ສິດອ�ນໆ ແລະ ປະຕິບ�ດໜ້າທ�ອ�ນໆຕາມການມອບໝາຍຂອງສະພາບໍລິຫານ ແລະ ກອງປະຊຸມຜູ້ຖືຮຸ້ນ
ມອບໝາຍໃຫ້.



IT system development: In addition to the development of mobile business systems,
the bank has also developed the agency banking system (known as MJ Sabai) by opening an 
account through a tablet, and within a year the core banking system was updated from version 11.1 

Risk management and regulatory improvement: The management structure has been 
reviewed in order to ensure adequacy in addressing and mitigating the relevant risks faced by the 
Bank in order to protect the interests of its stakeholders. 

Human resource management:
163 employees, including foreign and local experts and technicians. There are 150 Lao and 10 

Expansion of the network: Launched a variety of services such as cooperation with business 
partners, expand the network of agents through the Representative Bank (MJ Sabai), including 18 
outlets in Vientiane Capital and other provinces (Vientiane and Luang Prabang), with the expansion 
of 2 additional ATMs.

External cooperation:
to provide funding for small and medium-sized business units through the Department of Small and 
Medium Business Promotion (DOSMEP). The bank received a total of 51 billion kip from the project 
to provide loans to customers in the priority areas of the government at an interest rate of 3% per 
annum. The aims are to promote the growth of small and medium enterprises. In addition, our bank 

outbreak, and to borrow money from the People's Republic of China (CDB) which provides loans to 
business entities in accordance with government priorities. We have also expressed our intention to 
participate in the World Bank's Small and Medium-Sized. 

We have strengthened our cooperation with the Chamber of Commerce and other associations such 
as the National Chamber of Commerce and Industry (LNCCI), the Champassak Chamber of Com-
merce and Industry (CCCI), LuangPrabang Chamber of Commerce and Industry (LCCI), Small and 
Medium Business Association (LAOSME), Lao ICT Association (LICA), Lao Handicraft Association 
(LHA), Lao Women's Business Association (LWBA), Lao Young Entrepreneurs Association (YEAL) and 
others.

Our Bank has a strong intention to contribute to the development of small and medium enterprises 
in Lao PDR, such as attending conferences, seminars and trade fairs with the participation of various 
business units such as: ODOP Trade Fair, an exhibition of Lao handicrafts and woodwork, national 
handicrafts, and local trade fairs, including Lao food festivals.

 Within the year, the bad
-

ered in the year 8.7 billion Kip (recovered the total amount is 23.56 billion Kip), uncollected debts are 
58 billion Kip, the ratio of non-performing loans (NPL) is 4.40% increased by 0.45%.

Overview of Laos’ Economy in 2021 and forecast for 2022

Overall Financial Stability 2021

continues to depreciate, and the country retains limited foreign exchange reserves. Despite better 
performance in 2021 than the previous year, implementation of revenue collection failed to meet 

non-tax sources. Meanwhile, an experiment to collect revenue from cryptocurrency mining opera-
tions and exchanges still faces a number of challenges.

Lao Economic Trends 2022

The economy of Laos is expected to grow by 4.0% in 2022, provided that key economic sectors are 
able to maintain growth close to that of the previous year, while the reopening of the country to 
tourism should help the service sector recover at a faster pace.

Summarize the results of business operations in 2021

By 2021, the Bank continued to focus on credit expansion, which reached 99.4% and deposits 
achieved 102.5% of the plan, although lending and deposit mobilization will go according to plan, 

from April 2021 onwards, the business unit has closed down due to a lockdown. Although the bank 
-

ers who do not receive this policy. At the end of the year, the NPL rate was 4.4% higher than the stan-

the banks’ loss was 36.47 billion kip, of which operating loss covered for 37%, from credit loss 
covered for 28%, and 35% was loss from depreciation of kip (FX loss).

Deposit : the bank has continued to facilitate customers to open deposit accounts such as Current 
account, Savings and Fixed Deposit Accounts. Through many channels, whether it is to open an 
account through the counter and through the bank's application MJ Saduak, open a digital account 
at the World Trade Center without paper, through agency banking (MJ Sabai), By the end of 2021, 
the Bank's deposit balance increased by 213.11 billion Kip (41.42%) from 514.57 billion Kip (2020) to 
727.68 billion Kip, with a total of 22,639 deposit customers, an increase of 12.79% compared to the 
previous year.

Loan : the bank focused on expanding various types of loans according to the needs of customers, 
especially vehicle loans, housing loans, business loans, personal loans and other loans. The bank was 
able to increase the total number of 595 loan customers from 3,328 (2020) to 3,923 accounts with a 
total net credit increase of 211.84 billion Kip (40.36%) from 524.95 billion Kip (2020) to 736.73 billion 
Kip.

Borrowing: The Bank has renewed the loan agreement from Mizuho Bank Bangkok Branch, 
Thailand $20 million, and renewed a loan agreement from First Commercial Bank of Vientiane for 24 
billion kip, while a loan from the Bank of the Lao PDR of 9.3 billion kip in 2020 is a long-term agree-
ment unchanged.

Increase of registered capital: there is no increase in registered capital in 2021
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We are committed to support MSME sector beyond the challenging time from the global pandemic. 

and medium-sized business units through the Department of Small and Medium Business Promotion 
(DOSMEP). The bank received a total of 51 billion kip from the project to provide loans to customers in 
the priority areas of the government at an interest rate of 3% per annum. In addition, our bank partici-

to borrow money from the People's Republic of China (CDB) which provides loans to business entities 
in accordance with government priorities. We are grateful to the Ministry of Industry and Commerce & 

and strengthening our SME digital ecosystem. 

larger scope including environment and people. Moreover, we have also embarked on Electric Vehicles 

-

99.4% and deposits achieved 102.5% of the plan. To support individuals and MSME to recover from the 

CoVID19 outbreak, with a total of 404 eligible customers. As reported last year, we are on a three-year 
turnaround program, and we continued to invest in technology, platform, and capabilities. Per plan, we 
recorded another year of losses. However, we have now turned the corner ahead of our three-year plan, 

On a positive note, notwithstanding the challenges, I am pleased to share highlights of our achieve-
ments in FY2021. Some key highlights on our strategic agenda on Trust, Customer-centricity & Digital 

• Our customer base increased by 42% to 26,000. 
• Our award-winning mobile banking app, MJ Saduak, has grown by 75%.
• Our QR merchant base grew by 87%. 
• Under the auspices of Ministry of Health, launched our Vira-Bu-Loud (Hero) fund where people can 
donate to support frontliners & volunteers during the pandemic of CoVID-19.

We are thankful for a few recognitions:  
• Awarded by the ASEAN Business Awards: Special Award – Friend of Laos, for our contribution to Lao 
PDR.
• Awarded by LNCCI as Top Business Leader in response to CoVID-19.
• Awarded for our MJBL Virtual Debit MasterCard as Best New Virtual Debit Card by Global Economics, 
UK.
• Awarded as Fastest Growing Commercial Bank by Global Economics, UK.

Sabaidee Thouk Khon!

year (FY) 2020 to 2022. I would like to continue with an update of our second-year transformation, 
FY2021. FY2021 had been a very challenging year with the severe global impact of CoVID-19 in its 

Laos has not been spared. 

Given this situation, what do we do? 

We focused on strengthening our foundation and investing for the future, to grow responsibly and 
sustainable, summed up by three key pillars:  

1. Systems. On the technology front, we strengthened our internal capabilities by embarking on our 
core banking system upgrade, a major project across the bank. We also developed numerous innova-
tive solutions. These enhances our products, services, and speed to market.  

2. Process. We continue to focus strongly on customers, by automating processes and streamlining 
operations. We have taken direct feedback from consumers, businesses and partners. In collaboration 
with our partners, we developed capabilities to provide better services and embed ourselves into the 
lifestyle of our customers and community. Under the auspices of BOL, we have innovated a new 
channel and service called MJ Sabai (Agency Banking). This combines our innovative digital capabili-

-

banking services to the unbanked and underbanked segment. We continue to innovate on our prod-
ucts and services by enabling more services online. Customers can also apply online or access to 
online banking for SME and corporate.

3. People. Our greatest asset. We are pleased to focus on substantially investing and grooming inter-
nal talents for their career development. Over the last one year, we have promoted many local 
employees into senior leadership roles, including CFO & CRO. The bank has invested substantial 
resources into grooming our next generation leaders. This augurs well for our sustainability agenda 
of MJBL. 
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ຄະນະກຳມະການກວດສອບພາຍໃນ

ຄະນະກຳມະການກວດສອບພາຍໃນ ປະກອບດ້ວຍກ�າມະການຢ�າງໜ້ອຍ 3 ທ�ານ. ມີໜ້າທ�ໃນການໃຫ້ຄວາມຄິດເຫັນກ�ຽວກ�ບການກວດສອບ, 
ຄວາມຄິດເຫັນຕ�ບ�ນຫາຕ�າງໆທ�ສະພາຜູ້ບໍລິຫານ ແລະ ໜ�ວຍງານບໍລິຫານສະເໜີ, ສ້າງຂ�ນຕອນຂອງການບ�ນຊີ ແລະ ການຄຸ້ມຄອງລະບ�ບ
ບ�ນຊີທ�ເໝາະສ�ມສຳລ�ບທະນາຄານຕາມລະບຽບການທ�ອອກໂດຍ ທຫລ. ບ�ນດານະໂຍບາຍຕ�າງໆ, ການຈ�ດຕ�ງປະຕິບ�ດ ແລະ ຕິດຕາມ
ກວດກາການປະຕິບ�ດງານຂອງແຜນທຸລະກິດໃຫ້ຖືກຕາມກ�ດລະບຽບພາຍໃນ ແລະ ກ�ດໝາຍ. ມີໜ້າທ�ແຈ້ງ ໃຫ້ສະພາບໍລິຫານຮ�ບຊາບຢ�າງ 
ຄ�ບຖ້ວນກ�ຽວກ�ບບ�ນຫາທ�ກ�ຽວຂ້ອງໂດຍການລາຍງານກິດຈະກຳຂອງຕ�ນຢ�າງສະໝ�ຳສະເໝີ.

ເພ�ອຮ�ບປະກ�ນການບໍລິຫານຄຸ້ມຄອງ ແລະ ຄວາມເປັນອິດສະຫລະຂອງໜ�ວຍງານການກວດສອບພາຍໃນໃຫ້ມີປະສິດທິຜ�ນ, ຄະນະກຳມະການ
ກວດສອບພາຍໃນແມ�ນມີສິດອຳນາດໃນການຄ�ດເລືອກບຸກຄ�ນ ເພ�ອຈ�ດການກ�ບໜ�ວຍງານກວດສອບພາຍໃນ ແລະ ມີສ�ວນຮ�ວມກ�ບຜູ້ກວດ
ສອບພາຍນອກ  ແລະ ກຳນ�ດຂອບເຂດການກວດສອບ. ມີໜ້າທ�ຮ�ບຜິດຊອບໃນການປະເມີນຄຸນນະພາບການບໍລິການຂອງບໍລິສ�ດກວດສອບ
ພາຍນອກ ພ້ອມທ�ງຄວາມເປັນກາງກ�ຽວກ�ບທຸກໆຄວາມສຳພ�ນລະຫວ�າງຜູ້ກວດສອບພາຍນອກ ແລະ ທະນາຄານ ແລະ ອາດຈະສະເໜີໃຫ້ຢຸດ
ຕິສ�ນຍາຂອງຜູ້ກວດສອບພາຍນອກ ຊ�ງຕ້ອງໄດ້ຮ�ບອະນຸມ�ດຈາກສະພາບໍລິຫານ. ຄະນະກ�າມະການກວດສອບພາຍໃນອາດຈະໄດ້ຂໍຄຳແນະ
ນຳ ແລະ ການຊ�ວຍເຫຼືອຈາກຜູ້ທ�ປຶກສາດ້ານກ�ດໝາຍ, ບ�ນຊີ ແລະ ທ�ປຶກສາອ�ນໆພາຍນອກເພາະຕາມທ�ເຫັນສ�ມຄວນ.

ຄະນະກຳມະການກວດກາພາຍໃນຈະປຶກສາຫາລືກ�ຽວກ�ບງ�ບປະມານປະຈຳປີທ�ມີການກວດສອບແລ້ວ ແລະ ງ�ບປະມານກການເງິນປະຈຳໄຕ
ມາດກ�ບຜູ້ບໍລິຫານທ�ກ�ຽວຂ້ອງ ແລະ ຜູ້ກວດສອບພາຍນອກທ�ເປັນກາງ ແລະ ຕິດຕາມຄວາມພະຍາຍາມໃນການແກ້ໄຂຂ�ຜິດພາດຕ�າງໆທ�
ໄດ້ອະທິບາຍໄວ້ໃນການກວດສອບ.

ວຽກງານກວດສອບພາຍໃນ

ວຽກງານກວດສອບພາຍໃນຖືກສ້າງຕ�ງຂ�ນໂດຍສະພາບໍລິຫານ ເພ�ອດຳເນີນການກວດສອບ ແລະ ປະເມີນຜ�ນຢ�າງຕ�ເນ�ອງກ�ຽວກ�ບປະສິດທິພາບ 
ແລະ ປະສິດທິຜ�ນຂອງລະບ�ບການຄຸ້ມຄອງຄວາມສ�ຽງ ແລະ ລະບ�ບຄຸ້ມຄອງພາຍໃນເພ�ອຮ�ບປະກ�ນວ�າລະບ�ບດ�ງກ�າວຈະຍ�ງຄ�ງດ�າເນີນໄປ
ຢ�າງມີປະສິດທິພາບ ແລະ ມີປະສິດຕິຜ�ນ.

ວຽກງານກວດສອບພາຍໃນ ແມ�ນຢູ�ພາຍໃຕ້ສິດອຳນາດ ແລະ ການຊ�ນຳຂອງຄະນະກຳມະການກວດສອບຂອງສະພາບໍລິຫານ ເພ�ອປ�ກປ້ອງ
ຄວາມກາງຂອງວຽກງານດ�ງກ�າວ. ພະນ�ກງານຈະລາຍງານວຽກງານຢ�າງເປັນປະຈ�າຕ�ຄະນະກຳການກວດສອບ ແລະ ຝ�າຍບໍລິຫານເພ�ອລາຍ 
ງານຕ�ໃຫ້ຜູ້ບໍລິຫານໃຫຍ� (CEO). 

ພະແນກກວດສອບພາຍໃນຂອງທະນາຄານ ມີໜ້າທ�ໃນການກວດສອບ ແລະ ປະເມີນລະດ�ບຄວາມສ�ຽງໃນແຕ�ລະດ້ານ, ໂດຍອີງໃສ�ສິດ ແລະ ໜ້າ 
ທ�ຂອງຕ�ນທ�ລະບຸໄວ້ໃນກ�ດລະບຽບພາຍໃນຂອງທະນາຄານ ມາຣູຮານ ເຈແປນ ລາວ ຈຳກ�ດ. ເຊ�ນ: ໄດ້ຮ�ບສິດໃນການກວດສອບການບໍລິຫານການ
ເງິນ ຫລື ທຶນ, ລະບຽບການຕ�າງ ຫລື ກ�ດໝາຍ ແລະ ກ�ດລະບຽບທ�ລະບຸໄວ້ໂດຍ ທຫລ. ເຂ�າເຖິງການກວດສອບສາງເງິນສ�ດ ແລະ ຊ�ບສິນອ�ນໆ, 
ລາຍຮ�ບລາຍຈ�າຍ, ບ�ນຊີຂອງລູກຄ້າ, ເອກະສານ, ຂ�ມູນຂ�າວສານເອເລັກໂຕຣນິກ ແລະ ອຸປະກອນຕ�າງໆ. ເຊ�ງອາດຈະລວມຮອດການກວດ
ສອບການແກ້ໄຂລາຍການເຮັດທຸລະກຳ  ແລະ ການປ�ຽນແປງຂອງຊ�ບສິນ, ລາຍງານການເງິນທ�ຖືກຕ້ອງຕາມວິທີການຂອງລະບ�ບບ�ນຊີ.

ພະແນກກວດສອບພາຍໃນ ມີໜ້າທ�ຮ�ບຜິດຊອບໃນການສ້າງແຜນການກວດກາແຕ�ລະໄລຍະ ແລະ ເຮັດບ�ດລາຍງານການປະເມີນຜ�ນ ແລະ ບ�ນ 
ຫາທ�ຄ�ນພ�ບພ້ອມທ�ງແນະນຳເປ�າໝາຍໃນການແກ້ໄຂບ�ນຫາທ�ພ�ບເຫັນ. ຊ�ງມ�ນຈະຕ້ອງຮຽກຮ້ອງໃຫ້ມີການສະໜອງຂ�ມູນ ແລະ ຫຼ�ກຖານຕ�າງໆ
 ຈາກພາກສ�ວນທ�ຖືກກວດສອບເພ�ອນຳໃຊ້ເຂ�າໃນການວິເຄາະ ແລະ ແກ້ໄຂ, ມີໜ້າທ�ເກັບກຳເອົາເອກະສານຕ�າງໆ ແລະ ສ�ງອ�ນໆທ�ກ�ຽວຂ້ອງ
ກ�ບການລະເມີດກ�ດໝາຍ ແລະ ກວດສອບ ແລະ ປ້ອງກ�ນການສ�ລາດບ�ງຫຼວງທ�ກ�ຽວຂ້ອງກ�ບພະນ�ກງານຂອງທະນາຄານ.

ພະແນກກວດສອບພາຍໃນ ແມ�ນຈະຕິດຕາມລາຍຈ�າຍຂອງທຸລະກິດ ແລະ ງ�ບປະມານ ຂອງທະນາຄານ ແລະ ເປັນຜູ້ເຂ�າຮ�ວມໃນແຜນງ�ບປະມານ
ປະຈຳປີຂອງທະນາຄານ.
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IT system development: In addition to the development of mobile business systems,
the bank has also developed the agency banking system (known as MJ Sabai) by opening an 
account through a tablet, and within a year the core banking system was updated from version 11.1 

Risk management and regulatory improvement: The management structure has been 
reviewed in order to ensure adequacy in addressing and mitigating the relevant risks faced by the 
Bank in order to protect the interests of its stakeholders. 

Human resource management:
163 employees, including foreign and local experts and technicians. There are 150 Lao and 10 

Expansion of the network: Launched a variety of services such as cooperation with business 
partners, expand the network of agents through the Representative Bank (MJ Sabai), including 18 
outlets in Vientiane Capital and other provinces (Vientiane and Luang Prabang), with the expansion 
of 2 additional ATMs.

External cooperation:
to provide funding for small and medium-sized business units through the Department of Small and 
Medium Business Promotion (DOSMEP). The bank received a total of 51 billion kip from the project 
to provide loans to customers in the priority areas of the government at an interest rate of 3% per 
annum. The aims are to promote the growth of small and medium enterprises. In addition, our bank 

outbreak, and to borrow money from the People's Republic of China (CDB) which provides loans to 
business entities in accordance with government priorities. We have also expressed our intention to 
participate in the World Bank's Small and Medium-Sized. 

We have strengthened our cooperation with the Chamber of Commerce and other associations such 
as the National Chamber of Commerce and Industry (LNCCI), the Champassak Chamber of Com-
merce and Industry (CCCI), LuangPrabang Chamber of Commerce and Industry (LCCI), Small and 
Medium Business Association (LAOSME), Lao ICT Association (LICA), Lao Handicraft Association 
(LHA), Lao Women's Business Association (LWBA), Lao Young Entrepreneurs Association (YEAL) and 
others.

Our Bank has a strong intention to contribute to the development of small and medium enterprises 
in Lao PDR, such as attending conferences, seminars and trade fairs with the participation of various 
business units such as: ODOP Trade Fair, an exhibition of Lao handicrafts and woodwork, national 
handicrafts, and local trade fairs, including Lao food festivals.

 Within the year, the bad
-

ered in the year 8.7 billion Kip (recovered the total amount is 23.56 billion Kip), uncollected debts are 
58 billion Kip, the ratio of non-performing loans (NPL) is 4.40% increased by 0.45%.

Overview of Laos’ Economy in 2021 and forecast for 2022

Overall Financial Stability 2021

continues to depreciate, and the country retains limited foreign exchange reserves. Despite better 
performance in 2021 than the previous year, implementation of revenue collection failed to meet 

non-tax sources. Meanwhile, an experiment to collect revenue from cryptocurrency mining opera-
tions and exchanges still faces a number of challenges.

Lao Economic Trends 2022

The economy of Laos is expected to grow by 4.0% in 2022, provided that key economic sectors are 
able to maintain growth close to that of the previous year, while the reopening of the country to 
tourism should help the service sector recover at a faster pace.

Summarize the results of business operations in 2021

By 2021, the Bank continued to focus on credit expansion, which reached 99.4% and deposits 
achieved 102.5% of the plan, although lending and deposit mobilization will go according to plan, 

from April 2021 onwards, the business unit has closed down due to a lockdown. Although the bank 
-

ers who do not receive this policy. At the end of the year, the NPL rate was 4.4% higher than the stan-

the banks’ loss was 36.47 billion kip, of which operating loss covered for 37%, from credit loss 
covered for 28%, and 35% was loss from depreciation of kip (FX loss).

Deposit : the bank has continued to facilitate customers to open deposit accounts such as Current 
account, Savings and Fixed Deposit Accounts. Through many channels, whether it is to open an 
account through the counter and through the bank's application MJ Saduak, open a digital account 
at the World Trade Center without paper, through agency banking (MJ Sabai), By the end of 2021, 
the Bank's deposit balance increased by 213.11 billion Kip (41.42%) from 514.57 billion Kip (2020) to 
727.68 billion Kip, with a total of 22,639 deposit customers, an increase of 12.79% compared to the 
previous year.

Loan : the bank focused on expanding various types of loans according to the needs of customers, 
especially vehicle loans, housing loans, business loans, personal loans and other loans. The bank was 
able to increase the total number of 595 loan customers from 3,328 (2020) to 3,923 accounts with a 
total net credit increase of 211.84 billion Kip (40.36%) from 524.95 billion Kip (2020) to 736.73 billion 
Kip.

Borrowing: The Bank has renewed the loan agreement from Mizuho Bank Bangkok Branch, 
Thailand $20 million, and renewed a loan agreement from First Commercial Bank of Vientiane for 24 
billion kip, while a loan from the Bank of the Lao PDR of 9.3 billion kip in 2020 is a long-term agree-
ment unchanged.

Increase of registered capital: there is no increase in registered capital in 2021
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We are committed to support MSME sector beyond the challenging time from the global pandemic. 

and medium-sized business units through the Department of Small and Medium Business Promotion 
(DOSMEP). The bank received a total of 51 billion kip from the project to provide loans to customers in 
the priority areas of the government at an interest rate of 3% per annum. In addition, our bank partici-

to borrow money from the People's Republic of China (CDB) which provides loans to business entities 
in accordance with government priorities. We are grateful to the Ministry of Industry and Commerce & 

and strengthening our SME digital ecosystem. 

larger scope including environment and people. Moreover, we have also embarked on Electric Vehicles 

-

99.4% and deposits achieved 102.5% of the plan. To support individuals and MSME to recover from the 

CoVID19 outbreak, with a total of 404 eligible customers. As reported last year, we are on a three-year 
turnaround program, and we continued to invest in technology, platform, and capabilities. Per plan, we 
recorded another year of losses. However, we have now turned the corner ahead of our three-year plan, 

On a positive note, notwithstanding the challenges, I am pleased to share highlights of our achieve-
ments in FY2021. Some key highlights on our strategic agenda on Trust, Customer-centricity & Digital 

• Our customer base increased by 42% to 26,000. 
• Our award-winning mobile banking app, MJ Saduak, has grown by 75%.
• Our QR merchant base grew by 87%. 
• Under the auspices of Ministry of Health, launched our Vira-Bu-Loud (Hero) fund where people can 
donate to support frontliners & volunteers during the pandemic of CoVID-19.

We are thankful for a few recognitions:  
• Awarded by the ASEAN Business Awards: Special Award – Friend of Laos, for our contribution to Lao 
PDR.
• Awarded by LNCCI as Top Business Leader in response to CoVID-19.
• Awarded for our MJBL Virtual Debit MasterCard as Best New Virtual Debit Card by Global Economics, 
UK.
• Awarded as Fastest Growing Commercial Bank by Global Economics, UK.

Sabaidee Thouk Khon!

year (FY) 2020 to 2022. I would like to continue with an update of our second-year transformation, 
FY2021. FY2021 had been a very challenging year with the severe global impact of CoVID-19 in its 

Laos has not been spared. 

Given this situation, what do we do? 

We focused on strengthening our foundation and investing for the future, to grow responsibly and 
sustainable, summed up by three key pillars:  

1. Systems. On the technology front, we strengthened our internal capabilities by embarking on our 
core banking system upgrade, a major project across the bank. We also developed numerous innova-
tive solutions. These enhances our products, services, and speed to market.  

2. Process. We continue to focus strongly on customers, by automating processes and streamlining 
operations. We have taken direct feedback from consumers, businesses and partners. In collaboration 
with our partners, we developed capabilities to provide better services and embed ourselves into the 
lifestyle of our customers and community. Under the auspices of BOL, we have innovated a new 
channel and service called MJ Sabai (Agency Banking). This combines our innovative digital capabili-

-

banking services to the unbanked and underbanked segment. We continue to innovate on our prod-
ucts and services by enabling more services online. Customers can also apply online or access to 
online banking for SME and corporate.

3. People. Our greatest asset. We are pleased to focus on substantially investing and grooming inter-
nal talents for their career development. Over the last one year, we have promoted many local 
employees into senior leadership roles, including CFO & CRO. The bank has invested substantial 
resources into grooming our next generation leaders. This augurs well for our sustainability agenda 
of MJBL. 
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ວຽກງານຄຸ້ມຄອງຄວາມສ�ຽງ

ວຽກງານການຄຸ້ມຄອງຄວາມສ�ຽງ ແມ�ນມີໜ້າທ�ຮ�ບຜິດຊອບຕ�ນຕໍໃນຈ�ດຕ�ງປະຕິບ�ດ ແລະ ຮ�ກສາການຄຸ້ມຄອງຄວາມສ�ຽງໃຫ້ມີປະສິດຕິຜ�ນ ແລະ 
ສອດຄ�ອງກ�ບການບໍລິຫານຄວາມສ�ຽງ. ຂອບເຂດຂອງໜ້າວຽກແມ�ນປະກອບມີໂຄງສາ້ງການປ�ກຄອງ, ນະໂຍບາຍ, ຂະບວນການຂ�ນຕອນຕ�າງໆ 
, ລະບ�ບ ແລະ ເຄ�ອງມືທ�ຈຳເປັນຕ�ການລະບຸຕ�ວຕ�ນ, ຕິດຕາມ ແລະ ຄຸ້ມຄອງສິນເຊ�ອ, ການຕະຫຼາດ, ການດຳເນີນງານ ແລະ ຄວາມສ�ຽງອ�ນໆ 
ຕາມລະບຽບການທ� ທຫລ ລະບຸໄວ້. ເຊ�ງຕ້ອງໄດ້ຕິດຕາມການຈ�ດຕ�ງປະຕິບ�ດ ແລະ ລາຍງານ ຕ�ຄະນະກຳມະການຄຸ້ມຄອງຄວາມສ�ຽງ ແລະ ສະ 
ພາບໍລິຫານ.

ໜ້າທ�ການຄຸ້ມຄອງຄວາມສ�ຽງແມ�ນຢູ�ພາຍໃຕ້ສິດອຳນາດ ແລະ ການຊ�ນຳຂອງຄະນະກຳມະການຄຸ້ມຄອງຄວາມສ�ຽງ ເພ�ອຮ�ກສາຄວາມເປັນກາງ. 
ວຽກງານການຄຸ້ມຄອງຄວາມສ�ຽງ ແມ�ນໄດ້ລາຍງານຕ�ຫ�ວໜ້າຝ�າຍຄຸ້ມຄອງຄວາມສ�ຽງຜູ້ທ�ຈະລາຍງານການເຮັດວຽກໃຫ້ຄະນະກຳມະການຄຸ້ມ 
ຄອງຄວາມສ�ຽງ ແລະ ຝ�າຍບໍລິຫານໃຫ້ຜູ້ບໍລິຫານໃຫຍ�(CEO).

ຫ�ວໜ້າຄຸ້ມຄອງບໍລິຫານຄວາມສ�ຽງ (CRO) ຕ້ອງຮ�ບປະກ�ນວ�າຂ�ມູນຄວາມສ�ຽງທ�ງໝ�ດຈະຖືກລາຍງານໃຫ້ຜູ້ບໍລິຫານ ແລະ ຄະນະບໍລິຫານໃຫ້
ທ�ນເວລາ ແລະ ມີຄວາມຖືກຕ້ອງ ເພ�ອຊ�ວຍໃຫ້ຄະນະບໍລິຫານມີການພິຈາລະນາ ແລະ ການຕ�ດສິນໃຈທ�ຖືກຕ້ອງ.

ການຄຸ້ມຄອງຄວາມສ�ຽງ
ພາບລວມຂອງການຄຸ້ມຄອງຄວາມສ�ຽງ

ໃນສ�ກປີ2021 ເຫັນໄດ້ວ�າ MJBL ໄດ້ມີບາດກ້າວສຳຄ�ນ ໃນການປ�ບປຸງການປ�ກຄອງ ແລະ ການຄຸ້ມຄອງພາຍໃນຂອງຕ�ນ ແລະ ເສີມຂະຫຍາຍ
ວຽກງານການບໍລິຫານຄວາມສ�ຽງທ�ວອ�ງກອນ ໂດຍການເສີມຂະຫຍາຍຍຸດທະສາດຄວາມສ�ຽງ, ຂອບເຂດຂອງວຽກງານ  ແລະ ນະໂຍບາຍຕ�າງໆ
 ດ້ວຍການປະເມີນທ�ເປັນກາງ ແລະ ການຕິດຕາມທ�ເປັນກາງຕ�ກ�ບຄວາມສ�ຽງຕ�າງໆ.

ພາບລວມຂອງການຄຸ້ມຄອງຄວາມສ�ຽງ

ດ້ວຍລ�ກສະນະອຸດສາຫະກ�າການທະນາຄານ ແມ�ນໄດ້ຖືກກ�ານ�ດດ້ວຍກ�ດລະບຽບທ�ຊ�ບຊ້ອນ ແລະ ສ�ບສ�ນຫຼາຍ, ລະບຽບການສິນເຊ�ອບວກກ�ບ 
ຄວາມກ້າວຫນ້າທາງດ້ານເຕັກໂນໂລຢີທ�ປ�ຽນແປງລ�ກສະນະຂອງການດ�າເນີນງານຂອງທະນາຄານ. ເພ�ອຮ�ບມືກ�ບບ�ນຫານ�, ຈ�ງມີຄວາມຄິດລິເລ�ມ
ທ�ສຳຄ�ນເພ�ອເພ�ມຄວາມຍືດຍຸ�ນຕ�ຄວາມສ�ຽງ ແລະ ເພ�ອໃຫ້ສອດຄ�ອງກ�ບເປ�າໝາຍຂອງທະນາຄານໄດ້ວາງໄວ້ໃນປີ 2021 ແລະ ກ້າວເຂ�າສູ�ປີ 
2022. ດ�ງທ�ໄດ້ສະແດງໄວ້ຂ້າງລຸ�ມນ�:

 
 

 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

 
 

 
 

 

 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

• Thorough review of 
the various credit 
policies, manuals 
and guidelines.  

• Establish credit risk 
governance policy. 

• Strengthen credit 
policies 

• Drafting credit risk 
governance, credit 
policies, and 
procedures, 

ຂ�ລິເລ�ມທ�ສຳຄ�ນ

ການຈ�ດຕ�ງປະຕິບ�ດ
Basel II

ຄວາມຕ້ອງການ ຈຸດປະສ�ງ ເປ�້າໝາຍໃນ
ການພ�ດທະນາ

ນຳພາໂດຍແຜນຕາມທະນາຄານ
ແຫ�ງ ສ ປປ ລາວ ແລະ ແຜການ
ຈ�ດຕ�ປະຕິບ�ດເພ�ອການພ�ດທະນາ 
ການຄຸ້ມຄອງທະນາຄານໄປສູ�ມາດ
ຕະຖານ Basel ແຕ�ປີ 2017−2025.

ຂ�ນຕອນທີ 1 (2017−2020)
ອອກແບບແລະຈ�ດຕ�ງປະຕິບ�ດກອບ
ເພ�ອຈ�ດຕ�ງປະຕິບ�ດ SA ສຳລ�ບຄວາມ
ສ�ຽງດ້ານ ສິນເຊ�ອ ແລະຄວາມສ�ຽງດ້ານ
ຕະຫຼາດ ແລະ BIA ສຳລ�ບຄວາມສ�ຽງ
ໃນການດຳເນີນງານ.
ທ�ບທວນການຄຸ້ມຄອງບໍລິສ�ດ, ຄະນະ
ກຳ ມະການແລະຄວາຮ�ບຜິດຊອບ
ດ້ານການບໍລິຫານ. ຈ�ດຕ�ງປະຕິບ�ດ
ການເປີດເຜີຍຕາມວິທີການມາດຕະ
ຖານມາດຕະຖານ 1 (ປະລິມານ).
ການພ�ດທະນາກອບວຽກເພ�ອຄວາມ
ສ�ຽງດ້ານສິນເຊ�ອ, ການ ດຳ ເນີນງານ
ແລະຕະຫຼາດ.

•
•

ຈ�ດຕ�ງປະຕິບ�ດ SA ພາຍໃນໄຕມາດ
ທີ 4 ປີ 2020

•

•

•

19



IT system development: In addition to the development of mobile business systems,
the bank has also developed the agency banking system (known as MJ Sabai) by opening an 
account through a tablet, and within a year the core banking system was updated from version 11.1 

Risk management and regulatory improvement: The management structure has been 
reviewed in order to ensure adequacy in addressing and mitigating the relevant risks faced by the 
Bank in order to protect the interests of its stakeholders. 

Human resource management:
163 employees, including foreign and local experts and technicians. There are 150 Lao and 10 

Expansion of the network: Launched a variety of services such as cooperation with business 
partners, expand the network of agents through the Representative Bank (MJ Sabai), including 18 
outlets in Vientiane Capital and other provinces (Vientiane and Luang Prabang), with the expansion 
of 2 additional ATMs.

External cooperation:
to provide funding for small and medium-sized business units through the Department of Small and 
Medium Business Promotion (DOSMEP). The bank received a total of 51 billion kip from the project 
to provide loans to customers in the priority areas of the government at an interest rate of 3% per 
annum. The aims are to promote the growth of small and medium enterprises. In addition, our bank 

outbreak, and to borrow money from the People's Republic of China (CDB) which provides loans to 
business entities in accordance with government priorities. We have also expressed our intention to 
participate in the World Bank's Small and Medium-Sized. 

We have strengthened our cooperation with the Chamber of Commerce and other associations such 
as the National Chamber of Commerce and Industry (LNCCI), the Champassak Chamber of Com-
merce and Industry (CCCI), LuangPrabang Chamber of Commerce and Industry (LCCI), Small and 
Medium Business Association (LAOSME), Lao ICT Association (LICA), Lao Handicraft Association 
(LHA), Lao Women's Business Association (LWBA), Lao Young Entrepreneurs Association (YEAL) and 
others.

Our Bank has a strong intention to contribute to the development of small and medium enterprises 
in Lao PDR, such as attending conferences, seminars and trade fairs with the participation of various 
business units such as: ODOP Trade Fair, an exhibition of Lao handicrafts and woodwork, national 
handicrafts, and local trade fairs, including Lao food festivals.

 Within the year, the bad
-

ered in the year 8.7 billion Kip (recovered the total amount is 23.56 billion Kip), uncollected debts are 
58 billion Kip, the ratio of non-performing loans (NPL) is 4.40% increased by 0.45%.

Overview of Laos’ Economy in 2021 and forecast for 2022

Overall Financial Stability 2021

continues to depreciate, and the country retains limited foreign exchange reserves. Despite better 
performance in 2021 than the previous year, implementation of revenue collection failed to meet 

non-tax sources. Meanwhile, an experiment to collect revenue from cryptocurrency mining opera-
tions and exchanges still faces a number of challenges.

Lao Economic Trends 2022

The economy of Laos is expected to grow by 4.0% in 2022, provided that key economic sectors are 
able to maintain growth close to that of the previous year, while the reopening of the country to 
tourism should help the service sector recover at a faster pace.

Summarize the results of business operations in 2021

By 2021, the Bank continued to focus on credit expansion, which reached 99.4% and deposits 
achieved 102.5% of the plan, although lending and deposit mobilization will go according to plan, 

from April 2021 onwards, the business unit has closed down due to a lockdown. Although the bank 
-

ers who do not receive this policy. At the end of the year, the NPL rate was 4.4% higher than the stan-

the banks’ loss was 36.47 billion kip, of which operating loss covered for 37%, from credit loss 
covered for 28%, and 35% was loss from depreciation of kip (FX loss).

Deposit : the bank has continued to facilitate customers to open deposit accounts such as Current 
account, Savings and Fixed Deposit Accounts. Through many channels, whether it is to open an 
account through the counter and through the bank's application MJ Saduak, open a digital account 
at the World Trade Center without paper, through agency banking (MJ Sabai), By the end of 2021, 
the Bank's deposit balance increased by 213.11 billion Kip (41.42%) from 514.57 billion Kip (2020) to 
727.68 billion Kip, with a total of 22,639 deposit customers, an increase of 12.79% compared to the 
previous year.

Loan : the bank focused on expanding various types of loans according to the needs of customers, 
especially vehicle loans, housing loans, business loans, personal loans and other loans. The bank was 
able to increase the total number of 595 loan customers from 3,328 (2020) to 3,923 accounts with a 
total net credit increase of 211.84 billion Kip (40.36%) from 524.95 billion Kip (2020) to 736.73 billion 
Kip.

Borrowing: The Bank has renewed the loan agreement from Mizuho Bank Bangkok Branch, 
Thailand $20 million, and renewed a loan agreement from First Commercial Bank of Vientiane for 24 
billion kip, while a loan from the Bank of the Lao PDR of 9.3 billion kip in 2020 is a long-term agree-
ment unchanged.

Increase of registered capital: there is no increase in registered capital in 2021
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We are committed to support MSME sector beyond the challenging time from the global pandemic. 

and medium-sized business units through the Department of Small and Medium Business Promotion 
(DOSMEP). The bank received a total of 51 billion kip from the project to provide loans to customers in 
the priority areas of the government at an interest rate of 3% per annum. In addition, our bank partici-

to borrow money from the People's Republic of China (CDB) which provides loans to business entities 
in accordance with government priorities. We are grateful to the Ministry of Industry and Commerce & 

and strengthening our SME digital ecosystem. 

larger scope including environment and people. Moreover, we have also embarked on Electric Vehicles 

-

99.4% and deposits achieved 102.5% of the plan. To support individuals and MSME to recover from the 

CoVID19 outbreak, with a total of 404 eligible customers. As reported last year, we are on a three-year 
turnaround program, and we continued to invest in technology, platform, and capabilities. Per plan, we 
recorded another year of losses. However, we have now turned the corner ahead of our three-year plan, 

On a positive note, notwithstanding the challenges, I am pleased to share highlights of our achieve-
ments in FY2021. Some key highlights on our strategic agenda on Trust, Customer-centricity & Digital 

• Our customer base increased by 42% to 26,000. 
• Our award-winning mobile banking app, MJ Saduak, has grown by 75%.
• Our QR merchant base grew by 87%. 
• Under the auspices of Ministry of Health, launched our Vira-Bu-Loud (Hero) fund where people can 
donate to support frontliners & volunteers during the pandemic of CoVID-19.

We are thankful for a few recognitions:  
• Awarded by the ASEAN Business Awards: Special Award – Friend of Laos, for our contribution to Lao 
PDR.
• Awarded by LNCCI as Top Business Leader in response to CoVID-19.
• Awarded for our MJBL Virtual Debit MasterCard as Best New Virtual Debit Card by Global Economics, 
UK.
• Awarded as Fastest Growing Commercial Bank by Global Economics, UK.

Sabaidee Thouk Khon!

year (FY) 2020 to 2022. I would like to continue with an update of our second-year transformation, 
FY2021. FY2021 had been a very challenging year with the severe global impact of CoVID-19 in its 

Laos has not been spared. 

Given this situation, what do we do? 

We focused on strengthening our foundation and investing for the future, to grow responsibly and 
sustainable, summed up by three key pillars:  

1. Systems. On the technology front, we strengthened our internal capabilities by embarking on our 
core banking system upgrade, a major project across the bank. We also developed numerous innova-
tive solutions. These enhances our products, services, and speed to market.  

2. Process. We continue to focus strongly on customers, by automating processes and streamlining 
operations. We have taken direct feedback from consumers, businesses and partners. In collaboration 
with our partners, we developed capabilities to provide better services and embed ourselves into the 
lifestyle of our customers and community. Under the auspices of BOL, we have innovated a new 
channel and service called MJ Sabai (Agency Banking). This combines our innovative digital capabili-

-

banking services to the unbanked and underbanked segment. We continue to innovate on our prod-
ucts and services by enabling more services online. Customers can also apply online or access to 
online banking for SME and corporate.

3. People. Our greatest asset. We are pleased to focus on substantially investing and grooming inter-
nal talents for their career development. Over the last one year, we have promoted many local 
employees into senior leadership roles, including CFO & CRO. The bank has invested substantial 
resources into grooming our next generation leaders. This augurs well for our sustainability agenda 
of MJBL. 
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• Guided by the BOL 
Master Plan and 
Implementation Plan 
for Bank 
Supervision 
Development 
toward Basel 
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• Thorough review of 
the various credit 
policies, manuals 
and guidelines.  

• Revamp credit 
assessment criteria 
and tools. 

• Establish credit risk 
governance policy. 

• Strengthen credit 
policies 

• Establish credit 
underwriting 
procedures  

• Drafting credit risk 
governance, credit 
policies, and 
procedures, 
scheduled to be 
completed in 2022. 

 

 
 

• Improve the data 
set, accuracy and 
usability of credit 
data and analytics. 

• Increase automation 
in report preparation 
to reduce manual 
processes and 
human error. 

 

• Build new data 
reports and system 
fields to capture 
data for more 
granular analysis, 
Basel II 
requirements and 
certain future 
requirements. 

• Data accuracy 
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• A new unified data 
set was built 
enabling simpler, 
more accurate and 
granular reporting 
and analytics.  This 
is being 
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further capabilities 
and accuracy. 

 

 

 

• Development of risk 
professionals who 
are forward-looking 
and agile. 

• Strengthen 
knowledge and 
awareness via 
internal upskilling 
and/ or external 
hires. 

• Comprehensive 
credit, risk and 
analytical skillsets 
are essential for the 
Bank’s future needs.  

• Develop a strong 
talent pool, 
equipped with 
future-ready, 
technical and 
leadership 
capabilities. 

• Development of 
Credit professionals 
for Assessment-
Retail & Non-Retail, 
Credit Admin and 
Credit Control 
functions. 

• In-house credit 
training rolled-out. 
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Analytics
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Upskilling
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Implementation
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IT system development: In addition to the development of mobile business systems,
the bank has also developed the agency banking system (known as MJ Sabai) by opening an 
account through a tablet, and within a year the core banking system was updated from version 11.1 

Risk management and regulatory improvement: The management structure has been 
reviewed in order to ensure adequacy in addressing and mitigating the relevant risks faced by the 
Bank in order to protect the interests of its stakeholders. 

Human resource management:
163 employees, including foreign and local experts and technicians. There are 150 Lao and 10 

Expansion of the network: Launched a variety of services such as cooperation with business 
partners, expand the network of agents through the Representative Bank (MJ Sabai), including 18 
outlets in Vientiane Capital and other provinces (Vientiane and Luang Prabang), with the expansion 
of 2 additional ATMs.

External cooperation:
to provide funding for small and medium-sized business units through the Department of Small and 
Medium Business Promotion (DOSMEP). The bank received a total of 51 billion kip from the project 
to provide loans to customers in the priority areas of the government at an interest rate of 3% per 
annum. The aims are to promote the growth of small and medium enterprises. In addition, our bank 

outbreak, and to borrow money from the People's Republic of China (CDB) which provides loans to 
business entities in accordance with government priorities. We have also expressed our intention to 
participate in the World Bank's Small and Medium-Sized. 

We have strengthened our cooperation with the Chamber of Commerce and other associations such 
as the National Chamber of Commerce and Industry (LNCCI), the Champassak Chamber of Com-
merce and Industry (CCCI), LuangPrabang Chamber of Commerce and Industry (LCCI), Small and 
Medium Business Association (LAOSME), Lao ICT Association (LICA), Lao Handicraft Association 
(LHA), Lao Women's Business Association (LWBA), Lao Young Entrepreneurs Association (YEAL) and 
others.

Our Bank has a strong intention to contribute to the development of small and medium enterprises 
in Lao PDR, such as attending conferences, seminars and trade fairs with the participation of various 
business units such as: ODOP Trade Fair, an exhibition of Lao handicrafts and woodwork, national 
handicrafts, and local trade fairs, including Lao food festivals.

 Within the year, the bad
-

ered in the year 8.7 billion Kip (recovered the total amount is 23.56 billion Kip), uncollected debts are 
58 billion Kip, the ratio of non-performing loans (NPL) is 4.40% increased by 0.45%.

Overview of Laos’ Economy in 2021 and forecast for 2022

Overall Financial Stability 2021

continues to depreciate, and the country retains limited foreign exchange reserves. Despite better 
performance in 2021 than the previous year, implementation of revenue collection failed to meet 

non-tax sources. Meanwhile, an experiment to collect revenue from cryptocurrency mining opera-
tions and exchanges still faces a number of challenges.

Lao Economic Trends 2022

The economy of Laos is expected to grow by 4.0% in 2022, provided that key economic sectors are 
able to maintain growth close to that of the previous year, while the reopening of the country to 
tourism should help the service sector recover at a faster pace.

Summarize the results of business operations in 2021

By 2021, the Bank continued to focus on credit expansion, which reached 99.4% and deposits 
achieved 102.5% of the plan, although lending and deposit mobilization will go according to plan, 

from April 2021 onwards, the business unit has closed down due to a lockdown. Although the bank 
-

ers who do not receive this policy. At the end of the year, the NPL rate was 4.4% higher than the stan-

the banks’ loss was 36.47 billion kip, of which operating loss covered for 37%, from credit loss 
covered for 28%, and 35% was loss from depreciation of kip (FX loss).

Deposit : the bank has continued to facilitate customers to open deposit accounts such as Current 
account, Savings and Fixed Deposit Accounts. Through many channels, whether it is to open an 
account through the counter and through the bank's application MJ Saduak, open a digital account 
at the World Trade Center without paper, through agency banking (MJ Sabai), By the end of 2021, 
the Bank's deposit balance increased by 213.11 billion Kip (41.42%) from 514.57 billion Kip (2020) to 
727.68 billion Kip, with a total of 22,639 deposit customers, an increase of 12.79% compared to the 
previous year.

Loan : the bank focused on expanding various types of loans according to the needs of customers, 
especially vehicle loans, housing loans, business loans, personal loans and other loans. The bank was 
able to increase the total number of 595 loan customers from 3,328 (2020) to 3,923 accounts with a 
total net credit increase of 211.84 billion Kip (40.36%) from 524.95 billion Kip (2020) to 736.73 billion 
Kip.

Borrowing: The Bank has renewed the loan agreement from Mizuho Bank Bangkok Branch, 
Thailand $20 million, and renewed a loan agreement from First Commercial Bank of Vientiane for 24 
billion kip, while a loan from the Bank of the Lao PDR of 9.3 billion kip in 2020 is a long-term agree-
ment unchanged.

Increase of registered capital: there is no increase in registered capital in 2021
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We are committed to support MSME sector beyond the challenging time from the global pandemic. 

and medium-sized business units through the Department of Small and Medium Business Promotion 
(DOSMEP). The bank received a total of 51 billion kip from the project to provide loans to customers in 
the priority areas of the government at an interest rate of 3% per annum. In addition, our bank partici-

to borrow money from the People's Republic of China (CDB) which provides loans to business entities 
in accordance with government priorities. We are grateful to the Ministry of Industry and Commerce & 

and strengthening our SME digital ecosystem. 

larger scope including environment and people. Moreover, we have also embarked on Electric Vehicles 

-

99.4% and deposits achieved 102.5% of the plan. To support individuals and MSME to recover from the 

CoVID19 outbreak, with a total of 404 eligible customers. As reported last year, we are on a three-year 
turnaround program, and we continued to invest in technology, platform, and capabilities. Per plan, we 
recorded another year of losses. However, we have now turned the corner ahead of our three-year plan, 

On a positive note, notwithstanding the challenges, I am pleased to share highlights of our achieve-
ments in FY2021. Some key highlights on our strategic agenda on Trust, Customer-centricity & Digital 

• Our customer base increased by 42% to 26,000. 
• Our award-winning mobile banking app, MJ Saduak, has grown by 75%.
• Our QR merchant base grew by 87%. 
• Under the auspices of Ministry of Health, launched our Vira-Bu-Loud (Hero) fund where people can 
donate to support frontliners & volunteers during the pandemic of CoVID-19.

We are thankful for a few recognitions:  
• Awarded by the ASEAN Business Awards: Special Award – Friend of Laos, for our contribution to Lao 
PDR.
• Awarded by LNCCI as Top Business Leader in response to CoVID-19.
• Awarded for our MJBL Virtual Debit MasterCard as Best New Virtual Debit Card by Global Economics, 
UK.
• Awarded as Fastest Growing Commercial Bank by Global Economics, UK.

Sabaidee Thouk Khon!

year (FY) 2020 to 2022. I would like to continue with an update of our second-year transformation, 
FY2021. FY2021 had been a very challenging year with the severe global impact of CoVID-19 in its 

Laos has not been spared. 

Given this situation, what do we do? 

We focused on strengthening our foundation and investing for the future, to grow responsibly and 
sustainable, summed up by three key pillars:  

1. Systems. On the technology front, we strengthened our internal capabilities by embarking on our 
core banking system upgrade, a major project across the bank. We also developed numerous innova-
tive solutions. These enhances our products, services, and speed to market.  

2. Process. We continue to focus strongly on customers, by automating processes and streamlining 
operations. We have taken direct feedback from consumers, businesses and partners. In collaboration 
with our partners, we developed capabilities to provide better services and embed ourselves into the 
lifestyle of our customers and community. Under the auspices of BOL, we have innovated a new 
channel and service called MJ Sabai (Agency Banking). This combines our innovative digital capabili-

-

banking services to the unbanked and underbanked segment. We continue to innovate on our prod-
ucts and services by enabling more services online. Customers can also apply online or access to 
online banking for SME and corporate.

3. People. Our greatest asset. We are pleased to focus on substantially investing and grooming inter-
nal talents for their career development. Over the last one year, we have promoted many local 
employees into senior leadership roles, including CFO & CRO. The bank has invested substantial 
resources into grooming our next generation leaders. This augurs well for our sustainability agenda 
of MJBL. 

21MARUHAN Japan Bank Lao



IT system development: In addition to the development of mobile business systems,
the bank has also developed the agency banking system (known as MJ Sabai) by opening an 
account through a tablet, and within a year the core banking system was updated from version 11.1 

Risk management and regulatory improvement: The management structure has been 
reviewed in order to ensure adequacy in addressing and mitigating the relevant risks faced by the 
Bank in order to protect the interests of its stakeholders. 

Human resource management:
163 employees, including foreign and local experts and technicians. There are 150 Lao and 10 

Expansion of the network: Launched a variety of services such as cooperation with business 
partners, expand the network of agents through the Representative Bank (MJ Sabai), including 18 
outlets in Vientiane Capital and other provinces (Vientiane and Luang Prabang), with the expansion 
of 2 additional ATMs.

External cooperation:
to provide funding for small and medium-sized business units through the Department of Small and 
Medium Business Promotion (DOSMEP). The bank received a total of 51 billion kip from the project 
to provide loans to customers in the priority areas of the government at an interest rate of 3% per 
annum. The aims are to promote the growth of small and medium enterprises. In addition, our bank 

outbreak, and to borrow money from the People's Republic of China (CDB) which provides loans to 
business entities in accordance with government priorities. We have also expressed our intention to 
participate in the World Bank's Small and Medium-Sized. 
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as the National Chamber of Commerce and Industry (LNCCI), the Champassak Chamber of Com-
merce and Industry (CCCI), LuangPrabang Chamber of Commerce and Industry (LCCI), Small and 
Medium Business Association (LAOSME), Lao ICT Association (LICA), Lao Handicraft Association 
(LHA), Lao Women's Business Association (LWBA), Lao Young Entrepreneurs Association (YEAL) and 
others.

Our Bank has a strong intention to contribute to the development of small and medium enterprises 
in Lao PDR, such as attending conferences, seminars and trade fairs with the participation of various 
business units such as: ODOP Trade Fair, an exhibition of Lao handicrafts and woodwork, national 
handicrafts, and local trade fairs, including Lao food festivals.

 Within the year, the bad
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ered in the year 8.7 billion Kip (recovered the total amount is 23.56 billion Kip), uncollected debts are 
58 billion Kip, the ratio of non-performing loans (NPL) is 4.40% increased by 0.45%.

Overview of Laos’ Economy in 2021 and forecast for 2022
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continues to depreciate, and the country retains limited foreign exchange reserves. Despite better 
performance in 2021 than the previous year, implementation of revenue collection failed to meet 

non-tax sources. Meanwhile, an experiment to collect revenue from cryptocurrency mining opera-
tions and exchanges still faces a number of challenges.

Lao Economic Trends 2022

The economy of Laos is expected to grow by 4.0% in 2022, provided that key economic sectors are 
able to maintain growth close to that of the previous year, while the reopening of the country to 
tourism should help the service sector recover at a faster pace.

Summarize the results of business operations in 2021

By 2021, the Bank continued to focus on credit expansion, which reached 99.4% and deposits 
achieved 102.5% of the plan, although lending and deposit mobilization will go according to plan, 

from April 2021 onwards, the business unit has closed down due to a lockdown. Although the bank 
-

ers who do not receive this policy. At the end of the year, the NPL rate was 4.4% higher than the stan-

the banks’ loss was 36.47 billion kip, of which operating loss covered for 37%, from credit loss 
covered for 28%, and 35% was loss from depreciation of kip (FX loss).

Deposit : the bank has continued to facilitate customers to open deposit accounts such as Current 
account, Savings and Fixed Deposit Accounts. Through many channels, whether it is to open an 
account through the counter and through the bank's application MJ Saduak, open a digital account 
at the World Trade Center without paper, through agency banking (MJ Sabai), By the end of 2021, 
the Bank's deposit balance increased by 213.11 billion Kip (41.42%) from 514.57 billion Kip (2020) to 
727.68 billion Kip, with a total of 22,639 deposit customers, an increase of 12.79% compared to the 
previous year.

Loan : the bank focused on expanding various types of loans according to the needs of customers, 
especially vehicle loans, housing loans, business loans, personal loans and other loans. The bank was 
able to increase the total number of 595 loan customers from 3,328 (2020) to 3,923 accounts with a 
total net credit increase of 211.84 billion Kip (40.36%) from 524.95 billion Kip (2020) to 736.73 billion 
Kip.

Borrowing: The Bank has renewed the loan agreement from Mizuho Bank Bangkok Branch, 
Thailand $20 million, and renewed a loan agreement from First Commercial Bank of Vientiane for 24 
billion kip, while a loan from the Bank of the Lao PDR of 9.3 billion kip in 2020 is a long-term agree-
ment unchanged.

Increase of registered capital: there is no increase in registered capital in 2021
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Sabaidee Thouk Khon!

year (FY) 2020 to 2022. I would like to continue with an update of our second-year transformation, 
FY2021. FY2021 had been a very challenging year with the severe global impact of CoVID-19 in its 

Laos has not been spared. 

Given this situation, what do we do? 

We focused on strengthening our foundation and investing for the future, to grow responsibly and 
sustainable, summed up by three key pillars:  

1. Systems. On the technology front, we strengthened our internal capabilities by embarking on our 
core banking system upgrade, a major project across the bank. We also developed numerous innova-
tive solutions. These enhances our products, services, and speed to market.  

2. Process. We continue to focus strongly on customers, by automating processes and streamlining 
operations. We have taken direct feedback from consumers, businesses and partners. In collaboration 
with our partners, we developed capabilities to provide better services and embed ourselves into the 
lifestyle of our customers and community. Under the auspices of BOL, we have innovated a new 
channel and service called MJ Sabai (Agency Banking). This combines our innovative digital capabili-

-

banking services to the unbanked and underbanked segment. We continue to innovate on our prod-
ucts and services by enabling more services online. Customers can also apply online or access to 
online banking for SME and corporate.

3. People. Our greatest asset. We are pleased to focus on substantially investing and grooming inter-
nal talents for their career development. Over the last one year, we have promoted many local 
employees into senior leadership roles, including CFO & CRO. The bank has invested substantial 
resources into grooming our next generation leaders. This augurs well for our sustainability agenda 
of MJBL. 

We are committed to support MSME sector beyond the challenging time from the global pandemic. 

and medium-sized business units through the Department of Small and Medium Business Promotion 
(DOSMEP). The bank received a total of 51 billion kip from the project to provide loans to customers in 
the priority areas of the government at an interest rate of 3% per annum. In addition, our bank partici-

to borrow money from the People's Republic of China (CDB) which provides loans to business entities 
in accordance with government priorities. We are grateful to the Ministry of Industry and Commerce & 

and strengthening our SME digital ecosystem. 

larger scope including environment and people. Moreover, we have also embarked on Electric Vehicles 

-

99.4% and deposits achieved 102.5% of the plan. To support individuals and MSME to recover from the 

CoVID19 outbreak, with a total of 404 eligible customers. As reported last year, we are on a three-year 
turnaround program, and we continued to invest in technology, platform, and capabilities. Per plan, we 
recorded another year of losses. However, we have now turned the corner ahead of our three-year plan, 

On a positive note, notwithstanding the challenges, I am pleased to share highlights of our achieve-
ments in FY2021. Some key highlights on our strategic agenda on Trust, Customer-centricity & Digital 

• Our customer base increased by 42% to 26,000. 
• Our award-winning mobile banking app, MJ Saduak, has grown by 75%.
• Our QR merchant base grew by 87%. 
• Under the auspices of Ministry of Health, launched our Vira-Bu-Loud (Hero) fund where people can 
donate to support frontliners & volunteers during the pandemic of CoVID-19.

We are thankful for a few recognitions:  
• Awarded by the ASEAN Business Awards: Special Award – Friend of Laos, for our contribution to Lao 
PDR.
• Awarded by LNCCI as Top Business Leader in response to CoVID-19.
• Awarded for our MJBL Virtual Debit MasterCard as Best New Virtual Debit Card by Global Economics, 
UK.
• Awarded as Fastest Growing Commercial Bank by Global Economics, UK.
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IT system development: In addition to the development of mobile business systems,
the bank has also developed the agency banking system (known as MJ Sabai) by opening an 
account through a tablet, and within a year the core banking system was updated from version 11.1 

Risk management and regulatory improvement: The management structure has been 
reviewed in order to ensure adequacy in addressing and mitigating the relevant risks faced by the 
Bank in order to protect the interests of its stakeholders. 

Human resource management:
163 employees, including foreign and local experts and technicians. There are 150 Lao and 10 

Expansion of the network: Launched a variety of services such as cooperation with business 
partners, expand the network of agents through the Representative Bank (MJ Sabai), including 18 
outlets in Vientiane Capital and other provinces (Vientiane and Luang Prabang), with the expansion 
of 2 additional ATMs.

External cooperation:
to provide funding for small and medium-sized business units through the Department of Small and 
Medium Business Promotion (DOSMEP). The bank received a total of 51 billion kip from the project 
to provide loans to customers in the priority areas of the government at an interest rate of 3% per 
annum. The aims are to promote the growth of small and medium enterprises. In addition, our bank 

outbreak, and to borrow money from the People's Republic of China (CDB) which provides loans to 
business entities in accordance with government priorities. We have also expressed our intention to 
participate in the World Bank's Small and Medium-Sized. 

We have strengthened our cooperation with the Chamber of Commerce and other associations such 
as the National Chamber of Commerce and Industry (LNCCI), the Champassak Chamber of Com-
merce and Industry (CCCI), LuangPrabang Chamber of Commerce and Industry (LCCI), Small and 
Medium Business Association (LAOSME), Lao ICT Association (LICA), Lao Handicraft Association 
(LHA), Lao Women's Business Association (LWBA), Lao Young Entrepreneurs Association (YEAL) and 
others.

Our Bank has a strong intention to contribute to the development of small and medium enterprises 
in Lao PDR, such as attending conferences, seminars and trade fairs with the participation of various 
business units such as: ODOP Trade Fair, an exhibition of Lao handicrafts and woodwork, national 
handicrafts, and local trade fairs, including Lao food festivals.

 Within the year, the bad
-

ered in the year 8.7 billion Kip (recovered the total amount is 23.56 billion Kip), uncollected debts are 
58 billion Kip, the ratio of non-performing loans (NPL) is 4.40% increased by 0.45%.

Overview of Laos’ Economy in 2021 and forecast for 2022

Overall Financial Stability 2021

continues to depreciate, and the country retains limited foreign exchange reserves. Despite better 
performance in 2021 than the previous year, implementation of revenue collection failed to meet 

non-tax sources. Meanwhile, an experiment to collect revenue from cryptocurrency mining opera-
tions and exchanges still faces a number of challenges.

Lao Economic Trends 2022

The economy of Laos is expected to grow by 4.0% in 2022, provided that key economic sectors are 
able to maintain growth close to that of the previous year, while the reopening of the country to 
tourism should help the service sector recover at a faster pace.

Summarize the results of business operations in 2021

By 2021, the Bank continued to focus on credit expansion, which reached 99.4% and deposits 
achieved 102.5% of the plan, although lending and deposit mobilization will go according to plan, 

from April 2021 onwards, the business unit has closed down due to a lockdown. Although the bank 
-

ers who do not receive this policy. At the end of the year, the NPL rate was 4.4% higher than the stan-

the banks’ loss was 36.47 billion kip, of which operating loss covered for 37%, from credit loss 
covered for 28%, and 35% was loss from depreciation of kip (FX loss).

Deposit : the bank has continued to facilitate customers to open deposit accounts such as Current 
account, Savings and Fixed Deposit Accounts. Through many channels, whether it is to open an 
account through the counter and through the bank's application MJ Saduak, open a digital account 
at the World Trade Center without paper, through agency banking (MJ Sabai), By the end of 2021, 
the Bank's deposit balance increased by 213.11 billion Kip (41.42%) from 514.57 billion Kip (2020) to 
727.68 billion Kip, with a total of 22,639 deposit customers, an increase of 12.79% compared to the 
previous year.

Loan : the bank focused on expanding various types of loans according to the needs of customers, 
especially vehicle loans, housing loans, business loans, personal loans and other loans. The bank was 
able to increase the total number of 595 loan customers from 3,328 (2020) to 3,923 accounts with a 
total net credit increase of 211.84 billion Kip (40.36%) from 524.95 billion Kip (2020) to 736.73 billion 
Kip.

Borrowing: The Bank has renewed the loan agreement from Mizuho Bank Bangkok Branch, 
Thailand $20 million, and renewed a loan agreement from First Commercial Bank of Vientiane for 24 
billion kip, while a loan from the Bank of the Lao PDR of 9.3 billion kip in 2020 is a long-term agree-
ment unchanged.

Increase of registered capital: there is no increase in registered capital in 2021

We are committed to support MSME sector beyond the challenging time from the global pandemic. 

and medium-sized business units through the Department of Small and Medium Business Promotion 
(DOSMEP). The bank received a total of 51 billion kip from the project to provide loans to customers in 
the priority areas of the government at an interest rate of 3% per annum. In addition, our bank partici-

to borrow money from the People's Republic of China (CDB) which provides loans to business entities 
in accordance with government priorities. We are grateful to the Ministry of Industry and Commerce & 

and strengthening our SME digital ecosystem. 

larger scope including environment and people. Moreover, we have also embarked on Electric Vehicles 

-

99.4% and deposits achieved 102.5% of the plan. To support individuals and MSME to recover from the 

CoVID19 outbreak, with a total of 404 eligible customers. As reported last year, we are on a three-year 
turnaround program, and we continued to invest in technology, platform, and capabilities. Per plan, we 
recorded another year of losses. However, we have now turned the corner ahead of our three-year plan, 

On a positive note, notwithstanding the challenges, I am pleased to share highlights of our achieve-
ments in FY2021. Some key highlights on our strategic agenda on Trust, Customer-centricity & Digital 

• Our customer base increased by 42% to 26,000. 
• Our award-winning mobile banking app, MJ Saduak, has grown by 75%.
• Our QR merchant base grew by 87%. 
• Under the auspices of Ministry of Health, launched our Vira-Bu-Loud (Hero) fund where people can 
donate to support frontliners & volunteers during the pandemic of CoVID-19.

We are thankful for a few recognitions:  
• Awarded by the ASEAN Business Awards: Special Award – Friend of Laos, for our contribution to Lao 
PDR.
• Awarded by LNCCI as Top Business Leader in response to CoVID-19.
• Awarded for our MJBL Virtual Debit MasterCard as Best New Virtual Debit Card by Global Economics, 
UK.
• Awarded as Fastest Growing Commercial Bank by Global Economics, UK.

MARUHAN Japan Bank Lao
23MARUHAN Japan Bank Lao



IT system development: In addition to the development of mobile business systems,
the bank has also developed the agency banking system (known as MJ Sabai) by opening an 
account through a tablet, and within a year the core banking system was updated from version 11.1 

Risk management and regulatory improvement: The management structure has been 
reviewed in order to ensure adequacy in addressing and mitigating the relevant risks faced by the 
Bank in order to protect the interests of its stakeholders. 

Human resource management:
163 employees, including foreign and local experts and technicians. There are 150 Lao and 10 

Expansion of the network: Launched a variety of services such as cooperation with business 
partners, expand the network of agents through the Representative Bank (MJ Sabai), including 18 
outlets in Vientiane Capital and other provinces (Vientiane and Luang Prabang), with the expansion 
of 2 additional ATMs.

External cooperation:
to provide funding for small and medium-sized business units through the Department of Small and 
Medium Business Promotion (DOSMEP). The bank received a total of 51 billion kip from the project 
to provide loans to customers in the priority areas of the government at an interest rate of 3% per 
annum. The aims are to promote the growth of small and medium enterprises. In addition, our bank 

outbreak, and to borrow money from the People's Republic of China (CDB) which provides loans to 
business entities in accordance with government priorities. We have also expressed our intention to 
participate in the World Bank's Small and Medium-Sized. 

We have strengthened our cooperation with the Chamber of Commerce and other associations such 
as the National Chamber of Commerce and Industry (LNCCI), the Champassak Chamber of Com-
merce and Industry (CCCI), LuangPrabang Chamber of Commerce and Industry (LCCI), Small and 
Medium Business Association (LAOSME), Lao ICT Association (LICA), Lao Handicraft Association 
(LHA), Lao Women's Business Association (LWBA), Lao Young Entrepreneurs Association (YEAL) and 
others.

Our Bank has a strong intention to contribute to the development of small and medium enterprises 
in Lao PDR, such as attending conferences, seminars and trade fairs with the participation of various 
business units such as: ODOP Trade Fair, an exhibition of Lao handicrafts and woodwork, national 
handicrafts, and local trade fairs, including Lao food festivals.

 Within the year, the bad
-

ered in the year 8.7 billion Kip (recovered the total amount is 23.56 billion Kip), uncollected debts are 
58 billion Kip, the ratio of non-performing loans (NPL) is 4.40% increased by 0.45%.
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Overview of Laos’ Economy in 2021 and forecast for 2022

Overall Financial Stability 2021

continues to depreciate, and the country retains limited foreign exchange reserves. Despite better 
performance in 2021 than the previous year, implementation of revenue collection failed to meet 

non-tax sources. Meanwhile, an experiment to collect revenue from cryptocurrency mining opera-
tions and exchanges still faces a number of challenges.

Lao Economic Trends 2022

The economy of Laos is expected to grow by 4.0% in 2022, provided that key economic sectors are 
able to maintain growth close to that of the previous year, while the reopening of the country to 
tourism should help the service sector recover at a faster pace.

Summarize the results of business operations in 2021

By 2021, the Bank continued to focus on credit expansion, which reached 99.4% and deposits 
achieved 102.5% of the plan, although lending and deposit mobilization will go according to plan, 

from April 2021 onwards, the business unit has closed down due to a lockdown. Although the bank 
-

ers who do not receive this policy. At the end of the year, the NPL rate was 4.4% higher than the stan-

the banks’ loss was 36.47 billion kip, of which operating loss covered for 37%, from credit loss 
covered for 28%, and 35% was loss from depreciation of kip (FX loss).

Deposit : the bank has continued to facilitate customers to open deposit accounts such as Current 
account, Savings and Fixed Deposit Accounts. Through many channels, whether it is to open an 
account through the counter and through the bank's application MJ Saduak, open a digital account 
at the World Trade Center without paper, through agency banking (MJ Sabai), By the end of 2021, 
the Bank's deposit balance increased by 213.11 billion Kip (41.42%) from 514.57 billion Kip (2020) to 
727.68 billion Kip, with a total of 22,639 deposit customers, an increase of 12.79% compared to the 
previous year.

Loan : the bank focused on expanding various types of loans according to the needs of customers, 
especially vehicle loans, housing loans, business loans, personal loans and other loans. The bank was 
able to increase the total number of 595 loan customers from 3,328 (2020) to 3,923 accounts with a 
total net credit increase of 211.84 billion Kip (40.36%) from 524.95 billion Kip (2020) to 736.73 billion 
Kip.

Borrowing: The Bank has renewed the loan agreement from Mizuho Bank Bangkok Branch, 
Thailand $20 million, and renewed a loan agreement from First Commercial Bank of Vientiane for 24 
billion kip, while a loan from the Bank of the Lao PDR of 9.3 billion kip in 2020 is a long-term agree-
ment unchanged.

Increase of registered capital: there is no increase in registered capital in 2021
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data and analytics. 
• Increase automation 

in report preparation 
to reduce manual 
processes and 
human error. 

 

data for more 
granular analysis, 
Basel II 
requirements and 
certain future 
requirements. 

• Data accuracy 
validation and 
clean-up. 

more accurate and 
granular reporting 
and analytics.  This 
is being 
continuously 
improved to add 
further capabilities 
and accuracy. 

 

 

 

• Development of risk 
professionals who 
are forward-looking 
and agile. 

• Strengthen 
knowledge and 
awareness via 
internal upskilling 
and/ or external 
hires. 

• Comprehensive 
credit, risk and 
analytical skillsets 
are essential for the 
Bank’s future needs.  

• Develop a strong 
talent pool, 
equipped with 
future-ready, 
technical and 
leadership 
capabilities. 

• Development of 
Credit professionals 
for Assessment-
Retail & Non-Retail, 
Credit Admin and 
Credit Control 
functions. 

• In-house credit 
training rolled-out. 

 

Data & 
Analytics

Training & 
Upskilling
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MARUHAN Japan Bank Lao Co. Ltd. is the �rst and only Japanese-owned commercial bank in Lao PDR. 
As it is in our heritage, we embody Quality, Service, Innovation, and Trust. Our Group has banking presences 
in Laos, Cambodia, and Myanmar, which provides unparalleled regional banking experience. Here at MJBL, we 
strive to be Glo-cal, a term coined combining the best of global and local talents & expertise with a strong local 
understanding, business focus, and long-term vision to be here in Lao for good – serving our local communi-
ties, businesses, and customers. The MJBL team has extensive commercial banking and digital-led technologist 
experience composed of global professionals from Laos, Malaysia, Japan, India, Thailand, and France to name a 
few. 

Likened to Metamorphosis, MJBL has embarked in 2020 on a bank-wide strategic transformation to build a 
strong banking franchise premised on 3 key pillars – (1) Trust (2) Customer Experience (3) Digitalization. MJ22, 
our 3-year program, envisions MJBL’s growth into the Most Trustworthy Bank in Lao PDR, by providing an 
awesome customer experience that is both engaging and ful�lling the innate needs of customers via custom-
er-centric and purpose-built digital banking enablers. 

In the second year of our MJ22, FY2021 has been challenging with the global impact of COVID-19 and its 
variants in Laos and all around the world.

Despite the situation, MJBL emphasized strengthening the bank’s foundation and investing for the future, to 
grow responsibly and sustainably.

We are also committed to supporting the MSME sector beyond the challenging time of the global pandemic. 
Indeed, MJBL has been selected as one of the only �ve-panel banks in Lao PDR by the Ministry of Industry and 
Commerce & World Bank to help provide access to �nance for businesses to overcome the negative impact of 
COVID-19. Access to �nance become easier for small businesses while we can provide mentoring and coaching 
for small business owners, payment capabilities, and strengthen our SME digital ecosystem.

Aside from �nancial sustainability, MJBL sustainability’s agenda includes the environment and people. After 
launching the 1st ever fully paperless and digital branch in Laos at World Trade Center in 2020, we are now 
providing �nancing to electric vehicles (EV), which is an important topic in the current economic situation.

Easing access to funding is a key principle of MJBL for individuals and businesses with an a�ordable �nancial 
condition requirement notwithstanding net worth and business size. The “Bank for All” well depicts our �nan-
cial inclusion in reducing and minimizing to diminish barriers to customers to participate in the �nancial and 
banking services to have better lives and businesses.

At MJBL, we help an individual to own their dream car and house lifting their living conditions and improving 
living quality with a�ordable and reasonable custody. We also value the fundamental national economic 
promoter – SMEs, with a cutting-edge lending program through personal re-mortgage and SME loans.

Our metamorphosis journey continues…

Overview MJBL:
Road to Sustainability65
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS’ PROFILE

Mr. Tsuyoshi Kinoshita started his career at NTT DATA Corporation in Japan. He was 
engaged in oversea business support and opening a new branch in Malaysia. After that,
he joined Korn Ferry Hay Group Co., Ltd. and was assigned to launch Japan Desk in China. 
He has a lot of experience and achievements as an HR consultant and management 
position, including work experience at AON Hewitt China, ICMG, and PERSOLKELLY 
Consulting (APAC). He joined MARUHAN Corporation in 2021 and currently serves as 
General Manager of Strategic HR of Financial Company.

Mr. HAN Ken joined MARUHAN Corporation in 2000, after working for Nomura 
Securities since 1998. In 2007, he was appointed as Director of MARUHAN Corpora-
tion and in 2014, rose to become Managing Director. In 2020, he was subsequently 
appointed as Representative Director. In 2021, he was appointed as President of 
Financial Company. He is also the Managing Director and CEO/President of MARU-
HAN Investment Asia Pte. Ltd., which is a Singapore-based �nancial headquarter. He 
manages its �nancial subsidiaries such as Sathapana Bank Plc., Sathapana Limited in 
Myanmar, and MARUHAN Japan Bank Lao. He obtained his Bachelor of Law degree 
from DOSHISHA University in 1997.

Dr. HAN Chang-Woo is the founder, Chairman, and CEO of MARUHAN Corporation of 
Japan, which operates and manages a variety of entertainment/amusement facilities 
such as golf courses, driving ranges, bowling alleys, game centers, restaurants, and 
pachinko parlors (Japanese pinball). He founded MARUHAN Corporation in 1957 and 
saw the business grow rapidly, with earnings over US$ 25 billion in annual sales. 
MARUHAN Corporation is known as the industry’s leading company in Japan. The 
success in the company’s business growth comes from Dr. Han’s determination in 
challenges, and strong belief in pursuing customer satisfaction.

Mr. KIM Vada has over thirty-seven years of working experience at National Bank of 
Cambodia (NBC). During his working time at the central bank, he held several senior 
positions with a vast experience in banking including the �elds of risk management 
(market, credit, liquidity, operational risk etc.), corporate governance and business 
strategy. He had played a key role in restructuring banking system successfully in Cambodia 
during 2000, developing a competitive, safe and sound banking system which has been 
well regulated and supervised, and has also e�ectively mobilized savings for �nancing 
to stimulate the growth of Cambodian economy. At international level, he held the 
position as the chairman of Asia-Paci�c Rural and Agricultural Credit Association (APRACA).

Mr. Tomoyuki Iwasa has over 30 years’ experience in banking business since he started his 
career in 1989 at Mizuho Bank Ltd. in Japan.  He experienced various positions in corporate 
banking area including business promotion, planning, and credit and both for domestic 
and international business. He joined MARUHAN Corporation in August 2019 and 
currently serves as Corporate O�cer and General Manager of Banking Business Department
of Financial Company.
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MARUHAN Japan Bank Lao
Banking Agent

 

MJ Saduak
Increase of 75%, 
going from 7,467 to 13,109 users

Agency Banking
Deployment nationwide

Awards in 2021

. ASEAN Business Awards: Friend of Laos, for our contribution in
LAO PDR economy

. Awarded by LNCCI as Top Business Leader for COVID-19 answer

. 

. Awarded as Fastest Growing Commercial Bank by 
Global Economics, UK

Awarded for our MJBL Vi�ual Debit MasterCard
as Best New Vi�ual Debit Card by Global Economics, UK

QR Merchants
3,224 merchants
86.6% increase vs 2020

Customer base
Increase by 42% to 26,000

2021 Highlights
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MARUHAN Japan Bank Lao
Most Innovative Bank
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MANAGEMENT TEAM
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Message from the Chairman

83

“Walking today amidst Tokyo’s bustling streets and skyscrapers. It is hard to believe that only 150 years ago it 
was little more than a provincial town. Even harder to think that in 1923 it was devastated by one of the century’s 
worst earthquake or that the city would soon afterwards feel the e ects of a disastrous war MARUHAN Japan 
Bank Lao has been one of the many Japanese success stories written during the period of reconstruction that 
followed horrors”.

Finally, as we review the seventh year of operation 
for MARUHAN Japan Bank Lao it seems like a good 
time to express my appreciation for all the support 
we’ve received during our seventh year of operation. 
My thanks go to the management and  of 
MARUHAN Japan Bank Lao for their commitment, 
dedication, and perseverance. 

I would also like to express, on behalf of MARUHAN 
Japan Bank Lao, our sincere gratitude to our 
customers for their invaluable patronage and to the 
Central Bank of Lao PDR and the Government of 
the Lao People’s Democratic Republic for their 
advice, guidance, and support. 

Dr.HAN,Chang-Woo
韓昌祐
Chairman
MARUHAN Group

I also remember my old days. My family was a 
farmer, and we were so poor that we could hardly 
live even one-day long. 60 years ago, I started a 
small business in the north countryside of Kyoto 
Prefecture in Japan. While the  capital was 
small, my business grew up, and now we became 
the comprehensive entertainment corporation, 
which has over 300 branches and 17 honorable golf 
courses and about 15,000 sta . As I have watched 
such MARUHAN’s interest grow and diversify, I have 
observed that every one of our successes can be 
attributed to Hungry Spirit and Challenging Spirit 
and ingrained commitment to excellence and I am 
proud to say that MARUHAN Japan Bank Lao’s 
commitment and performance of past seven years 
are continuing this trend.

Whether it is through our commitment to excellence, 
capacity building and the raising of standards, the 
expertise and resources we are delivering to 
Laotian people and people doing business in Lao 
PDR, or the work being done under our role-model 
CSR programs, I hope, and I am  that 
MARUHAN Japan Bank Lao will contribute to the 
growth of both Lao PDR and the ASEAN Region. 
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MARUHAN Japan Bank Lao

Mr. Anthony Chin
Chief Executive Officer

Message from CEO

Sabaidee Thouk Khon!

Last year, I had the privilege to share our three-year strategic transformation agenda from �nancial 
year (FY) 2020 to 2022. I would like to continue with an update of our second-year transformation, 
FY2021. FY2021 had been a very challenging year with the severe global impact of COVID-19 in its 
second & third waves including many new variations, which has a�ected the world over. This has 
a�ected everyone in terms of livelihood and lives, from an economic, social and health perspective. 
Laos has not been spared. 

Given this situation, what do we do? 

We focused on strengthening our foundation and investing for the future, to grow responsibly and 
sustainable, summed up by three key pillars:  

1. Systems. On the technology front, we strengthened our internal capabilities by embarking on our 
core banking system upgrade, a major project across the bank. We also developed numerous innova-
tive solutions. These enhances our products, services, and speed to market.  

2. Process. We continue to focus strongly on customers, by automating processes and streamlining 
operations. We have taken direct feedback from consumers, businesses and partners. In collaboration 
with our partners, we developed capabilities to provide better services and embed ourselves into the 
lifestyle of our customers and community. Under the auspices of BOL, we have innovated a new 
channel and service called MJ Sabai (Agency Banking). This combines our innovative digital capabili-
ties with our desire to collaborate and support MSME. Furthermore, this is to promote �nancial inclu-
sion and to expand our services to the provinces. Physical outlets enable us to provide �nancial and 
banking services to the unbanked and underbanked segment. We continue to innovate on our prod-
ucts and services by enabling more services online. Customers can also apply online or access to 
online banking for SME and corporate.

3. People. Our greatest asset. We are pleased to focus on substantially investing and grooming inter-
nal talents for their career development. Over the last one year, we have promoted many local 
employees into senior leadership roles, including CFO & CRO. The bank has invested substantial 
resources into grooming our next generation leaders. This augurs well for our sustainability agenda 
of MJBL. 
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nal talents for their career development. Over the last one year, we have promoted many local 
employees into senior leadership roles, including CFO & CRO. The bank has invested substantial 
resources into grooming our next generation leaders. This augurs well for our sustainability agenda 
of MJBL. 

In FY2022, as we gear up for the third year of this strategic transformation, we will streamline the 
organization to be agile. We will continue to engage our team to be able to grow and to deliver 
sustainable performance and pro�ts. These are all aligned with our execution plan and our 
single-mindedness approach of team spirit & collaboration. We are committed to ensure the 
successful implementation of our transformation program. 

In closing, I thank our shareholders and board of directors for their continued guidance and 
wisdom, regulators for their leadership and support of commercial banks, customers, and business 
partners for their support and trust in giving us an opportunity to serve them. And our prized assets, 
our sta�, our MJ AllStars. 

Khopjai lai-lai! 

“What our mind conceives, we can achieve”

Anthony Chin
Chief Executive O�cer 

MARUHAN Japan Bank Lao Co., Ltd
#BankforAll 
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We are committed to support MSME sector beyond the challenging time from the global pandemic. 
MJBL has participated in �nancing programs for SME, such as the project to provide funding for small 
and medium-sized business units through the Department of Small and Medium Business Promotion 
(DOSMEP). The bank received a total of 51 billion Kip from the project to provide loans to customers in 
the priority areas of the government at an interest rate of 3% per annum. In addition, our bank partici-
pates in a government-funded program to address business units a�ected by COVID-19 outbreak, and 
to borrow money from the People's Republic of China (CDB) which provides loans to business entities 
in accordance with government priorities. We are grateful to the Ministry of Industry and Commerce & 
World Bank to have selected MJBL as one of only �ve panel banks in Lao PDR to help provide access to 
�nance for businesses to overcome the negative impact of COVID-19. This has helped small businesses 
to access �nance, provide mentoring and coaching for small business owners, payment capabilities 
and strengthening our SME digital ecosystem. 

Apart from �nancial sustainability for the community, our sustainability agenda also extends to the 
larger scope including environment and people. Moreover, we have also embarked on Electric Vehicles 
�nancing for our customers, which has now proven to be quite an important topic in view of the 
current economic situation. In the organization, we have reduced carbon footprint in o�ce by minimiz-
ing printing and optimizing �ntech. We will continue enhancing this agenda in FY2022 and beyond. 

In term of �nancial performances, the bank continues to focus on credit expansion, which reached 
99.4% and deposits achieved 102.5% of the plan. To support individuals and MSME to recover from the 
pandemic’s impact, MJBL has provided a �nancial relieve program for customers a�ected by the 
COVID-19 outbreak, with a total of 404 eligible customers. As reported last year, we are on a three-year 
turnaround program, and we continued to invest in technology, platform, and capabilities. Per plan, we 
recorded another year of losses. However, we have now turned the corner ahead of our three-year plan, 
reporting our �rst pro�t in January 2022. 

On a positive note, notwithstanding the challenges, I am pleased to share highlights of our achieve-
ments in FY2021. Some key highlights on our strategic agenda on Trust, Customer-centricity & Digital 
and successful launches (including many �rsts in Lao PDR):

• Our customer base increased by 42% to 26,000. 
• Our award-winning mobile banking app, MJ Saduak, has grown by 75%.
• Our QR merchant base grew by 87%. 
• Under the auspices of Ministry of Health, launched our Vira-Bu-Loud (Hero) fund where people can
  donate to support frontliners & volunteers during the pandemic of COVID-19.

We are thankful for a few recognitions:  
• Awarded by the ASEAN Business Awards: Special Award – Friend of Laos, for our contribution to Lao
  PDR.
• Awarded by LNCCI as Top Business Leader in response to COVID-19.
• Awarded for our MJBL Virtual Debit MasterCard as Best New Virtual Debit Card by Global Economics,
  UK.
• Awarded as Fastest Growing Commercial Bank by Global Economics, UK.

Overview of Laos’ Economy in 2021 and forecast for 2022

Overall Financial Stability 2021

Overall, macroeconomic stability remains fragile, with in�ation on the rise, while the exchange rate 
continues to depreciate, and the country retains limited foreign exchange reserves. Despite better 
performance in 2021 than the previous year, implementation of revenue collection failed to meet 
targets, with tax collection still low, and a signi�cant increase in budget revenue stemming from 
non-tax sources. Meanwhile, an experiment to collect revenue from cryptocurrency mining opera-
tions and exchanges still faces a number of challenges.

Lao Economic Trends 2022

The economy of Laos is expected to grow by 4.0% in 2022, provided that key economic sectors are 
able to maintain growth close to that of the previous year, while the reopening of the country to 
tourism should help the service sector recover at a faster pace.

Summarize the Results of Business Operations in 2021

By 2021, the Bank continued to focus on credit expansion, which reached 99.4% and deposits 
achieved 102.5% of the plan, although lending and deposit mobilization will go according to plan, 
but loan recovery still be di�cult. Due to the impact of the second round of COVID-19 outbreaks 
from April 2021 onwards, the business unit has closed down due to a lockdown. Although the bank 
has a policy in providing repayment concessions to a�ected customers, there are still many custom-
ers who do not receive this policy. At the end of the year, the NPL rate was 4.4% higher than the stan-
dard set by the BOL (3%), and this year is considered to be the year that the bank was a�ected by 
exchange rate �uctuations due to the 15-year depreciation of the Kip against the dollar. Therefore, 
the banks’ loss was 36.47 billion Kip, of which operating loss covered for 37%, from credit loss 
covered for 28%, and 35% was loss from depreciation of Kip (FX loss).

Deposit: The bank has continued to facilitate customers to open Current Accounts, Savings and 
Term Deposit Accounts through many channels, such as the branch counter, the bank's mobile 
banking app "MJ Saduak", paperless procedure at the World Trade Center and agency banking "MJ 
Sabai". By the end of 2021, the Bank's deposit balance increased by 213.11 billion Kip (41.42%) from 
514.57 billion Kip (2020) to 727.68 billion Kip, with a total of 22,639 deposit customers, an increase of 
12.79% compared to the previous year.

Loan: The bank focused on expanding various types of loans according to the needs of customers, 
especially vehicle loans, housing loans, business loans, personal loans and other loans. The bank was 
able to increase the total number of 595 loan customers from 3,328 (2020) to 3,923 accounts with a 
total net credit increase of 211.84 billion Kip (40.36%) from 524.95 billion Kip (2020) to 736.73 billion 
Kip.

Borrowing: The Bank has renewed the loan agreement from Mizuho Bank Bangkok Branch, 
Thailand $20 million, and renewed a loan agreement from First Commercial Bank of Vientiane for 24 
billion Kip, while a loan from the Bank of the Lao PDR of 9.3 billion Kip in 2020 is a long-term agree-
ment unchanged.

Increase of registered capital: There is no increase in registered capital in 2021.
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• Our customer base increased by 42% to 26,000. 
• Our award-winning mobile banking app, MJ Saduak, has grown by 75%.
• Our QR merchant base grew by 87%. 
• Under the auspices of Ministry of Health, launched our Vira-Bu-Loud (Hero) fund where people can 
donate to support frontliners & volunteers during the pandemic of CoVID-19.

We are thankful for a few recognitions:  
• Awarded by the ASEAN Business Awards: Special Award – Friend of Laos, for our contribution to Lao 
PDR.
• Awarded by LNCCI as Top Business Leader in response to CoVID-19.
• Awarded for our MJBL Virtual Debit MasterCard as Best New Virtual Debit Card by Global Economics, 
UK.
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the priority areas of the government at an interest rate of 3% per annum. In addition, our bank partici-
pates in a government-funded program to address business units a�ected by COVID-19 outbreak, and 
to borrow money from the People's Republic of China (CDB) which provides loans to business entities 
in accordance with government priorities. We are grateful to the Ministry of Industry and Commerce & 
World Bank to have selected MJBL as one of only �ve panel banks in Lao PDR to help provide access to 
�nance for businesses to overcome the negative impact of COVID-19. This has helped small businesses 
to access �nance, provide mentoring and coaching for small business owners, payment capabilities 
and strengthening our SME digital ecosystem. 

Apart from �nancial sustainability for the community, our sustainability agenda also extends to the 
larger scope including environment and people. Moreover, we have also embarked on Electric Vehicles 
�nancing for our customers, which has now proven to be quite an important topic in view of the 
current economic situation. In the organization, we have reduced carbon footprint in o�ce by minimiz-
ing printing and optimizing �ntech. We will continue enhancing this agenda in FY2022 and beyond. 

In term of �nancial performances, the bank continues to focus on credit expansion, which reached 
99.4% and deposits achieved 102.5% of the plan. To support individuals and MSME to recover from the 
pandemic’s impact, MJBL has provided a �nancial relieve program for customers a�ected by the 
COVID-19 outbreak, with a total of 404 eligible customers. As reported last year, we are on a three-year 
turnaround program, and we continued to invest in technology, platform, and capabilities. Per plan, we 
recorded another year of losses. However, we have now turned the corner ahead of our three-year plan, 
reporting our �rst pro�t in January 2022. 

On a positive note, notwithstanding the challenges, I am pleased to share highlights of our achieve-
ments in FY2021. Some key highlights on our strategic agenda on Trust, Customer-centricity & Digital 
and successful launches (including many �rsts in Lao PDR):

• Our customer base increased by 42% to 26,000. 
• Our award-winning mobile banking app, MJ Saduak, has grown by 75%.
• Our QR merchant base grew by 87%. 
• Under the auspices of Ministry of Health, launched our Vira-Bu-Loud (Hero) fund where people can
  donate to support frontliners & volunteers during the pandemic of COVID-19.
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• Awarded for our MJBL Virtual Debit MasterCard as Best New Virtual Debit Card by Global Economics,
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Overview of Laos’ Economy in 2021 and forecast for 2022

Overall Financial Stability 2021

Overall, macroeconomic stability remains fragile, with in�ation on the rise, while the exchange rate 
continues to depreciate, and the country retains limited foreign exchange reserves. Despite better 
performance in 2021 than the previous year, implementation of revenue collection failed to meet 
targets, with tax collection still low, and a signi�cant increase in budget revenue stemming from 
non-tax sources. Meanwhile, an experiment to collect revenue from cryptocurrency mining opera-
tions and exchanges still faces a number of challenges.

Lao Economic Trends 2022

The economy of Laos is expected to grow by 4.0% in 2022, provided that key economic sectors are 
able to maintain growth close to that of the previous year, while the reopening of the country to 
tourism should help the service sector recover at a faster pace.

Summarize the Results of Business Operations in 2021

By 2021, the Bank continued to focus on credit expansion, which reached 99.4% and deposits 
achieved 102.5% of the plan, although lending and deposit mobilization will go according to plan, 
but loan recovery still be di�cult. Due to the impact of the second round of COVID-19 outbreaks 
from April 2021 onwards, the business unit has closed down due to a lockdown. Although the bank 
has a policy in providing repayment concessions to a�ected customers, there are still many custom-
ers who do not receive this policy. At the end of the year, the NPL rate was 4.4% higher than the stan-
dard set by the BOL (3%), and this year is considered to be the year that the bank was a�ected by 
exchange rate �uctuations due to the 15-year depreciation of the Kip against the dollar. Therefore, 
the banks’ loss was 36.47 billion Kip, of which operating loss covered for 37%, from credit loss 
covered for 28%, and 35% was loss from depreciation of Kip (FX loss).

Deposit: The bank has continued to facilitate customers to open Current Accounts, Savings and 
Term Deposit Accounts through many channels, such as the branch counter, the bank's mobile 
banking app "MJ Saduak", paperless procedure at the World Trade Center and agency banking "MJ 
Sabai". By the end of 2021, the Bank's deposit balance increased by 213.11 billion Kip (41.42%) from 
514.57 billion Kip (2020) to 727.68 billion Kip, with a total of 22,639 deposit customers, an increase of 
12.79% compared to the previous year.

Loan: The bank focused on expanding various types of loans according to the needs of customers, 
especially vehicle loans, housing loans, business loans, personal loans and other loans. The bank was 
able to increase the total number of 595 loan customers from 3,328 (2020) to 3,923 accounts with a 
total net credit increase of 211.84 billion Kip (40.36%) from 524.95 billion Kip (2020) to 736.73 billion 
Kip.

Borrowing: The Bank has renewed the loan agreement from Mizuho Bank Bangkok Branch, 
Thailand $20 million, and renewed a loan agreement from First Commercial Bank of Vientiane for 24 
billion Kip, while a loan from the Bank of the Lao PDR of 9.3 billion Kip in 2020 is a long-term agree-
ment unchanged.

Increase of registered capital: There is no increase in registered capital in 2021.
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In FY2022, as we gear up for the third year of this strategic transformation, we will streamline the 
organization to be agile. We will continue to engage our team to be able to grow and to deliver 

single-mindedness approach of team spirit & collaboration. We are committed to ensure the 
successful implementation of our transformation program. 

In closing, I thank our shareholders and board of directors for their continued guidance and 
wisdom, regulators for their leadership and support of commercial banks, customers, and business 
partners for their support and trust in giving us an opportunity to serve them. And our prized assets, 

Khopjai lai-lai! 

“What our mind conceives, we can achieve”

Anthony Chin

MARUHAN Japan Bank Lao Co., Ltd
#BankforAll 

Sabaidee Thouk Khon!

Last year, I had the privilege to share our three-year strategic transformation agenda from �nancial 
year (FY) 2020 to 2022. I would like to continue with an update of our second-year transformation, 
FY2021. FY2021 had been a very challenging year with the severe global impact of COVID-19 in its 
second & third waves including many new variations, which has a�ected the world over. This has 
a�ected everyone in terms of livelihood and lives, from an economic, social and health perspective. 
Laos has not been spared. 

Given this situation, what do we do? 

We focused on strengthening our foundation and investing for the future, to grow responsibly and 
sustainable, summed up by three key pillars:  

1. Systems. On the technology front, we strengthened our internal capabilities by embarking on our 
core banking system upgrade, a major project across the bank. We also developed numerous innova-
tive solutions. These enhances our products, services, and speed to market.  

2. Process. We continue to focus strongly on customers, by automating processes and streamlining 
operations. We have taken direct feedback from consumers, businesses and partners. In collaboration 
with our partners, we developed capabilities to provide better services and embed ourselves into the 
lifestyle of our customers and community. Under the auspices of BOL, we have innovated a new 
channel and service called MJ Sabai (Agency Banking). This combines our innovative digital capabili-
ties with our desire to collaborate and support MSME. Furthermore, this is to promote �nancial inclu-
sion and to expand our services to the provinces. Physical outlets enable us to provide �nancial and 
banking services to the unbanked and underbanked segment. We continue to innovate on our prod-
ucts and services by enabling more services online. Customers can also apply online or access to 
online banking for SME and corporate.

3. People. Our greatest asset. We are pleased to focus on substantially investing and grooming inter-
nal talents for their career development. Over the last one year, we have promoted many local 
employees into senior leadership roles, including CFO & CRO. The bank has invested substantial 
resources into grooming our next generation leaders. This augurs well for our sustainability agenda 
of MJBL. 
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We are committed to support MSME sector beyond the challenging time from the global pandemic. 
MJBL has participated in �nancing programs for SME, such as the project to provide funding for small 
and medium-sized business units through the Department of Small and Medium Business Promotion 
(DOSMEP). The bank received a total of 51 billion Kip from the project to provide loans to customers in 
the priority areas of the government at an interest rate of 3% per annum. In addition, our bank partici-
pates in a government-funded program to address business units a�ected by COVID-19 outbreak, and 
to borrow money from the People's Republic of China (CDB) which provides loans to business entities 
in accordance with government priorities. We are grateful to the Ministry of Industry and Commerce & 
World Bank to have selected MJBL as one of only �ve panel banks in Lao PDR to help provide access to 
�nance for businesses to overcome the negative impact of COVID-19. This has helped small businesses 
to access �nance, provide mentoring and coaching for small business owners, payment capabilities 
and strengthening our SME digital ecosystem. 

Apart from �nancial sustainability for the community, our sustainability agenda also extends to the 
larger scope including environment and people. Moreover, we have also embarked on Electric Vehicles 
�nancing for our customers, which has now proven to be quite an important topic in view of the 
current economic situation. In the organization, we have reduced carbon footprint in o�ce by minimiz-
ing printing and optimizing �ntech. We will continue enhancing this agenda in FY2022 and beyond. 

In term of �nancial performances, the bank continues to focus on credit expansion, which reached 
99.4% and deposits achieved 102.5% of the plan. To support individuals and MSME to recover from the 
pandemic’s impact, MJBL has provided a �nancial relieve program for customers a�ected by the 
COVID-19 outbreak, with a total of 404 eligible customers. As reported last year, we are on a three-year 
turnaround program, and we continued to invest in technology, platform, and capabilities. Per plan, we 
recorded another year of losses. However, we have now turned the corner ahead of our three-year plan, 
reporting our �rst pro�t in January 2022. 

On a positive note, notwithstanding the challenges, I am pleased to share highlights of our achieve-
ments in FY2021. Some key highlights on our strategic agenda on Trust, Customer-centricity & Digital 
and successful launches (including many �rsts in Lao PDR):

• Our customer base increased by 42% to 26,000. 
• Our award-winning mobile banking app, MJ Saduak, has grown by 75%.
• Our QR merchant base grew by 87%. 
• Under the auspices of Ministry of Health, launched our Vira-Bu-Loud (Hero) fund where people can
  donate to support frontliners & volunteers during the pandemic of COVID-19.

We are thankful for a few recognitions:  
• Awarded by the ASEAN Business Awards: Special Award – Friend of Laos, for our contribution to Lao
  PDR.
• Awarded by LNCCI as Top Business Leader in response to COVID-19.
• Awarded for our MJBL Virtual Debit MasterCard as Best New Virtual Debit Card by Global Economics,
  UK.
• Awarded as Fastest Growing Commercial Bank by Global Economics, UK.

Overview of Laos’ Economy in 2021 and forecast for 2022

Overall Financial Stability 2021

Overall, macroeconomic stability remains fragile, with in�ation on the rise, while the exchange rate 
continues to depreciate, and the country retains limited foreign exchange reserves. Despite better 
performance in 2021 than the previous year, implementation of revenue collection failed to meet 
targets, with tax collection still low, and a signi�cant increase in budget revenue stemming from 
non-tax sources. Meanwhile, an experiment to collect revenue from cryptocurrency mining opera-
tions and exchanges still faces a number of challenges.

Lao Economic Trends 2022

The economy of Laos is expected to grow by 4.0% in 2022, provided that key economic sectors are 
able to maintain growth close to that of the previous year, while the reopening of the country to 
tourism should help the service sector recover at a faster pace.

Summarize the Results of Business Operations in 2021

By 2021, the Bank continued to focus on credit expansion, which reached 99.4% and deposits 
achieved 102.5% of the plan, although lending and deposit mobilization will go according to plan, 
but loan recovery still be di�cult. Due to the impact of the second round of COVID-19 outbreaks 
from April 2021 onwards, the business unit has closed down due to a lockdown. Although the bank 
has a policy in providing repayment concessions to a�ected customers, there are still many custom-
ers who do not receive this policy. At the end of the year, the NPL rate was 4.4% higher than the stan-
dard set by the BOL (3%), and this year is considered to be the year that the bank was a�ected by 
exchange rate �uctuations due to the 15-year depreciation of the Kip against the dollar. Therefore, 
the banks’ loss was 36.47 billion Kip, of which operating loss covered for 37%, from credit loss 
covered for 28%, and 35% was loss from depreciation of Kip (FX loss).

Deposit: The bank has continued to facilitate customers to open Current Accounts, Savings and 
Term Deposit Accounts through many channels, such as the branch counter, the bank's mobile 
banking app "MJ Saduak", paperless procedure at the World Trade Center and agency banking "MJ 
Sabai". By the end of 2021, the Bank's deposit balance increased by 213.11 billion Kip (41.42%) from 
514.57 billion Kip (2020) to 727.68 billion Kip, with a total of 22,639 deposit customers, an increase of 
12.79% compared to the previous year.

Loan: The bank focused on expanding various types of loans according to the needs of customers, 
especially vehicle loans, housing loans, business loans, personal loans and other loans. The bank was 
able to increase the total number of 595 loan customers from 3,328 (2020) to 3,923 accounts with a 
total net credit increase of 211.84 billion Kip (40.36%) from 524.95 billion Kip (2020) to 736.73 billion 
Kip.

Borrowing: The Bank has renewed the loan agreement from Mizuho Bank Bangkok Branch, 
Thailand $20 million, and renewed a loan agreement from First Commercial Bank of Vientiane for 24 
billion Kip, while a loan from the Bank of the Lao PDR of 9.3 billion Kip in 2020 is a long-term agree-
ment unchanged.

Increase of registered capital: There is no increase in registered capital in 2021.
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FY2021. FY2021 had been a very challenging year with the severe global impact of COVID-19 in its 
second & third waves including many new variations, which has a�ected the world over. This has 
a�ected everyone in terms of livelihood and lives, from an economic, social and health perspective. 
Laos has not been spared. 

Given this situation, what do we do? 

We focused on strengthening our foundation and investing for the future, to grow responsibly and 
sustainable, summed up by three key pillars:  

1. Systems. On the technology front, we strengthened our internal capabilities by embarking on our 
core banking system upgrade, a major project across the bank. We also developed numerous innova-
tive solutions. These enhances our products, services, and speed to market.  

2. Process. We continue to focus strongly on customers, by automating processes and streamlining 
operations. We have taken direct feedback from consumers, businesses and partners. In collaboration 
with our partners, we developed capabilities to provide better services and embed ourselves into the 
lifestyle of our customers and community. Under the auspices of BOL, we have innovated a new 
channel and service called MJ Sabai (Agency Banking). This combines our innovative digital capabili-
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sion and to expand our services to the provinces. Physical outlets enable us to provide �nancial and 
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nal talents for their career development. Over the last one year, we have promoted many local 
employees into senior leadership roles, including CFO & CRO. The bank has invested substantial 
resources into grooming our next generation leaders. This augurs well for our sustainability agenda 
of MJBL. 
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tourism should help the service sector recover at a faster pace.

Summarize the results of business operations in 2021

By 2021, the Bank continued to focus on credit expansion, which reached 99.4% and deposits 
achieved 102.5% of the plan, although lending and deposit mobilization will go according to plan, 

from April 2021 onwards, the business unit has closed down due to a lockdown. Although the bank 
-

ers who do not receive this policy. At the end of the year, the NPL rate was 4.4% higher than the stan-

the banks’ loss was 36.47 billion kip, of which operating loss covered for 37%, from credit loss 
covered for 28%, and 35% was loss from depreciation of kip (FX loss).

Deposit : the bank has continued to facilitate customers to open deposit accounts such as Current 
account, Savings and Fixed Deposit Accounts. Through many channels, whether it is to open an 
account through the counter and through the bank's application MJ Saduak, open a digital account 
at the World Trade Center without paper, through agency banking (MJ Sabai), By the end of 2021, 
the Bank's deposit balance increased by 213.11 billion Kip (41.42%) from 514.57 billion Kip (2020) to 
727.68 billion Kip, with a total of 22,639 deposit customers, an increase of 12.79% compared to the 
previous year.

Loan : the bank focused on expanding various types of loans according to the needs of customers, 
especially vehicle loans, housing loans, business loans, personal loans and other loans. The bank was 
able to increase the total number of 595 loan customers from 3,328 (2020) to 3,923 accounts with a 
total net credit increase of 211.84 billion Kip (40.36%) from 524.95 billion Kip (2020) to 736.73 billion 
Kip.

Borrowing: The Bank has renewed the loan agreement from Mizuho Bank Bangkok Branch, 
Thailand $20 million, and renewed a loan agreement from First Commercial Bank of Vientiane for 24 
billion kip, while a loan from the Bank of the Lao PDR of 9.3 billion kip in 2020 is a long-term agree-
ment unchanged.

Increase of registered capital: there is no increase in registered capital in 2021

We are committed to support MSME sector beyond the challenging time from the global pandemic. 
MJBL has participated in �nancing programs for SME, such as the project to provide funding for small 
and medium-sized business units through the Department of Small and Medium Business Promotion 
(DOSMEP). The bank received a total of 51 billion Kip from the project to provide loans to customers in 
the priority areas of the government at an interest rate of 3% per annum. In addition, our bank partici-
pates in a government-funded program to address business units a�ected by COVID-19 outbreak, and 
to borrow money from the People's Republic of China (CDB) which provides loans to business entities 
in accordance with government priorities. We are grateful to the Ministry of Industry and Commerce & 
World Bank to have selected MJBL as one of only �ve panel banks in Lao PDR to help provide access to 
�nance for businesses to overcome the negative impact of COVID-19. This has helped small businesses 
to access �nance, provide mentoring and coaching for small business owners, payment capabilities 
and strengthening our SME digital ecosystem. 

Apart from �nancial sustainability for the community, our sustainability agenda also extends to the 
larger scope including environment and people. Moreover, we have also embarked on Electric Vehicles 
�nancing for our customers, which has now proven to be quite an important topic in view of the 
current economic situation. In the organization, we have reduced carbon footprint in o�ce by minimiz-
ing printing and optimizing �ntech. We will continue enhancing this agenda in FY2022 and beyond. 

In term of �nancial performances, the bank continues to focus on credit expansion, which reached 
99.4% and deposits achieved 102.5% of the plan. To support individuals and MSME to recover from the 
pandemic’s impact, MJBL has provided a �nancial relieve program for customers a�ected by the 
COVID-19 outbreak, with a total of 404 eligible customers. As reported last year, we are on a three-year 
turnaround program, and we continued to invest in technology, platform, and capabilities. Per plan, we 
recorded another year of losses. However, we have now turned the corner ahead of our three-year plan, 
reporting our �rst pro�t in January 2022. 

On a positive note, notwithstanding the challenges, I am pleased to share highlights of our achieve-
ments in FY2021. Some key highlights on our strategic agenda on Trust, Customer-centricity & Digital 
and successful launches (including many �rsts in Lao PDR):

• Our customer base increased by 42% to 26,000. 
• Our award-winning mobile banking app, MJ Saduak, has grown by 75%.
• Our QR merchant base grew by 87%. 
• Under the auspices of Ministry of Health, launched our Vira-Bu-Loud (Hero) fund where people can
  donate to support frontliners & volunteers during the pandemic of COVID-19.

We are thankful for a few recognitions:  
• Awarded by the ASEAN Business Awards: Special Award – Friend of Laos, for our contribution to Lao
  PDR.
• Awarded by LNCCI as Top Business Leader in response to COVID-19.
• Awarded for our MJBL Virtual Debit MasterCard as Best New Virtual Debit Card by Global Economics,
  UK.
• Awarded as Fastest Growing Commercial Bank by Global Economics, UK.

Overview of Laos’ Economy in 2021 and forecast for 2022

Overall Financial Stability 2021

Overall, macroeconomic stability remains fragile, with in�ation on the rise, while the exchange rate 
continues to depreciate, and the country retains limited foreign exchange reserves. Despite better 
performance in 2021 than the previous year, implementation of revenue collection failed to meet 
targets, with tax collection still low, and a signi�cant increase in budget revenue stemming from 
non-tax sources. Meanwhile, an experiment to collect revenue from cryptocurrency mining opera-
tions and exchanges still faces a number of challenges.

Lao Economic Trends 2022

The economy of Laos is expected to grow by 4.0% in 2022, provided that key economic sectors are 
able to maintain growth close to that of the previous year, while the reopening of the country to 
tourism should help the service sector recover at a faster pace.

Summarize the Results of Business Operations in 2021

By 2021, the Bank continued to focus on credit expansion, which reached 99.4% and deposits 
achieved 102.5% of the plan, although lending and deposit mobilization will go according to plan, 
but loan recovery still be di�cult. Due to the impact of the second round of COVID-19 outbreaks 
from April 2021 onwards, the business unit has closed down due to a lockdown. Although the bank 
has a policy in providing repayment concessions to a�ected customers, there are still many custom-
ers who do not receive this policy. At the end of the year, the NPL rate was 4.4% higher than the stan-
dard set by the BOL (3%), and this year is considered to be the year that the bank was a�ected by 
exchange rate �uctuations due to the 15-year depreciation of the Kip against the dollar. Therefore, 
the banks’ loss was 36.47 billion Kip, of which operating loss covered for 37%, from credit loss 
covered for 28%, and 35% was loss from depreciation of Kip (FX loss).

Deposit: The bank has continued to facilitate customers to open Current Accounts, Savings and 
Term Deposit Accounts through many channels, such as the branch counter, the bank's mobile 
banking app "MJ Saduak", paperless procedure at the World Trade Center and agency banking "MJ 
Sabai". By the end of 2021, the Bank's deposit balance increased by 213.11 billion Kip (41.42%) from 
514.57 billion Kip (2020) to 727.68 billion Kip, with a total of 22,639 deposit customers, an increase of 
12.79% compared to the previous year.

Loan: The bank focused on expanding various types of loans according to the needs of customers, 
especially vehicle loans, housing loans, business loans, personal loans and other loans. The bank was 
able to increase the total number of 595 loan customers from 3,328 (2020) to 3,923 accounts with a 
total net credit increase of 211.84 billion Kip (40.36%) from 524.95 billion Kip (2020) to 736.73 billion 
Kip.

Borrowing: The Bank has renewed the loan agreement from Mizuho Bank Bangkok Branch, 
Thailand $20 million, and renewed a loan agreement from First Commercial Bank of Vientiane for 24 
billion Kip, while a loan from the Bank of the Lao PDR of 9.3 billion Kip in 2020 is a long-term agree-
ment unchanged.

Increase of registered capital: There is no increase in registered capital in 2021.
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IT system development: In addition to the development of mobile business systems,
the bank has also developed the agency banking system (known as MJ Sabai) by opening an 
account through a tablet, and within a year the core banking system was updated from version 11.1 

Risk management and regulatory improvement: The management structure has been 
reviewed in order to ensure adequacy in addressing and mitigating the relevant risks faced by the 
Bank in order to protect the interests of its stakeholders. 

Human resource management:
163 employees, including foreign and local experts and technicians. There are 150 Lao and 10 

Expansion of the network: Launched a variety of services such as cooperation with business 
partners, expand the network of agents through the Representative Bank (MJ Sabai), including 18 
outlets in Vientiane Capital and other provinces (Vientiane and Luang Prabang), with the expansion 
of 2 additional ATMs.

External cooperation:
to provide funding for small and medium-sized business units through the Department of Small and 
Medium Business Promotion (DOSMEP). The bank received a total of 51 billion kip from the project 
to provide loans to customers in the priority areas of the government at an interest rate of 3% per 
annum. The aims are to promote the growth of small and medium enterprises. In addition, our bank 

outbreak, and to borrow money from the People's Republic of China (CDB) which provides loans to 
business entities in accordance with government priorities. We have also expressed our intention to 
participate in the World Bank's Small and Medium-Sized. 

We have strengthened our cooperation with the Chamber of Commerce and other associations such 
as the National Chamber of Commerce and Industry (LNCCI), the Champassak Chamber of Com-
merce and Industry (CCCI), LuangPrabang Chamber of Commerce and Industry (LCCI), Small and 
Medium Business Association (LAOSME), Lao ICT Association (LICA), Lao Handicraft Association 
(LHA), Lao Women's Business Association (LWBA), Lao Young Entrepreneurs Association (YEAL) and 
others.

Our Bank has a strong intention to contribute to the development of small and medium enterprises 
in Lao PDR, such as attending conferences, seminars and trade fairs with the participation of various 
business units such as: ODOP Trade Fair, an exhibition of Lao handicrafts and woodwork, national 
handicrafts, and local trade fairs, including Lao food festivals.

 Within the year, the bad
-

ered in the year 8.7 billion Kip (recovered the total amount is 23.56 billion Kip), uncollected debts are 
58 billion Kip, the ratio of non-performing loans (NPL) is 4.40% increased by 0.45%.
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Risk management and regulatory improvement: The management structure has been 
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Bank in order to protect the interests of its stakeholders. 
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participate in the World Bank's Small and Medium-Sized. 

We have strengthened our cooperation with the Chamber of Commerce and other associations such 
as the National Chamber of Commerce and Industry (LNCCI), the Champassak Chamber of Com-
merce and Industry (CCCI), LuangPrabang Chamber of Commerce and Industry (LCCI), Small and 
Medium Business Association (LAOSME), Lao ICT Association (LICA), Lao Handicraft Association 
(LHA), Lao Women's Business Association (LWBA), Lao Young Entrepreneurs Association (YEAL) and 
others.
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ered in the year 8.7 billion Kip (recovered the total amount is 23.56 billion Kip), uncollected debts are 
58 billion Kip, the ratio of non-performing loans (NPL) is 4.40% increased by 0.45%.

MARUHAN Japan Bank Lao

IT system development: In addition to the development of mobile business systems, the bank 
has also developed the agency banking system (known as MJ Sabai) by opening an account through 
a tablet, and within a year the core banking system was updated from version 11.1 to 14.5, which will 
be available in the �rst quarter of 2022.

Risk management and regulatory improvement: The management structure has been 
reviewed in order to ensure adequacy in addressing and mitigating the relevant risks faced by the 
Bank in order to protect the interests of its stakeholders. 

Human resource management: Training for sta� as planned, by the end of 2021, it has a total of 
163 employees, including foreign and local experts and technicians. There are 150 Lao and 10 
foreign employees. Female employees accounted for 39.26% of the total sta�.

Expansion of the network: Launched a variety of services such as cooperation with business 
partners, expand the network of agents through the Representative Bank (MJ Sabai), including 18 
outlets in Vientiane Capital and other provinces (Vientiane and Luang Prabang), with the expansion 
of 2 additional ATMs.

External cooperation: The Bank participates in �nancing programs for SME, such as the project 
to provide funding for small and medium-sized business units through the Department of Small and 
Medium Business Promotion (DOSMEP). The bank received a total of 51 billion Kip from the project 
to provide loans to customers in the priority areas of the government at an interest rate of 3% per 
annum. The aims are to promote the growth of small and medium enterprises. In addition, our bank 
participates in a government-funded program to address business units a�ected by COVID-19 
outbreak, and to borrow money from the People's Republic of China (CDB) which provides loans to 
business entities in accordance with government priorities. We have also expressed our intention to 
participate in the World Bank's Small and Medium-Sized. 

We have strengthened our cooperation with the Chamber of Commerce and other associations such 
as the National Chamber of Commerce and Industry (LNCCI), the Champassak Chamber of Com-
merce and Industry (CCCI), LuangPrabang Chamber of Commerce and Industry (LCCI), Small and 
Medium Business Association (LAOSME), Lao ICT Association (LICA), Lao Handicraft Association 
(LHA), Lao Women's Business Association (LWBA), Lao Young Entrepreneurs Association (YEAL) and 
others.

Our Bank has a strong intention to contribute to the development of small and medium enterprises 
in Lao PDR, such as attending conferences, seminars and trade fairs with the participation of various 
business units such as: ODOP Trade Fair, an exhibition of Lao handicrafts and woodwork, national 
handicrafts, and local trade fairs, including Lao food festivals.

Collection of bad debts and non-pe�orming loans (NPL): Within the year, the bad
debts were written o� 7.48 billion Kip (total accumulated amount of 81.59 billion Kip), can be recov-
ered in the year 8.7 billion Kip (recovered the total amount is 23.56 billion Kip), uncollected debts are 
58 billion Kip, the ratio of non-performing loans (NPL) is 4.40% increased by 0.45%.
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MARUHAN Japan Bank Lao’s 3 years strategic transformation plan (2020-2022 or MJ22) spelt out 
clearly the vision to be the most trusted bank in Laos, the best in customer experience, and the 
best-in-class digital-led capabilities. With this vision, MJBL is building its customer base as well as 
pro�table business with a focus on growing SME segments while maintaining its retail businesses 
and deploying digital based strategy into full action.

Our strategic goal is to build a pro�table business in a sustainable way whereby we must balance 
risk and return. We aim to build multi-channel sales and service network using our existing digital 
capabilities to serve our customers. 

MJBL continues building resilient and sustainable foundation to support our business strategy and 
realigning key areas of business transformation which will enable us to be more focus and more 
result-oriented. The three key business areas will be established and implemented in FY22 with 
strong support from di�erent supporting functions within the bank. 

1.  Corporate Banking;
2.  Retail & SME Banking; and
3.  Agency Banking

MJBL is well recognized by the local authorities particularly the Bank of Lao PDR (BOL) and the Min-
istry of Industry and Commerce (MoIC) in collaboration to establish SME’s �nancial program, of 
which SME businesses constituted more than 90% of Laos economy. MJBL continues to be one of 
the panel banks for government funding to support SMEs and the funding from the World Bank, 
Access to Finance Emergency Support and Recovery Project (MSME A2F-ESR) to support MSME in 
the country.

MJBL sees MSME as a very important sector in the economy of Laos and realizes that it’s essential to 
guide and mentor some small businesses for their continued growth and transformation especially 
during and post COVID-19 pandemic outbreak. MJBL together with Katalyst Partners will continue 
its mentoring program (BizGROW) as part of our contribution to uplift the standard of MSME to be 
successfully and overcome the di�cult challenges.

MJBL strongly believe in building business partnership as part of the banking eco-system from 
di�erent industries background to leverage and capture the immense potential of cross sell capabil-
ities. MJBL will continue working closely with business groups, associations, chambers of commerce 
as well as Department of SME Promotion (DOSMEP) in supporting MSME in Laos.

In addition, in line with our MJ Sabai expansion, the bank will establish sales outreach (sales hub) to 
expand our network in the provinces throughout the country which will allow MSMEs access to 
�nance and banking services conveniently.

Strategy – FY2022
BUSINESS STRATEGY AND GROWTH

SME Suppo�
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To deliver �rst class customer experience, MJBL is focusing on digitization of key processes, for 
instance, account opening, enabling fund transfer and instant loans approval as will strategically 
position ourselves as the top preferred banking institution in Laos. Our vision is to deliver services 
digitally, enabling digital payment with ease via di�erent types of payment solutions such as Mas-
terCard payment gateway, mobile application, e-wallet and QR payment.

Currently the bank has grown more than 3,000 merchants in 2021 and target to hit at least 10,000 
merchants in 2022 in line with our overall business strategy plan. Close collaboration with partners 
is critical success factor for connectivity for App to App and QR integration.

MJBL will continue to �nd ways to minimize the cost for customer in performing banking transac-
tion by deploying digital services such as online loan application, e-CASA & e-TD, enabling them to 
perform transaction instantly and at their convenience, anytime and anywhere.

In addition, the bank will continue improving and promoting the use of digital channel, for instance, 
all account opening must be done thru tablets across MJBL’s service channels including direct sales, 
Head O�ce, Branches and Banking Agents. This will free up time of our sta� to focus on high value 
interactions at any of our service touch points.

Branchless banking or agency banking is another core strategy for FY2020, with the ultimate goal of 
driving 90% of transactions through non-branch channels. Agency banking will overcome the 
limitation of accessibility and low coverage of bank branches, especially in Laos. Cities and villages 
require a calibrated distribution strategy, for instance, population is dominated in Vientiane capital 
with over 760,000, which is estimated 40% of the total population in Laos. Conversely, the country 
is built with 1,469 urban villages and 7,038 rural villages across the country, the population range 
between 2,000 to 10,000 in urban villages, whereas 100 to 2,000 for rural villages. Henceforth, 
agency banking will extend the bank capabilities and reach out to over 1,500 location across Laos, 
enabling the bank to perform business using agent as our representative.

The proposition of agency banking is riding on the digital branch concept, using the existing digital 
platform for system integration, which was fully tested and successfully rolled out lately. In short, 
agency banking may conduct business transactions in paperless condition by using tablet or 
laptop, which is much more cost e�ective in term of operationalize the service. 

Two key important points for approaching agency banking is to minimize operational cost as com-
pare to run a physical bank outlet and scale up our reach to remote location where most of the 
customers reside, meeting our key objective for MJ22 on the target growth of customer base.

Digital Strategy

Agency Banking
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

MJBL’s Governance Structure

Rights & Duties of the Board and Executive Management

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE AND RISK MANAGEMENT

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Chief Executive Officer

Board Commi�ees:
Governance Commi�ee

Risk Management Commi�ee
Audit Commi�ee

CONTROL

Local Cresdit Commi�ee
(LCC)

Asset & Liability
Management Commi�ee

(ALMC)

Enterprise Risk
Management Function Compliance Internal Audit

Chief Risk Officer
(”CRO”)

Head, Compliance Head, Internal Audit

The business and a�airs of the Bank are managed under the direction and oversight of the Board of 
Directors, which has the responsibility to report and provide information on the operations of the 
Bank to the shareholders, to be responsible for damage/ irregularity caused to the Bank, to recom-
mend the division of pro�ts into funds and to allocate the dividends, to propose business plans and 
to appoint the Governance Committee, Audit Committee and Risk Management Committee to the 
Board of Directors, amongst other rights and duties. 

The Board, through the Governance Committee, Audit Committee and Risk Management Commit-
tee, provides e�ective oversight of the Management’s performance, risk assessment and controls 
over business operations, and compliance with regulatory requirements. 

The CEO and Deputy CEO (Executive Management) are responsible for day-to-day operations of the 
commercial Bank in accordance with the rights and duties de�ned in internal regulations of the 
commercial Bank. Appointment and removal of both roles is by the Board of Directors, for a term of 
three (3) consecutive years, and may be re-appointed but not exceed 3 consecutive times. The CEO 
and Deputy CEO can be a member of the Board of Directors, but shall not be the chairperson or a 
deputy chairperson of the Board of Directors. Appointments of the CEO and Deputy CEO must 
obtain prior approval from BOL.

The rights and duties of the Board of Directors and CEO/ Deputy CEO are set out in the Articles of 
Association of Maruhan Japan Bank Lao Co., Ltd. which is premised upon the Law on Commercial 
Banks (Amended, No. 56/NA, Vientiane) dated 7 December 2018. 
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Board of Directors

The Board of Directors is comprised of �ve (5) to seven (7) members: Chairman, Deputy Chairman 
and members of the board of whom the Shareholders agree in principle at a meeting. The term of 
director shall be expired in every consecutive three (3) years and is eligible for re-election but not 
exceed 3 consecutive times or in accordance with the law.

The Members of the Board are persons of high caliber and integrity with a sound understanding of 
the Bank’s business. They possess the skills, knowledge, experience and competencies to address 
key risks and major issues relating to the Bank’s business, its policies and strategies. The Directors 
more than adequately ful�ll the quali�cations required by the Bank of Lao. The pro�le of the Board 
of Directors may be found on page 3 of this annual report.

Commi�ee of Board of Directors

Governance Commi�ee

The Committee of the Board of Directors include a Governance Committee, an Audit Committee 
and a Risk Management Committee. If deemed necessary, other committees can be established 
based on the approval of the Board of Directors. 

Each committee has at least three members of the Board of Directors, where one person acts as the 
chairperson. If there is an independent director in such committee, he shall be the Chairperson of 
the Committee. A Board member may be a member of several committees, but shall be the chair-
person of only one committee.

The Committees of Board of Directors shall conduct the meeting at least once every two months or 
at the request of the Chairman or the President of the Board of Directors if necessary.

The Governance Committee’s rights and duties are to de�ne and create policies to manage human 
resource within  the Bank including the selection and recommendation to the Board of the appoint-
ment of Senior Executives in accordance with established criteria, wages and bene�ts, and the 
Bank’s Code of Ethics.  The Governance Committee may also propose and recommend disciplinary 
action and removal of Senior Executives and sta� to the Board of Directors.  MJBL will take measures 
with management personnel and employees who cause damage to reputation and work imple-
mentation to the Bank according to Laos Labor Law and relevant laws of Laos PDR.

Risk Management Commi�ee 

The Risk Management Committee consists of at least three directors. It is tasked to establish policies 
and procedures for risk management (identifying, monitoring and managing credit, market, coun-
try, operational and other risks) and proposals to the Board of Directors for approval. The Risk Man-
agement Committee shall de�ne and select individuals to handle the risk function of the Bank. 

It issues instructions and reviews of policy and follows up on their implementation, reporting these 
to the Board. It may deliver opinions on any matters submitted to it by the Board of Directors or that 
it wishes to address, summarize and evaluate its annual performance, report the implementation to 
the Board of Directors.  The Risk Management Committee may also exercise such other rights and 
perform such other duties as assigned by the Board of Directors and the Shareholders’ meeting.
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Audit Commi�ee

The Audit Committee consists of at least three Directors.  It is responsible to deliver opinions regard-
ing the audit �eld, opinions on issues raised by the Board of Directors and administrators, establish-
ing appropriate accounting procedures and accounting controls for the Bank in accordance with 
regulations issued by the BOL, policy matters and implementation and monitoring the compliance 
of business plans with internal rules and the law. It is tasked to keep the Board of Directors 
adequately informed of pertinent matters via regular reporting of its activities.

To ensure e�ective management and independence of the Internal Audit function, the Audit Com-
mittee is empowered to select individuals to handle the Internal Audit function and engaging exter-
nal auditors and determining the scope of audits. It is responsible for assessing the quality of service 
of the external audit company as well as the auditor’s independence in relation to all relationships 
between the independent external auditor and the commercial bank, and may recommend termi-
nation of  the contract of the external auditors’ subject to the approval of the Board of Directors. The 
Audit Committee may obtain advice and assistance from outside legal, accounting and other advi-
sors as it deems necessary.

The Audit Committee discusses the annual audited �nancial statements and quarterly �nancial 
statements with relevant management and the independent external auditor and monitors e�orts 
to correct de�ciencies described in an audit examination.

Internal Audit Function

The Internal Audit function is established by the Board to undertake continuous testing and assess-
ment on the e�ectiveness and e�ciency of the risk management and internal control system in 
order to provide reasonable assurance that such system continues to operate e�ciently and e�ec-
tively. 

The Internal Audit function is placed under direct authority and supervision of the Audit Committee 
of the Board to preserve its independence. The sta� report functionally to the Audit Committee and 
administratively to the Chief Executive O�cer (CEO).

The Bank’s Internal Audit Division is responsible to audit and evaluate risk level in each aspect, 
guided by its rights and duties in the Articles of Association of Maruhan Japan Bank Lao Co., Ltd.  As 
such, it is given access to inspect �nancial/capital administration, implementation of rule or law and 
regulation stated by the BOL, cash inventory and any other assets, revenue-expenses, customers’ 
account, documents, electronic information and equipment.  It may check on correction of transac-
tions recorded and change in assets, �nancial reporting compliance with accounting method. 

Internal Audit Division is responsible to establish periodic inspection plans and to provide reports of 
their evaluation and �ndings as well as to recommend targets for resolution of any issues found.  It 
may request information and any other evidence from inspected parties to be used for analysis and 
resolution, to take documents and other materials which are considered to be related to the viola-
tion of the law and to inspect and prevent corruption involving the Bank's sta�.  

The Internal Audit Division is kept abreast of the Bank’s business and budgetary expenses and is a 
participant in the Bank’s yearly budget plans.
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Risk Management Function

The Risk Management function is primarily responsible to design, implement and maintain an e�ec-
tive and consistent risk management framework. The framework includes the governance structure, 
policies, processes, systems and tools necessary to identify, monitor and manage credit, market, 
operational and other risks in accordance with the regulations issued by the BOL. It shall monitor 
their  implementation and report to the Risk Management Committee and to the Board of Directors 
thereon. 

The Risk Management function is placed under direct authority and supervision of the Risk Manage-
ment Committee of the Board to preserve its independence. The Risk Management function reports 
to the Chief Risk O�cer who reports functionally to the Risk Management Committee and adminis-
tratively to the Chief Executive O�cer (CEO).

The CRO ensures that all risk information is reported to the Board and Executive Management in a 
timely, relevant and focused manner in order that their attention is concentrated on important 
developments and which supports informed and sound decision making.  

The �nancial year 2021 has seen MJBL take a momentous step forward in improving its governance 
and internal controls and enhancing enterprise-wide Risk Management function by enhancing the 
risk strategies, frameworks and policies, with independent assessments and monitoring of all 
relevant risks.

The industry landscape is marked by increasingly sophisticated and more complex regulatory 
requirements, credit methodology as well as technological advancements changing the nature of 
banking operations. In response, key initiatives to strengthen our risk resilience and to support the 
Bank’s objectives were set for 2021, going into 2022, as illustrated below:

RISK MANAGEMENT
Risk Management Overview

Key Focus Areas for 2021

 
Key Initiative 

 

 
Requirement 

 
Objective 

 
Key Developments  

 

 
 

 
 

• Guided by the BOL 
Master Plan and 
Implementation Plan 
for Bank 
Supervision 
Development 
toward Basel 
Standards from 
2017-2025. 

2022-2025 
• Implement simplified 

SA for credit risk, 
market risk and 
operational risk 

• Full ICAAP: ICAAP 
framework + Risk 
appetite + Material 
risk assessment + 
Stress test + Capital 
planning 

• Disclosure 
according to Pillar 1, 
2&3 (Quantitative 
and Qualitative) 

• Design framework 
to implement SA 

• Revise Corporate 
Governance, 
enhance Board and 
Management 
responsibility 

• Thorough review of 
the various credit 
policies, manuals 
and guidelines.  

• Establish credit risk 
governance policy. 

• Strengthen credit 
policies 

• Drafting credit risk 
governance, credit 
policies, and 
procedures, 

Basel II 
Implementation
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Credit Policy 
Framework 

Review

 

 
 

 
 

• Guided by the BOL 
Master Plan and 
Implementation Plan 
for Bank 
Supervision 
Development 
toward Basel 
Standards from 
2017-2025. 

2022-2025 
• Implement simplified 

SA for credit risk, 
market risk and 
operational risk 

• Full ICAAP: ICAAP 
framework + Risk 
appetite + Material 
risk assessment + 
Stress test + Capital 
planning 

• Disclosure 
according to Pillar 1, 
2&3 (Quantitative 
and Qualitative) 

• Design framework 
to implement SA 

• Revise Corporate 
Governance, 
enhance Board and 
Management 
responsibility 

 

 

• Thorough review of 
the various credit 
policies, manuals 
and guidelines.  

• Revamp credit 
assessment criteria 
and tools. 

• Establish credit risk 
governance policy. 

• Strengthen credit 
policies 

• Establish credit 
underwriting 
procedures  

• Drafting credit risk 
governance, credit 
policies, and 
procedures, 
scheduled to be 
completed in 2022. 

 

 
 

• Improve the data 
set, accuracy and 
usability of credit 
data and analytics. 

• Increase automation 
in report preparation 
to reduce manual 
processes and 
human error. 

 

• Build new data 
reports and system 
fields to capture 
data for more 
granular analysis, 
Basel II 
requirements and 
certain future 
requirements. 

• Data accuracy 
validation and 
clean-up. 

• A new unified data 
set was built 
enabling simpler, 
more accurate and 
granular reporting 
and analytics.  This 
is being 
continuously 
improved to add 
further capabilities 
and accuracy. 

 

 

 

• Development of risk 
professionals who 
are forward-looking 
and agile. 

• Strengthen 
knowledge and 
awareness via 
internal upskilling 
and/ or external 
hires. 

• Comprehensive 
credit, risk and 
analytical skillsets 
are essential for the 
Bank’s future needs.  

• Develop a strong 
talent pool, 
equipped with 
future-ready, 
technical and 
leadership 
capabilities. 

• Development of 
Credit professionals 
for Assessment-
Retail & Non-Retail, 
Credit Admin and 
Credit Control 
functions. 

• In-house credit 
training rolled-out. 

 

Data & 
Analytics

Training & 
Upskilling

Basel II 
Implementation
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• Thorough review of 
the various credit 
policies, manuals 
and guidelines.  
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assessment criteria 
and tools. 

• Establish credit risk 
governance policy. 

• Strengthen credit 
policies 

• Establish credit 
underwriting 
procedures  

• Drafting credit risk 
governance, credit 
policies, and 
procedures, 
scheduled to be 
completed in 2022. 

 

 
 

• Improve the data 
set, accuracy and 
usability of credit 
data and analytics. 

• Increase automation 
in report preparation 
to reduce manual 
processes and 
human error. 

 

• Build new data 
reports and system 
fields to capture 
data for more 
granular analysis, 
Basel II 
requirements and 
certain future 
requirements. 

• Data accuracy 
validation and 
clean-up. 

• A new unified data 
set was built 
enabling simpler, 
more accurate and 
granular reporting 
and analytics.  This 
is being 
continuously 
improved to add 
further capabilities 
and accuracy. 

 

 

 

• Development of risk 
professionals who 
are forward-looking 
and agile. 

• Strengthen 
knowledge and 
awareness via 
internal upskilling 
and/ or external 
hires. 

• Comprehensive 
credit, risk and 
analytical skillsets 
are essential for the 
Bank’s future needs.  

• Develop a strong 
talent pool, 
equipped with 
future-ready, 
technical and 
leadership 
capabilities. 

• Development of 
Credit professionals 
for Assessment-
Retail & Non-Retail, 
Credit Admin and 
Credit Control 
functions. 

• In-house credit 
training rolled-out. 

 

Data & 
Analytics

Training & 
Upskilling

Basel II 
Implementation
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THE BANK

MARUHAN Japan Bank Lao Co., Ltd (“the Bank”) is a 100% foreign invested commercial bank which was incorporated

in Lao People’s Democratic Republic (“Lao PDR”). The Bank operates as pa� of MARUHAN Japan Group

(“the Group”), which is affiliated to MARUHAN Corporation in Japan.

The Bank operates under Banking Business License No. 05/BOL granted by Bank of the Lao PDR (“the BOL”) on 11 

February 2013.

The initial cha�er capital of the Bank is LAK 300,000,000,000. As at 31 December 2021, the actual paid-up capital is

LAK 431,535,000,000 (31 December 2020: LAK 431,535,000,000).

The principal activities of the Bank are to provide comprehensive banking and related financial services in Lao PDR.

The Bank is located at Unit 14, 23 Singha Road, Ban Phonxay, Sayse�ha District, Vientiane Capital, Lao PDR.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Name

Members of the Board of Directors during the year ended 31 December 2021 and as at the date of these financial 

statements are as follows:

MANAGEMENT

Members of the Management during the year ended 31 December 2021 and as at the date of these financial statements

are as follows:

Dr. HAN, Chang-woo Chairman Reappointed on 08 January 2019

Mr. HAN, Ken Member Reappointed on 08 January 2019
Mr. HAN, Yu Member Reappointed on 08 January 2019
Mr. KIM, Vada Member Reappointed on 11 January 2019

Mr. IWASA, Tomoyuki Member Appointed on 01 April 2021

Mr. ANDO, Hidenori Member Appointed on 01 April 2021

Resigned on 28 October 2021

Mr. MASARU, Suzuki Member Appointed on 27 April 2020

Resigned on 24 March 2021

Position Date of appointment/resignation

Name

Mr. Anthony CHIN Chief Executive Officer Appointed on 16 July 2019

Mr. Yoshikoshi HAYATO Deputy Chief Executive Officer Appointed on 01 July 2019

Ms. Monekham

XAYBOUNHEUANG

Chief Risk Officer

Head of Compliance 

Appointed on 22 March 2021

Appointed from 01 October 2020

to 21 March 2021

Mr. Sujit Guha THAKURTA Chief Risk Officer Appointed on 18 October 2019

Resigned on 24 March 2021

Mr. Soneouthai SOUKHALIVONG Chief Financial Officer Appointed on 01 December 2021

Mr. Boun XAIYARATH Head of Distribution Appointed on 03 April 2020

Mr. Worasit SANGKUL Head of HR &Admin Appointed on 20 August 2012

Mr. Sombat DOUANGSOTSY Head of Credit Appointed on 01 July 2020
Ms. Vilayvanh

LUANGMOUNNINTHONE

Head of Compliance Appointed on 22 March 2021

Ms. Esme LAW Chief Financial Officer Appointed on 07 August 2020

Resigned on 05 December 2021

Position Date of appointment/resignation
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MANAGEMENT (continued)

Members of the Management during the year ended 31 December 2021 and as at the date of these financial statements

are as follows:

LEGAL REPRESENTATIVE

The legal representative of the Bank during the year and at the date of this repo� is Mr. Anthony CHIN, Chief Executive

Officer.

AUDITOR

The auditor of the Bank is Ernst & Young Lao Co., Ltd.

Name

Ms. Soumaly SIVIENGSAY Head of Internal Audit Appointed on 01 August 2014
Mr. JOHN, Jacob Head of IT & Operations Appointed on 07 April 2014

Mr. Horace Arputhaselan Head of Customer Value 

Management

Appointed on 16 August 2021

Mr. Vijayakumar SUBRAMANIAM,

Ryan

Head of Business Process Re-

engineering

Appointed on 02 January 2020

Resigned on 26 September 2021

Mr. Lee Chee Seong, Richard Head of Customer Value

Management

Appointed on 02 September 2019

Resigned on 27 May 2021

Position Date of appointment/resignation
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Management of MARUHAN Japan Bank Lao Co., Ltd (“the Bank”) is pleased to present its repo� and the Bank’s financial

statements for the year ended 31 December 2021.

Management confirmed that it has complied with the above requirements in preparing the accompanying financial 

statements.

Management is responsible for ensuring that proper accounting records are kept which disclose, with reasonable 

accuracy at any time, the financial position of the Bank and to ensure that the accounting records comply with the 

applied accounting system. It is also responsible for safeguarding the assets of the Bank and hence for taking reasonable 

steps for the prevention and detection of fraud and other irregularities.

MANAGEMENT’S RESPONSIBILITY IN RESPECT OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Bank’s Management is responsible for the financial statements of each financial year in accordance with the Accounting

Law of the Lao PDR and the regulations stipulated by Bank of the Lao PDR relevant to preparation and presentation of 

financial statements. In preparing those financial statements, management is required to:

STATEMENT BY MANAGEMENT

Management does hereby state that, in its opinion, the accompanying financial statements are prepared, in all material 

respects, in accordance with the Accounting Law of Lao PDR and the regulations stipulated by Bank of the Lao PDR 

relevant to preparation and presentation of financial statements.

For and on behalf of Management:

select suitable accounting policies and then apply them consistently;

make judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent;

state whether applicable accounting standards have been followed, subject to any material depa�ures 

disclosed and explained in the financial statements; and

prepare the financial statements on the going concern basis unless it is inappropriate to presume that

the Bank will continue its business.

Mr. Anthony CHIN

Chief Executive Officer

Vientiane, Lao PDR

31 March 2022
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We have audited the financial statements of MARUHAN Japan Bank Lao Co., Ltd (“the Bank”), which comprise the

statement of financial position as at 31 December 2021, the income statement, statement of changes in equity 

and statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the financial statements, including a summary

of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the accompanying financial statements of the Bank are prepared, in all material respects, in accordance

with the Accounting Law of Lao PDR and the regulations stipulated by Bank of the Lao PDR relevant to preparation

and presentation of financial statements.

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (ISA). Our responsibilities under those

standards are fu�her described in the Auditors’ Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our

repo�. We are independent of the Bank in accordance with the International Ethics Standards Board for Accountants’

Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (IESBA Code) and the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit

of the financial statements in Lao PDR, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these

requirements and the IESBA Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate

to provide a basis for our opinion.

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

Opinion

Basis for Opinion

We draw a�ention to Note 2 to the financial statements, which describes the basis of accounting adopted by the Bank.

These accounting policies are not intended to present the financial position, the results of operations and cash flows of

the Bank in accordance with international generally accepted accounting principles.

Our opinion is not modified in respect of this ma�er.

Emphasis of Ma�er – Basis of Accounting

The Bank’s management is responsible for the preparation of the financial statements in accordance with the Accounting

Law of Lao PDR and with the regulations stipulated by Bank of the Lao PDR relevant to preparation and presentation

of financial statements, and for such internal control as management determines is necessary to enable the preparation

of the financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Bank’s ability to continue as a going

concern, disclosing, as applicable, ma�ers related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting

unless management either intends to liquidate the Bank or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Responsibilities of the Bank’s Management for the Financial Statements

Reference: 61078449/22897443-LAS
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Auditors’ Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from

material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s repo� that includes our opinion. 

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with

ISA will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are

considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic

decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

As pa� of an audit in accordance with ISA, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism

throughout the audit. We also:

We communicate with management regarding, among other ma�ers, the planned scope and timing of the audit 

and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

Ernst & Young Lao Co., Ltd.

Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error,

design and pe�orm audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and 

appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from

fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, 

misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are 

appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the 

Bank’s internal control.

Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based 

on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material unce�ainty exists related to events or conditions that may

cast significant doubt on the Bank’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material 

unce�ainty exists, we are required to draw a�ention in our auditor’s repo� to the related disclosures in the 

financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on

the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s repo�. However, future events or conditions may 

cause the Bank to cease to continue as a going concern.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates 

and related disclosures made by management.

Nga Phuong Nguyen  

Pa�ner

Audit Practising Registration 

Ce�ificate No. 013/LCPAA-APT-2019

Vientiane, Lao PDR

31 March 2022 
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INCOME STATEMENT
for the year ended 31 December 2021

MARUHAN Japan Bank Lao

Code ITEMS Notes 
2021                            

LAK’000 
2020                            

LAK’000 

     
A. OPERATING INCOME AND 

EXPENSES 
 

  
     

1. Interest and similar income 3 72,692,565 57,729,434 
     

2. Interest and similar expense 3 (35,270,892) (22,364,757) 
     
I. NET INTEREST AND SIMILAR 

INCOME 3 37,421,673 35,364,677 
     
3 Fee and commission income 4 5,968,756 4,049,320 
     
4 Fee and commission expense 4 (3,022,366) (1,141,210) 
     
5 Net loss from dealing in foreign 

currencies  5 (13,350,698) (2,358,146) 
       
6 Net loss from financial instrument 

trading   - - 
     

II. NET OPERATING INCOME  27,017,365 35,914,641 
     

B OTHER INCOME AND EXPENSES    
     
7 Other operating income 6 9,853,722 15,829,635 
     
8 Administration expenses  (46,353,440) (39,527,396) 

8.1 Payroll and other staff costs 7 (31,229,061) (27,275,406) 
8.2 Other administration expenses 8 (15,124,379) (12,251,990) 

     
9 Depreciation and amortization 

charges 14 (8,106,865) (4,972,965) 
     

10 Other operating expenses 9 (2,232,974) (1,038,742) 
     

11 Net provision for non-performing 
loans 13.2 (16,650,899) (11,382,574) 
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INCOME STATEMENT (continued)
for the year ended 31 December 2021

MARUHAN Japan Bank Lao

Mr. Soneouthai SOUKHALIVONG  

Chief Financial Officer

Vientiane, Lao PDR

31 March 2022 

Code ITEMS Notes 
2021                             

LAK’000 
2020                             

LAK’000 

     
III. TOTAL LOSS BEFORE TAX  (36,473,091) (5,177,401) 
     

12 Current profit tax 18.2 - - 
     

IV. LOSS AFTER TAX  (36,473,091) (5,177,401) 
     

 

Prepared by:

Mr. Anthony CHIN

Chief Executive Officer

Approved by:
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STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
as at 31 December 2021

MARUHAN Japan Bank Lao

Code ASSETS Notes 
31/12/2021                                  

LAK’000  
31/12/2020                                  

LAK’000  

     
I Cash and accounts with Bank of the 

Lao PDR (“the BOL”)  164,515,405 168,803,407  
 1. Cash on hand 10 22,939,517 19,011,512  
 2. Balances with the BOL 11 141,575,888 149,791,895  
     
II Due from banks  377,556,484 305,756,365 
 1. Demand deposits 12.1 40,796,284 11,529,965 
 2. Term deposits 12.2 336,760,200 294,226,400 
     

III Loans to customers, net of specific 
provision  13 716,013,049 514,315,490 

     
IV Fixed assets and right-of-use assets  30,026,635 22,165,310  
 1. Assets under purchase 14.1 9,341,258 4,091,502  
 2. Tangible fixed assets and Right-of-

use assets 14.2 12,067,683 11,198,273 
 3. Intangible fixed assets 14.3 8,617,694  6,875,535  
     

V Other assets  20,407,160 16,671,413 
 1. Accrued interest receivables 15.1  12,395,912  10,033,912 
 2. Others 15.2 8,011,248 6,637,501 
     

 TOTAL ASSETS  1,308,518,733 1,027,711,985 
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STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION (continued)
as at 31 December 2021

MARUHAN Japan Bank Lao

Code LIABILITIES AND CAPITAL Notes 
31/12/2021                                  

LAK’000  
31/12/2020                                  

LAK’000  

     
I Due to banks and financial institutions  661,718,687 492,417,437 
 1. Demand deposits 16.1 4,558,687 1,769,437 
 2. Term deposits 16.2 349,800,000 277,478,000 
 3. Borrowings from banks and others 16.3 307,360,000 213,170,000 
     
II Due to customers 17 373,321,437 231,526,225 
 1. Demand deposits  20,802,233 11,450,932 
 2. Saving deposits  132,314,174 106,293,876 
 3. Term deposits  220,205,030 113,781,417 
     

III Other liabilities  25,340,483 20,004,285 
 1. Accrued interests payable  12,712,862  8,258,420 
 2. Taxes payable 18.1 72,304  436,758 
 3. Other payables 19 12,555,317 11,309,107 
     
 TOTAL LIABILITIES  1,060,380,607 743,947,947 
     

IV Capital and reserves    
 1. Paid-up capital 20 431,535,000 431,535,000 
 2. General provision for credit activities 13.2 3,170,446 2,323,267 
 3. Accumulated losses  (186,567,320) (150,094,229) 
     
 TOTAL CAPITAL  248,138,126 283,764,038 
     

 TOTAL LIABILITIES AND CAPITAL  1,308,518,733 1,027,711,985 
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STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION (continued)
as at 31 December 2021

MARUHAN Japan Bank Lao

Mr. Soneouthai SOUKHALIVONG  

Chief Financial Officer

Vientiane, Lao PDR

31 March 2022 

Prepared by:

Mr. Anthony CHIN

Chief Executive Officer

Approved by:

Code 
OFF STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL 
POSITION ITEMS Notes 

31/12/2021                                  
LAK’000  

31/12/2020                                  
LAK’000  

      
I Collaterals and Mortgages    
     

A Collaterals and Mortgages for loans    
1 Collaterals and Mortgages for loans to 

customers  2,107,196,855 1,352,547,757 
     

 TOTAL COLLATERALS AND 
MORTGAGES  2,107,196,855 1,352,547,757 

     
II Commitment given    
     

A Commitments for guarantees given    
1 Commitment for guarantees given to 

customers  508,742 - 
     

 TOTAL COMMITMENTS GIVEN  508,742  - 
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STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
for the year ended 31 December 2021

MARUHAN Japan Bank Lao

Mr. Soneouthai SOUKHALIVONG  

Chief Financial Officer

Vientiane, Lao PDR

31 March 2022 

Prepared by:

Mr. Anthony CHIN

Chief Executive Officer

Approved by:

 
Paid-up 

capital 

General 
provision for 

credit 
activities  

Accumulated 
losses Total 

ITEMS LAK’000 LAK’000 LAK’000 LAK’000 

Balance as at 1 January 2021 431,535,000 2,323,267 (150,094,229) 283,764,038 
Net loss for the year - - (36,473,091) (36,473,091) 
Net general provision for credit 
activities during the year (Note 
13.2) - 847,179 - 847,179 

Balance as at 31 December 
2021 431,535,000  3,170,446  (186,567,320) 248,138,126  
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STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
for the year ended 31 December 2021

MARUHAN Japan Bank Lao

ITEMS Notes 
2021                             

LAK’000 
2020                             

LAK’000 
    
Net loss before tax  (36,473,091) (5,177,401) 
Adjustments for:    
Depreciation and amortization charges 14 8,106,865 4,972,965 
Provision for credit activities 13.2 18,422,646 12,122,553 
Interest income  (72,692,565) (57,729,434) 
Interest expense  35,270,892  22,364,757 

    
Cash flows used in operation before 
changing in operating assets and liabilities  (47,365,253) (23,446,557)  

    
(Increase)/Decrease in operating assets    

 Due from banks  (11,050,860) (147,105,704) 
 Loans to customers  (219,273,028) (82,812,814) 
 Other assets  (6,623,500) (5,117,133) 
Increase/(Decrease) in operating liabilities    

Due to banks  169,301,250 149,757,391 
 Due to customers  141,795,211 35,052,608 
 Other liabilities  881,758 (22,466) 
Interest received  70,330,563 52,458,424  
Interest paid  (30,816,450) (21,114,717) 

    
Net cash flows from/(used in) operating 
activities  67,179,691 (42,350,971) 
    
INVESTING ACTIVITIES    
Payments to acquire property and equipment 
and intangible fixed assets  (10,718,435) (12,518,410) 
Net cash flows used in investing activities  (10,718,435) (12,518,410) 

    
FINANCING ACTIVITIES    
Capital contribution   - 46,475,000 
Net cash flows from financing activities  - 46,475,000 
Net change in cash and cash equivalents  56,461,256 (8,394,381) 
    

Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning 
of the year  122,549,466 130,943,847 
    
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the 
year 21 179,010,722 122,549,466 
    

 

Mr. Soneouthai SOUKHALIVONG  

Chief Financial Officer

Vientiane, Lao PDR

31 March 2022 

Prepared by:

Mr. Anthony CHIN

Chief Executive Officer

Approved by:
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
as at and for the year ended 31 December 2021

MARUHAN Japan Bank Lao

1. CORPORATE INFORMATION

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Establishment and operations

2.1 Statement of compliance 

Paid-up capital

MARUHAN Japan Bank Lao Co., Ltd (“the Bank”) is a 100% foreign invested commercial bank which was incorporated

in Lao People’s Democratic Republic (“Lao PDR”). The Bank operates as pa� of MARUHAN Japan Group (“the Group”),

which is affiliated to MARUHAN Corporation in Japan.

Management of the Bank states that the accompanying financial statements have been prepared in compliance with

 the Accounting Law of Lao PDR and the regulations stipulated by Bank of the Lao PDR relevant to preparation and 

presentation of financial statements.

2.2 Basis of preparation

The Bank maintained its accounting records in Lao Kip (“LAK”) and prepared its financial statement in thousands of 

Lao Kip (“LAK’000”) in accordance with Decree No. 02/PR by the Prime Minister of Lao PDR dated 22 March 2000 and

the Accounting Law of Lao PDR and the regulations stipulated by Bank of the Lao PDR relevant to preparation and 

presentation of financial statements (“LAS”).

The accompanying financial statements have been prepared using accounting principles, procedures and repo�ing

practices generally accepted in Lao PDR. Accordingly, the income statement, the statement of financial position, the

statement of changes in equity, the statement of cash flow and the notes thereto are not designed for those who 

are not informed about Lao PDR’s accounting principles, procedures and practices and fu�hermore are not intended

to present the financial position of the Bank and its results of operations and cash flows in accordance with accounting

principles and practices generally accepted in countries other than Lao PDR.

The Bank’s fiscal year sta�s on 1 January and ends on 31 December.

The Bank operates under Banking Business License No. 05/BOL granted by Bank of the Lao PDR (“the BOL”) 

on 11 February 2013.

The initial cha�er capital of the Bank is LAK 300,000,000,000. As at 31 December 2021, the actual paid-up capital is 

LAK 431,535,000,000 (31 December 2020: LAK 431,535,000,000).

Location
The Bank is located at Unit 14, 23 Singha Road, Ban Phonxay, Sayse�ha District, Vientiane Capital, Lao PDR.

Employees
As at 31 December 2021, the Bank has a total of 163 employees (31 December 2020: 159 employees).

Fiscal year
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
as at and for the year ended 31 December 2021

MARUHAN Japan Bank Lao

The accounting policies adopted by the Bank in preparation of these financial statements are consistent with those used 

in preparation of the Bank’s financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2020, except for the changes in the

accounting policies and notes in relation to the following.

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
2.3 Changes in accounting policies

2.4 Recognition of interest income and expense

In 2021, in accordance with the Notification No. 213/BOL dated 24 March 2021 about the guidance on IAS 12 – Income tax

 relevant to commercial banks’ preparation and presentation of financial statements, the Bank applied the new accounting

policy of deferred tax in preparation and presentation of financial statements. Refer to Note 2.14 for the accounting policy

applicable from 1 January 2021.

Deferred tax is provided on temporary differences at the repo�ing date between the tax bases of assets and liabilities 

and their carrying amounts for financial repo�ing purposes. However according to the assessment as at 1 January 2021 

and 31 December 2021, there was no temporary difference between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying

 amounts for financial repo�ing purposes for recognition of neither deferred tax assets nor liabilities.

Interest income and expense are recognized in the income statement on an accrual basis using straight-line method 

and the interest rates stipulated in the lending/deposit contracts with customers.

2.5 Recognition of fee and commission

Fee and commission consist of fees received for fund transfer (including trade se�lement), fee arising for foreign

currency exchange transactions and fee arising from financial guarantees.

Fee and commissions are recognized in to income statement on cash basis.

2.6 Cash and cash equivalents

Fee and commission consist of fees received for fund transfer (including trade se�lement), fee arising for foreign

currency exchange transactions and fee arising from financial guarantees.

Fee and commissions are recognized in to income statement on cash basis.

The recognition of accrued interest income is suspended when the loans become non-pe�orming (See Note 2.8 for

the definition of non-pe�orming loans) or when management believes that the borrower has no ability to repay the

interest and principal. Interest income on such loans is only recorded in the income statement when actually received.

2.3.1 Profit tax
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
as at and for the year ended 31 December 2021

MARUHAN Japan Bank Lao

Loans to customers are recognized at cost and presented at outstanding balance less specific provision for credit activities.

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
2.7 Loans to customers

Loans to customers are recognized at cost and presented at outstanding balance less specific provision for credit activities.

In accordance with Regulation 512/BOL (“BOL512”) dated 29 June 2018 and Official Le�er No. 898/CBSD (“OL898”) 

dated 14 November 2018, the Bank has classified loans into 5 groups based on the payment arrears status and other 

qualitative factors. Loans classified as either Normal or Pass (Group A) or Watch or Special Mention (Group B) are 

considered as Pe�orming loans. Loans classified as either Substandard (Group C) or Doub�ul (Group D) or Loss (Group E)

are considered as Non-pe�orming loans (“NPL”).

The Bank also applies the Regulation 238/BOL dated 26 March 2020 and Guidance 249/BOL dated 11 May 2020 and

the extension Notice 254/CAD dated 5 May 2021 by the BOL on loan restructuring, extension and retention of loan 

classification group to assist the borrowers affected by COVID-19 pandemic. Accordingly, the Bank has restructured

the loans qualified and retained their classification groups as before 01 January 2020.

2.8 Classification of and provision for credit activities

Loan classification

In accordance with BOL512 and OL898, the Bank creates provision for loans based on their classification groups 

as follows:

(i) Provision amount is calculated by the following formulas: 

(ii) The balance of provision for pe�orming loans classified in group A is recorded in the statement

of Financial Position in “General provision for credit activities” under capital and reserves of the Bank.

(iii) Accumulated balance of provision for NPLs and pe�orming loans classified in group B is recorded

in the statement of Financial Position in “Loans to customers, net of specific provision for credit activities”

a. General provision = Provision rate x Loan outstanding balance

b. Specific provision = Provision rate x (Loan outstanding balance – discounted value of collateral)

The Bank has opted to not include the discounted value of collateral in the provision calculation

as allowed by BOL512 and BOL898.

Provision

Group 
Provision 
rate 

Provision 
type (i) 

Accounting for 
provision balance (ii) 

Accounting for changes 
in provision balance (iii) 

Performing loans 

A 0.5% General In equity 
Other operating income/ 
expense 

B 3% Specific Deducted to loan balance 
Other operating income/ 
expense 

NPLs 
C 20% Specific Deducted to loan balance  Net provision for NPL  
D 50% Specific Deducted to loan balance Net provision for NPL  
E 100% Specific Deducted to loan balance  Net provision for NPL  

99



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
as at and for the year ended 31 December 2021

MARUHAN Japan Bank Lao

(iv) Changes in provision for pe�orming loans are recorded to the income statement as “Other operating expenses”

for provision expense and “Other operating income” for reversal of provision expense. 

Changes in provision for NPLs are recorded to the income statement as “Net provision charges for non-pe�orming loans ”

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.8 Classification of and provision for credit activities (continued)

Fixed assets includes of tangible and intangible fixed assets. Tangible fixed assets consist of building and improvements,

office equipment, furniture and fixtures, computer equipment and motor vehicles. Intangible fixed assets include 

computer so�ware.

Fixed assets are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation, if any.

The cost of an asset comprises its purchase price plus any directly a�ributable costs of bringing the asset to working

condition for its intended use. 

Expenditures for additions, improvements and renewals are capitalized and expenditures for maintenance and repairs

are charged to the income statement.

When assets are sold or disposed, their cost and accumulated depreciation are removed from the statement of financial

position and any gains or losses resulting from their disposal are posted to the income statement.

2.9 Fixed assets

Depreciation of fixed assets are provided on the straight-line basis at prescribed rates over their estimated useful life in

accordance with the Tax Law No.67/NA dated 18 June 2019 which is effective on or a�er 1 January 2020 stipulated by the

President of the National Assembly. The following are the annual rates used:

2.10 Depreciation and amo�ization of fixed assets

Building & improvements  10%  
Office equipment 20%  
Furniture and fixtures  20%  
Computer equipment  20%  
Motor vehicles  20%  
Computer so�ware  20%  
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
as at and for the year ended 31 December 2021

MARUHAN Japan Bank Lao

2.12.1. Right-of-use assets

Under the requirement of the Law on Commercial Bank dated 7 December 2018, commercial banks are required to 

appropriate net profit to following reserves:

In accordance with A�icle 156, Enterprise Law dated 26 December 2013, the Bank is required to appropriate 10% of

profit a�er tax each year into regulatory reserve fund. When this reserve fund reaches 50% of the registered capital,

the Bank may suspend such provision, unless otherwise provided by the laws.

The Business expansion fund and other funds shall be created upon decision of the Board of Management.

Since the Bank has suffered losses, the Bank does not make appropriation to regulatory reserves fund for the year

ended 31 December 2021.

Regulatory reserve fund

Business expansion fund and other funds

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.11 Classification of and provision for credit activities (continued)

At inception of a contract, the Bank assesses whether a contract is, or contains, a lease arrangement based on whether

the contract that conveys to the user (the lessee) the right to control the use of an identified asset for a period of 

time in exchange for consideration. If a contract contains more than one lease component, or a combination of leasing

 and services transactions, the consideration is allocated to each of these lease and non-lease components on conclusion

 and on each subsequent re-measurement of the contract on the basis of their relative stand-alone selling prices. 

The Bank combines lease and non-lease components, in cases where spli�ing the non-lease component is not possible.

The Bank recognises right-of-use assets at the commencement date of the lease (i.e., the date the underlying asset is

available for use). Right-of-use assets are measured at cost, less any accumulated depreciation and impairment losses,

and adjusted for any re-measurement of lease liabilities. The cost of right-of-use assets includes the amount of lease 

liabilities adjusted for any lease payments made at or before the commencement date, plus any initial direct costs 

incurred and an estimate of costs to dismantle and remove the underlying asset or to restore the underlying asset or 

the site on which it is located, less any lease incentives received. The lease term includes periods covered by an option 

to extend if the Group is reasonably ce�ain to exercise that option. Unless the Bank is reasonably ce�ain to obtain 

ownership of the leased asset at the end of the lease term, the recognised right-of-use assets are depreciated on a 

straight-line basis over the sho�er of its estimated useful life and the lease term. Right-of-use assets are subject to 

impairment assessment.

2.12 Leases
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
as at and for the year ended 31 December 2021

MARUHAN Japan Bank Lao

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.12 Leases (continued)

2.12.2.  Lease liabilities

At the commencement date of the lease, the Bank recognises lease liabilities measured at the present value of lease

payments to be made over the lease term. The lease payments include fixed payments (including in-substance fixed

payments) less any lease incentives receivable, variable lease payments that depend on an index or a rate, and amounts

expected to be paid under residual value guarantees. The lease payments also include the exercise price of a purchase

option reasonably ce�ain to be exercised by the Bank and payments of penalties for terminating a lease, if the lease 

term reflects the Bank exercising the option to terminate. The variable lease payments that do not depend on an index

or a rate are recognised as expense in the period on which the event or condition that triggers the payment occurs.

2.12.3.  Sho�-term leases and leases of low-value assets

The Bank applies the sho�-term lease recognition exemption to its sho�-term leases that have a lease term of 12 months

or less from the commencement date and do not contain a purchase option. It also applies the lease of low-value assets

recognition exemption to leases of assets that are considered of low value. Lease payments on sho�-term leases and

leases of low-value assets are recognised as expense on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

2.12.4.  Significant judgement in determining the lease term of contracts with renewal options

The Bank determines the lease term as the non-cancellable term of the lease, together with any periods covered by an 

option to extend the lease if it is reasonably ce�ain to be exercised, or any periods covered by an option to terminate the 

lease, if it is reasonably ce�ain not to be exercised.

The Bank applies judgement in evaluating whether it is reasonably ce�ain to exercise the option to renew. That is, 

it considers all relevant factors that create an economic incentive for it to exercise the renewal. A�er the commencement

date, the Bank reassesses the lease term if there is a significant event or change in circumstances that is within its control

and affects its ability to exercise (or not to exercise) the option to renew (e.g., a change in business strategy). The Bank 

included the renewal period as pa� of the lease term for leases of premises and IT equipment due to the significance 

of these assets to its operations.

In calculating the present value of lease payments, the Bank uses the incremental borrowing rate at the lease 

commencement date if the interest rate implicit in the lease is not readily determinable. A�er the commencement 

date, the amount of lease liabilities is increased to reflect the accretion of interest and reduced for the lease payments

made. In addition, the carrying amount of lease liabilities is remeasured if there is a modification, a change in the lease

term, a change in the in-substance fixed lease payments or a change in the assessment to purchase the underlying asset.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
as at and for the year ended 31 December 2021

MARUHAN Japan Bank Lao

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.13 Foreign currency transactions

2.14 Taxation

Transactions in original currencies are initially recorded in the functional currency at the spot rate of exchange ruling

at the date of the transaction. Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies at year end are 

translated into LAK at exchange rates ruling on the statement of financial position date (see the list of exchange rates

of applicable foreign currencies against LAK on 31 December 2021 as presented below). All foreign exchange differences

are taken into “Net gain/(loss) from dealing in foreign currencies” in the income statement.

The Bank is obliged to pay profit tax at rate of 20% of total profit before tax for the year ended 31 December 2021 

in accordance with the Tax Law No. 67/NA dated 18 June 2019 which is effective on or a�er 1 January 2020. The Bank’s

tax returns are subject to examination by the tax authorities. Because the application of tax laws and regulations in 

many types of transactions is susceptible to varying interpretations, amounts repo�ed in the financial statements 

could be changed at a later date upon final determination by the tax authorities. 

Current tax

   31/12/2021   31/12/2020 
 LAK LAK 

United State Dollar (“USD”) 11,151.00 9,251.00 
Thai baht (“THB”) 346.50 329.90 
Japanese Yen (“JPY”) 96.33 88.20 
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
as at and for the year ended 31 December 2021

MARUHAN Japan Bank Lao

Deferred tax

Post-employment benefits

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.14 Profit tax (continued)

2.15 Employee benefits

Deferred tax is provided on temporary differences at the statement of financial position date between the tax bases

of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts for financial repo�ing purposes. Deferred tax liabilities are recognized

for all taxable temporary differences, except where the deferred tax liability arises from the initial recognition of an 

asset or liability in a transaction which, at the time of the transaction, affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable

profit or loss.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each repo�ing date and reduced to the extent that it is no

longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or pa� of the deferred tax asset to be utilized.

Unrecognized deferred tax assets are reassessed at each repo�ing date and are recognized to the extent that it becomes

probable that future taxable profit will allow the deferred tax asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the year when the asset

is realized or the liability is se�led, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted

at the repo�ing date.

Current and deferred taxes are recognized as income tax benefits or expenses in the income statement. 

The Bank only off-sets its deferred tax assets against liabilities when there is both a legal right to offset and it is the

Bank’s intention to se�le on a net basis.

Post-employment benefits are paid to retired employees of the Bank by the Social Security Fund Depa�ment which

belongs to the Ministry of Labor and Social Welfare. The Bank is required to contribute to these post-employment 

benefits by paying social insurance premium to the Social Insurance Agency at the rate of 6.00% of employee’s basic

salary on a monthly basis but shall not exceed LAK 270,000 per staff. 

The Bank also creates its internal pension fund in which, the Bank contributes to this fund at the rate of 4.00% of 

employee’s gross salary on a monthly basis. 

The Bank has no fu�her obligation concerning post-employment benefits for its employees other than this.

Termination benefits

In accordance with A�icle 82 of the Amended Labor Law No. 43/NA approved by the President of the Lao People’s 

Democratic Republic on 28 January 2014, the Bank has the obligation to pay allowance for employees who are terminated

by dismissal in the following cases:

The worker lacks specialized skills or is not in good health and thus cannot continue to work;

The employer considers it necessary to reduce the number of workers in order to improve the work within the labor unit.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
as at and for the year ended 31 December 2021

MARUHAN Japan Bank Lao

Termination benefits (continued)

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

3. NET INTEREST AND SIMILAR INCOME

2.15 Employee benefits  (continued)

 2021                             
LAK’000 

2020                             
LAK’000 

Interest and similar income from:   
Interbank transactions 10,341,245 6,138,283 
Loans to customers 62,351,320 51,591,151 

 72,692,565 57,729,434 

Interest and similar expense for:   
Interbank transactions (21,671,027) (14,427,456) 
Customer deposits (13,599,865) (7,937,301) 

 (35,270,892) (22,364,757) 

Net interest and similar income 37,421,673 35,364,677 

4. NET INTEREST AND SIMILAR INCOME

 2021                             
LAK’000 

2020                             
LAK’000 

Fees and commission income from:   
Settlement activities 4,954,173 3,423,085 
Other activities 1,014,583 626,235 

 5,968,756 4,049,320 

Fees and commission expense for:   
Transactions with customers (2,921,923) (740,658) 
Other activities (100,443) (400,552) 

 (3,022,366) (1,141,210) 

Net fee and commission income 2,946,390 2,908,110 
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5. NET LOSS FROM DEALING IN FOREIGN CURRENCIES

 2021                             
LAK’000 

2020                             
LAK’000 

Gain from dealing in foreign currency 85,195 64,434 
Loss from dealing in foreign currency (13,435,893) (2,422,580) 
 (13,350,698) (2,358,146) 

6. OTHER OPERATING INCOME

 2021                             
LAK’000 

2020                            
LAK’000 

Recovery of bad debt written off 8,715,684  14,389,098 
Others 1,138,038  1,440,537  
 9,853,722  15,829,635 

7. PAYROLL AND OTHER STAFF COSTS

 2021                             
LAK’000 

2020                             
LAK’000 

Wages and allowance 28,917,038 22,758,798 
Other staff costs 2,312,023 4,516,608 
 31,229,061 27,275,406 

8. OTHER ADMINISTRATION EXPENSES

 2021                             
LAK’000 

2020                             
LAK’000 

Office rental 857,760 1,929,397 
Fuel 227,865 142,734 
Office stationeries 175,097 223,505 
Publication, marketing and promotion 2,723,081 1,988,329 
Telecommunication 651,447 534,080 
Repair and maintenance 5,811,916 3,954,899 
Electricity and water 454,662 355,973 
Insurance fee 146,879 132,056 
Officials trips 44,555 118,196 
Professional fees 627,559 411,699 
Others 3,403,558 2,461,123 
 15,124,379 12,251,990 
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
as at and for the year ended 31 December 2021

MARUHAN Japan Bank Lao

10. CASH ON HAND

Balances with the BOL include demand deposits, compulsory deposits and special deposit. These balances earn no

interest.

(*)  Under regulations of the BOL, the Bank is required to maintain ce�ain cash reserves with the BOL in the form

of compulsory deposits, which are computed at 3.00% for LAK and 5.00% for foreign currencies (2020: 4.00% and 8.00%),

on a bi-monthly basis of customer deposits having original maturities of less than 12 months. During the year, the Bank 

maintained its compulsory deposits in compliance with the requirements of the BOL.

(**)  Under Decree No. 02/PR of the BOL, foreign bank branches are required to maintain a minimum balance of 

special deposit at the BOL which is equivalent to 25% of their paid-up capital to secure for their operational continuance. 

The Bank was then approved by the BOL in Approval Le�er No. 157/CSD dated 26 February 2019 to withdraw from 

this deposit account to supplement its working capital. As at 31 December 2021, the balance of special deposit of the

Bank is LAK’000 13,480,628.

 31/12/2021                             
LAK’000 

31/12/2020                             
LAK’000 

Cash on hand in LAK 16,063,760 9,993,031 
Cash on hand in foreign currencies 6,875,757 9,018,481 
 22,939,517 19,011,512 

11. BALANCES WITH BANK OF THE LAO PDR (“the BOL”)

 31/12/2021                             
LAK’000 

31/12/2020                             
LAK’000 

Demand deposit  115,274,922 92,007,989 
Compulsory deposit (*) 12,820,338 11,303,278 
Special deposit (**) 13,480,628 46,480,628 
 141,575,888 149,791,895 
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12.1 Demand deposits

12.2 Term deposits

12. DUE FROM BANKS

13. LOANS TO CUSTOMERS, NET OF SPECIFIC PROVISION

 31/12/2021                             
LAK’000 

31/12/2020                             
LAK’000 

Demand deposits with domestic banks   
Banque pour le Commerce Exterieur Lao Public 19,029,782 11,074,918 
First Commercial Bank - Vientiane Branch 10,839 51,519 

Demand deposits with overseas banks   
SATHAPANA Bank Plc (*)   735,100 201,084 
KEB Hana Bank Tokyo Branch 823,671 60,617 
Siam Commercial Bank Headquarters 20,196,892 141,827 
 40,796,284 11,529,965 

 
(*) Previously named as MARUHAN Japan Bank Plc., Cambodia Branch.

 
31/12/2021                             

LAK’000 
31/12/2020                             

LAK’000 

Term deposit at domestic banks   
Saigon-Thuong Tin Bank Lao Limited - 27,753,000 
Vietcombank Lao Limited 11,151,000 37,004,000 
Vietinbank Lao Limited - 18,502,000 
Lao China Bank Co., Ltd 13,381,200 22,202,400 
Indochina Bank Limited 22,302,000 64,757,000 
ST Bank Limited 100,359,000 27,753,000 
Saigon-Hanoi Bank Lao Limited 111,510,000 47,753,000 
Phongsavanh Bank Limited 44,604,000 18,502,000 
Joint Development Bank 33,453,000 30,000,000 

 336,760,200 294,226,400 
 

Term deposits denominated in USD have terms of 3 to 24 months, and interest rates from 1.70% to 5.10% p.a.

 31/12/2021                             
LAK’000 

31/12/2020                             
LAK’000 

Loans to customers  736,742,940 524,954,202 
Less specific provision (20,729,891) (10,638,712) 
In which:   
Specific provision for non-performing loans (18,622,263) (9,455,652) 
Specific provision for special mention loans (2,107,628) (1,183,060) 

 716,013,049 514,315,490 
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MARUHAN Japan Bank Lao

Interest rates for loans to customers during the year are as follows:

13. LOANS TO CUSTOMERS, NET OF SPECIFIC PROVISION (continued)

13.1 Analysis of Loans to customers

Analysis by currency

Analysis by pe�orming status

Analysis by original term 

 2021                             
Interest rates 

2020                             
Interest rates 

 % per annum % per annum 

Loans to customers in LAK 3.00 - 14.35 3.00 - 14.70 
Loans and advances in USD 6.55 - 9.50 10.00 

 31/12/2021                             
LAK’000 

31/12/2020                             
LAK’000 

Loans denominated in LAK 734,265,095 524,954,202 
Loans denominated in USD 2,477,845 - 
 736,742,940 524,954,202 

 31/12/2021                             
LAK’000 

31/12/2020                             
LAK’000 

Performing loans 704,343,428          504,088,691  
Non-performing loans 32,399,512           20,865,511  
 736,742,940 524,954,202 

 31/12/2021                             
LAK’000 

31/12/2020                             
LAK’000 

Short-term loans 12,574,600 16,904,171 
Medium-term loans 172,594,358 105,714,027 
Long-term loans 551,573,982 402,336,004 
 736,742,940 524,954,202 
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13. LOANS TO CUSTOMERS, NET OF SPECIFIC PROVISION (continued)

13.1 Analysis of Loans to customers (continued)

13.2 Provision for credit losses

Changes in provision for credit losses of the Bank during the year ended 31 December 2021 are as follows:

Analysis by currency 31/12/2021                             
LAK’000 

31/12/2020                             
LAK’000 

Industrial services companies 20,046,830 4,903,908 
Construction companies 6,074,848 3,136,746 
Technical instruments enterprises 235,186 280,819 
Agricultural and forestry 24,709,252 8,447,881 
Trading companies 64,908,784 36,643,617 
Transportation companies 5,504,745 657,512 
Services companies 56,728,711 21,777,900 
Handicrafts 10,251,545 8,573,822 
Others 548,283,039 440,531,997 
 736,742,940 524,954,202 

 

 

Specific 
provision for 

NPLs 

Specific 
provision for 

special mention 
loans 

General 
provision Total 

  LAK’000 LAK’000 LAK’000 LAK’000 
Balance as at 1 
January 2021 9,455,652 1,183,060 2,323,267 12,961,979 
Net provision charged to 
expense during the year 16,650,899  924,568  847,179  18,422,646  
Write-offs during the 
year (7,484,288) -  -  (7,484,288) 

Balance as at 31 
December 2021 18,622,263 2,107,628  3,170,446  23,900,337 
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13. LOANS TO CUSTOMERS, NET OF SPECIFIC PROVISION (continued)

14. FIXED ASSETS AND RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS

13.2 Provision for credit losses (continued)

14.1 Assets under purchase

The breakdown of loan classification and provision in accordance with Regulation 512/BOL are as follows:

 
 
Classification 

Loan balance 
LAK’000 

Specific 
provision 
LAK’000 

General 
provision 
LAK’000 

Total provision 
LAK’000 

- Normal or Pass 634,089,136  -    3,170,446  3,170,446  
- Watch or Special 

Mention 70,254,292  2,107,629  -    2,107,629  
- Sub-standard 8,331,030  1,666,206  -  1,666,206  
- Doubtful 14,224,852  7,112,426  -  7,112,426  
- Loss 9,843,630  9,843,630  -  9,843,630  

Total 736,742,940  20,729,891  3,170,446  23,900,337  
 

 
Software  
LAK’000 

Computer 
equipment  

LAK’000 

Office 
equipment 

LAK’000 
 Total  

LAK’000 

As at 1 January 2021 2,996,702 632,936 461,864 4,091,502 
Additional  13,663,202  3,246,296 590,648 17,500,146  
Transfer to Fixed Assets (4,690,175) (2,569,980) (163,910) (7,424,065) 
Reclassify to prepaid expense (3,457,350) (1,309,252) (429,690) (5,196,292) 
FX impact 369,967 - - 369,967 

As at 31 December 2021 8,882,346 -    458,912  9,341,258  
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14. FIXED ASSETS (continued)

14.2 Tangible fixed assets and Right-of-use assets (continued)

Set out below are the carrying amounts of lease liabilities (included under ‘Other payables’ in Note 19) and the 

movements for the year ended 31 December 2021 and 31 December 2020:

Building & 
improvement

Office 
equipment

Furniture & 
fixtures

Computer 
equipment Motor vehicles Right- of-use 

assets  Total 

LAK’000 LAK’000 LAK’000 LAK’000 LAK’000 Office rental LAK’000

LAK’000
Cost: 

Opening balance 10,469,033 7,194,229 2,443,214 9,173,642 3,767,317 2,138,068 35,185,503

Additions -   - 64,977 - -   3,229,392 3,294,369

Transfer from 
assets under 
purchase

- 163,910 - 2,569,980 - - 2,733,890

Closing balance 10,469,033 7,358,139 2,508,191 11,743,622 3,767,317 5,367,460 41,213,762

Opening balance 8,251,111 6,471,648 2,153,717 4,733,243 1,482,292 895,219 23,987,230

Charged for the 
year 1,046,903 248,298 90,903 1,393,093 538,366 1,841,286 5,158,849

Closing balance 9,298,014 6,719,946 2,244,620 6,126,336 2,020,658 2,736,505 29,146,079

Net book value:

Opening balance 2,217,922 722,581 289,497 4,440,399 2,285,025 1,242,849 11,198,273

Closing balance 1,171,019 638,193 263,571 5,617,286 1,746,659 2,630,955 12,067,683

Accumulated depreciation:
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14. FIXED ASSETS (continued)

15. OTHER ASSETS

15.1 Accrued interest receivables

14.2 Tangible fixed assets and Right-of-use assets (continued)

14.3 Intangible fixed assets

Set out below are the carrying amounts of lease liabilities (included under ‘Other payables’ in Note 19) and the 

movements for the year ended 31 December 2021 and 31 December 2020:

Movements of intangible fixed assets during the year are as follows:

 2021 2020 

As at 1 January 523,582  975,028 
Additions 3,229,392  - 
Accretion of interest 90,850  69,2001 
Payment (3,532,637) (520,647) 
FX impact 233,357  - 

As at 31 December  544,544 523,582 
 

 

Computer 
software 
LAK’000 

Cost:   
Opening balance 26,549,791 
Additions - 
Transfer from assets under purchase 4,690,175 

Closing balance 31,239,966 

Accumulated amortization:  

Opening balance 19,674,256 
Amortized for the period 2,948,016 

Closing balance 22,622,272 
  
Net book value:  

Opening balance 6,875,535 

Closing balance 8,617,694 
 

 31/12/2021                             
LAK’000 

31/12/2020                             
LAK’000 

   
Interbank 3,726,153 2,282,017 
Loan to customer 8,669,759 7,751,892 
 12,395,912 10,033,909 
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15. OTHER ASSETS  (continued)

15.2 Others

16. DUE TO BANKS AND FINANCIAL INSTITUTIONS

16.1 Demand deposits

16.2 Term deposits

 31/12/2021                             
LAK’000 

31/12/2020                             
LAK’000 

Prepaid expenses 6,671,772 5,171,592 
Others 1,339,476 1,465,909 
 8,011,248 6,637,501 

 
31/12/2021 

LAK’000 
31/12/2020 

LAK’000 

Balances of domestic banks   
Canadia Bank Lao Co., Ltd 251,151 468,967 
First Commercial Bank Ltd, Vientiane Branch 4,287,796 1,280,630 
Agricultural Promotion Bank 19,740 19,840 

 4,558,687 1,769,437 
 

 31/12/2021 
LAK’000 

31/12/2020 
LAK’000 

Balances of domestic banks   
First Commercial Bank Ltd, Vientiane Branch 35,000,000 66,000,000 
Canadia Bank Lao Co., Ltd 29,800,000 27,300,000 
Indochina Bank Limited 35,000,000 61,000,000 
Saigon-Thuong Tin Bank Lao Limited 60,000,000 48,502,000 
Vietcombank Lao Limited 10,000,000 36,676,000 
ST bank Limited - 18,000,000 
Lao China Bank Co., Ltd 10,000,000 20,000,000 
Banque Pour Le Commerce Exterieur Lao Public 140,000,000 - 
Joint Development Bank Limited 30,000,000 - 

   349,800,000 277,478,000 
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16. DUE TO BANKS AND FINANCIAL INSTITUTIONS (continued)

16.2 Term deposits (continued)

16.3 Borrowings from bank and funding from others

Details of the term deposits as at 31 December 2021 are as follows:

Details of the borrowings and funding as at 31 December 2021 are as follows:

 Balance in 
original currency 

Original 
Currency Term 

Interest rate 
(%/year) 

First Commercial Bank 
Ltd, Vientiane Branch 35,000,000 LAK 12 months 5.30 - 5.50 
Canadia Bank Lao Co., 
Ltd 29,800,000 LAK 3 - 6 months 2.65 - 3.50 
Indochina Bank Limited 35,000,000 LAK 6 months 3.80 - 4.20 
Saigon-Thuong Tin Bank 
Lao Limited 60,000,000 LAK 3 - 12 months 3.16 - 5.25 
Vietcombank Lao Limited 10,000,000 LAK 3 months 2.58 
Lao China Bank Co., Ltd 10,000,000 LAK 6 months 3.80 
Banque Pour Le 
Commerce Exterieur Lao 
Public 140,000,000 LAK 3 - 12 months 4.00 - 5.70 
Joint Development Bank 
Limited 30,000,000 LAK 3 months 2.05 

 349,800,000    
     

 31/12/2021 
LAK’000 

31/12/2020 
LAK’000 

Borrowing from bank    
MIZUHO Bank Ltd – Bangkok Branch 223,020,000 185,020,000 

Funding from others   
Bank of the Lao PDR 9,340,000 2,150,000 
Department of Small and Medium Enterprise 
Promotion (“DOSMEP”), Ministry of Industry and 
Commerce of Laos 51,000,000 26,000,000 
First Commercial Bank Ltd, Vientiane Branch 24,000,000 - 

 307,360,000 213,170,000  

 Balance in 
original 

currency 
Original 

Currency 

Balance in 
LAK 

equivalent Term 
Interest rate 

(%/year) 

MIZUHO Bank Ltd – 
Bangkok Branch 20,000,000  USD 223,020,000 12 months 2.20 
Bank of the Lao PDR 9,340,000  LAK 9,340,000 72 months 3.00 
Department of Small 
and Medium Enterprise 
Promotion 
(“DOSMEP”), Ministry 
of Industry and 
Commerce of Laos 51,000,000  LAK 51,000,000 132 months Nil 
First Commercial Bank 
Ltd, Vientiane Branch 24,000,000  LAK 24,000,000 3 months 5.25 

   307,360,000   
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17. DUE TO CUSTOMERS

18. PROFIT TAX 

18.1 Taxes payable

The interest rates applied for amounts due to customers are as follows:

 31/12/2021 
LAK’000 

31/12/2020 
LAK’000 

Demand deposits 20,802,233            11,450,932  
- in LAK   14,973,409              8,173,084  
- in foreign currencies 5,828,824 3,277,848 

Saving deposits 132,314,174 106,293,876  
- in LAK   30,707,755 28,416,139  
- in foreign currencies 101,606,419 77,877,737 

Term deposits 220,205,030 113,781,417 
- in LAK   50,238,755 34,724,930 
- in foreign currencies 169,966,275 79,056,487 

 373,321,437 231,526,225 
 

 2021 2020 
 Interest rates 

% per annum 
Interest rates 
% per annum 

Demand deposits in LAK No interest No interest 
Demand deposits in foreign currencies No interest No interest 

Saving deposits in LAK 1.89 - 5.00 1.89 - 5.00 
Saving deposits in USD 1.35 - 3.00 1.75 - 3.00 
Saving deposits in THB 1.50 - 2.00 1.50 - 2.00 

Term deposits in LAK 3.16 - 7.75 3.16 - 6.90 
Term deposits in USD 1.50 - 7.00 2.00 - 7.00 
Term deposits in THB 2.00 - 3.00 2.50 - 3.00 

 

 31/12/2021                             
LAK’000 

31/12/2020                             
LAK’000 

Personal income tax 7,413 289,473 
Withholding tax 64,891 147,285 
 72,304 436,758 
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18. PROFIT TAX (continued)

8.2 Profit tax

The Bank is obliged to pay tax on total profit before tax in accordance with the Tax Law No.67/NA dated 18 June

2019 which is effective on or after 1 January 2020.

Details of profit tax (“PT”) provision for the years 2021 and 2020 are as follows:

 
2021                             

LAK’000 
2020                             

LAK’000 

Loss before tax (36,473,091) (5,177,401) 
Adjustments:   
Non-deductible expenses 305,929 299,103 

Loss after allowable deductions (36,167,162) (4,878,298) 

Current PT expense, at the statutory rate of 
20%  - - 
PT payable at the beginning of the year - - 
PT paid during the period - - 

PT payable at the end of the year - - 

The Bank’s tax returns are subject to periodic examination by the tax authority. Because the application of tax

laws and regulations in many types of transactions is susceptible to varying interpretations, amounts reported 

in the financial statements could be changed at a later date upon final determination by the tax authorities.

For tax loss incurred in 2021 and 2020, in accordance with the amended Tax Law No. 67/NA dated 18 June 2019,

a�icle 23, annual losses which are ce�ified by the audit authority or an independent audit firm and acknowledged

by the tax authorities, are eligible to be carried forward to offset with future taxable profits for a period of five

years after the losses incurred.

Tax losses incurred in 2019 and before are eligible to be carried forward to offset with future taxable profits for

a period of three years after the losses incurred, in accordance with the previous Tax Law.

Details of tax losses carried forward were as follows:

Tax losses carried forward

Year 

Can be  
utilized 

up to 

Additional 
losses incurred  

for the year 

Utilized up  
to the end  

of the year 

Amount unused 
but is not 

eligible for next 
year’s use   

Eligible unused 
tax loss at the 

end of the year  
LAK’000 LAK’000 LAK’000 LAK’000 

2017  2020  40,905,992  -     (40,905,992)  -    
2018  2021  5,831,734   -     -     5,831,734  
2019 (*) 2022  25,493,355   -     -     25,493,355  
2020 (*) 2025  4,878,296   -     -     4,878,296  
2021 (*) 2026 36,167,162   -     -    36,167,162 

  113,276,539  -     (40,905,992) 72,370,547 
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18. PROFIT TAX (continued)

19. OTHER PAYABLES

20. PAID-UP CAPITAL 

21. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

18.2 Profit tax (continued)

(*) At the date of these financial statements, the tax assessments for the years ended 31 December 2019, 

31 December 2020 and 31 December 2021 have not been finalised by the Tax Authority.

No deferred tax assets were recognised in respect of the tax losses because future taxable profit cannot be

ascertained at this stage.

The movement of paid up capital during the year is presented below:

 31/12/2021                             
LAK’000 

31/12/2020                             
LAK’000 

Payable to suppliers 3,033,370 2,168,089 
Payable to employees 7,051,831  6,427,431 
Lease liability 544,544 523,582 
Others 1,925,572 2,190,005 
 12,555,317 11,309,107 

 

 2021                             
LAK’000 

2020                             
LAK’000 

Opening balance 431,535,000 385,060,000 
Capital contribution during the year - 46,475,000 

Closing balance 431,535,000 431,535,000 
 

 31/12/2021                             
LAK’000 

31/12/2020                             
LAK’000 

Cash on hand  22,939,517  19,011,512 
Accounts with the BOL  115,274,922  92,007,989 
Current accounts with other banks  40,796,283  11,529,965 
 179,010,722 122,549,466 
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22. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Transactions with key management personnel of the Bank

Related pa�y transactions include all transactions unde�aken with other pa�ies to which the Bank is related. A pa�y

is related to the Bank if:

(a) directly, or indirectly through one or more intermediaries, the party:

controls is controlled by, or is under common control with, the Bank (this includes parents, subsidiaries and fellow 

subsidiaries);

has an interest in the Bank that gives it significant influence over the Bank; or

Significant transactions with related pa�ies during the year ended 31 December 2021 and 31 December 2020 were 

as follows:

Balances with related pa�ies as at 31 December 2021 and 31 December 2020 are as follows:

Remuneration to members of the Board of Management and Board of Director are as follows:

has joint control over the Bank.

(b) the pa�y is a joint venture in which the Bank is a venture; 

(c) the pa�y is a member of the key management personnel of the Bank or its parent; 

(d) the pa�y is a close member of the family of any individual referred to in (a) or (c);

(e)  the pa�y is an entity that is controlled, jointly controlled or significantly influenced by, or for which significant 

voting power in such entity resides with, directly or indirectly, any individual referred to in (c) or (d); or

(f)  the pa�y is a post-employment benefit plan for the benefit of employees of the Bank, or of any Bank that is a 

related pa�y of the Bank.

Related parties Relationship Transactions 
2021 

LAK’000 
2020 

LAK’000 
     

MARUHAN Corporation  Share holder Net increase 
in saving 
account  

(13,910,191) (3,141,537) 

Related parties Relationship Transaction 

 31/12/2021 
Receivable/ 

(payable) 
LAK’000 

 31/12/2020 
Receivable/ 

(payable) 
LAK’000 

     

SATHAPANA Bank Plc 
(previously known as 
MARUHAN Japan Bank 
Plc., Cambodia) 

Entity under 
common 
ultimate 
ownership 

Demand 
deposits 

735,100 201,084 

MARUHAN Corporation  Share holder Saving 
account 

(72,977,884) (59,067,693) 

 

 2021                             
LAK’000 

2020                             
LAK’000 

   
Salaries  5,397,527  4,566,039 
Bonus and other benefits  1,690,451  1,278,280 

  7,087,978  5,844,319 
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Mr. Soneouthai SOUKHALIVONG  

Chief Financial Officer

Vientiane, Lao PDR

31 March 2022 

Prepared by:

Mr. Anthony CHIN

Chief Executive Officer

Approved by:

23. EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING DATE 

There is no ma�er or circumstance that has arisen since 31 December 2021 that requires adjustment or disclosure 

in the financial statements of the Bank.
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ໜ່ວຍ 14, ຖະໜົນ 23 ສິງຫາ, ບ້ານ ໂພນໄຊ, ເມືອງ ໄຊເສດຖາ, ນະຄອນຫຼວງວຽງຈັນ, ສປປ ລາວ

ຕ້ັງຢູ ່ຖະໜົນ ສາລາຂຽວ, ໜ່ວຍ 14, ບ້ານ ໂພນກຸງ, ເມືອງ ປາກເຊ, ແຂວງ ຈຳປາສັກ

Unit 14, 23 Singha Road, Ban Phonxay, Sayse�ha District, Vientiane, Lao PDR

ທະນາຄານ ມາຣູຮານ ເຈແປນລາວ ຈຳກັດ
MARUHAN Japan Bank Lao Co., Ltd

ໜ່ວຍບລິໍການ ແຂວງ ຈຳປາສັກ
CHAMPASAK SERVICE UNIT

ຕ້ັງຢູ ່ຖະໜົນ ພູວ່າວ, ໜ່ວຍ 05, ບ້ານ ພະບາດໃຕ້, ເມືອງ ຫຼວງພະບາງ, ແຂວງ ຫຼວງພະບາງ

ໜ່ວຍບລິໍການ ແຂວງ ຫຼວງພະບາງ
LUANGPHABANG SERVICE UNIT

ຕ້ັງຢູ ່ບ້ານ ໜອງຈັນ, ເມືອງ ສີສັດຕະນາກ, ແຂວງ ນະຄອນຫຼວງວຽງຈັນ

ໜ່ວຍບລິໍການ ເວີເທຣດ ເຊັນເຕີ
WORLDTRADE CENTER SERVICE UNIT
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